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ABOUT THE COVER Celebrating 20 Years of Innovation

Throughout fiscal 2011 we are celebrating 20 years of technology leadership in thesemiconductor industry

Since our founding RFMD has been an innovator and industry leader in the commercialization of compound semiconductors

and RF components We have introduced thousands of breakthrough products that have enabled the growth of our Company as

well as the growth of our markets

Twenty years ago the markets we served were relatively small and emerging Today our markets are large and diversified and

they continue to grow RFMD is at the forefront of these markets and we believe we are very well positioned for continued

growth and profitability supported by the outstanding talent of our employees and our organizations sharp focus on product and

technology leadership
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS ---- .-i

Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

in thousands except per share data

Total revenue 1051756 978393 886506 956270 $1023615

Income loss from operations 139519 106406 869296 50901 114551

Net income loss 124558 71019 887904 3394 83416

Diluted net income loss per share 0.44 0.25 3.38 0.01 0.39

Cash and cash equivalents 131760 104778 172989 129750 228940

Current assets 600159 548824 517434 616147 580439

Total assets 1025393 $1014008 1088642 2011309 $1089634

Current liabilities 134937 152733 99344 135591 113216

Total liabilities 349038 483924 656680 715208 369967

Shareholders equity 676355 530084 431962 1296101 719667

ABOUT US

RF Micro Devices Inc NASDAQ GS RFMD is global leader in the design and manufacture of high-performance HF

components and compound semiconductor technologies RFMDs products enable worldwide mobility provide enhanced

connectivity and support advanced functionality in the cellular handset wireless infrastructure wireless local area

network WLAN CAN/broadband and aerospace and defense markets RFMD is recognized for its diverse portfolio of

semiconductor technologies and RF systems expertise and is preferred supplier to the worlds leading mobile device

customer premises and communications equipment providers

Headquartered in Greensboro N.C RFMD is an ISO 9001- and ISO 14001-certified manufacturer with worldwide

engineering design sales and service facilities RFMD is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the symbol

RFMD For more information please visit RFMDs website at www.rfmd.com
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Your RFMD is transformed What began in May 2008

with the announcement of our strategic restructuring

has changed RFMD from what we werea customer

concentrated supplier of wireless systemsinto highly

diversified growth-oriented supplier of RF components

and compound semiconductors

The results are clear On year-over-year basis fiscal

h- 2011 revenue and gross profit grew 7.5% and 9.7%

respectively and gross margin expanded from 36.3% to

37 0% Operating income grew 31 1% to $139 million

net income grew 75.4% to $124.6 million and diluted

earnings per share increased 76% to $0.44

We strengthened our balance sheet substantially in

fiscal 2011 Cash flow from operations increased

14.9% to $213.4 million We repurchased and retired

$145.5 million princiaI amount of our long-term debt

resulting in positive net cash position at the end of our

fiscal year RFMDs capital efficient business model also

delivered solid year-over-year improvements in free cash

flow2 and return on invested capital

RFMDs robust financial performance in fiscal 2011 was

achieved despite 24.4% decline in sales to our largest

cellular handset customer This decline reflected our

largest customers position in the cellular handset market

as wellas the approaching end-of-life of our POLARISTM

Bob Bruggeworth RFMD President and Chief Executive Officer
EDGE transceiver chipset

RFMDs POLARIS chipsets have been among the

industrys most successful EDGE transceiver chipsets

and POLARIS products have generated more than

$1.2 billiorrin lifetime revenue for RFMD

As part of our May 2008 strategic restructuring we exited

all new transceiver product development while committing

to support existing POLARIS transceiver sales to

our largest customer Accordingly transceiver revenue

is expected to be immaterial to fiscal 2012 financial

resultsafter representing approximately 14% of revenue

in fiscal 2011

Positive set cash positioo is defined as unrestricted cash cash equivalents and short-term investments minus the principal amount of our convertible subordinated notes due 2012 and 2014

Pree cash flow is defined as net cash provided by operating activities during the period minus property and equipment ecpenditures made during the period
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In place of transceivers RFMD is capturing new higher

margin revenue that is growing across broad set of

customers

and markets We are especially enthusiastic

about new incremental growth drivers including our

PowerSmartM power platforms our RF724x family of

ultra-high efficiency 3G/4G power amplifiers PA5 our

switch-based cellular products our gallium nitride or

GaN components for high-power applications and our

high-performance WiFi components

Within our Cellular Products Group CPG RFMDs DIVERSIFICATION
PowerSmart power platforms feature revolutionary new

RF Configurable Power CoreTM that delivers multiband We are seeing dramatic reversal in

multi-mode coverage of all cellular communications

modulation schemes including 4G PowerSmart is our customer concentration As we

enjoying broad customer acceptance and was recognized

recently by Compound Semiconductor magazine as the entered fiscal 2011 our largest customer

compound semiconductor industrys most innovative

device of 2011 represented approximately half of our

We are also excited about our RF724x family of 3G/4G revenue Entering fiscal 2012 we see

PAs which deliver ultra-high peak efficiency and best-in-

class performance translating directly into superior talk that percentage approaching fifteen

time for next-generation devices Similar to PowerSmart

customer shipments of our RF724x PAs are forecast to percent as transceiver sales decline

grow significantly in fiscal 2012

--
-- and as the balance of our business

--

Another exciting growth driver is our expanding portfolio

of switches and switch-based products RFMDs new grows RFMD has not had more diverse

silicon on-insulator 501 switches complement our

existing switch product offerings and deliver additional customer concentration in our history as

advances in integration and performance

public company This is the new RFMD
In the markets served by our Multi-Market Products

Group MPG we are pursuing multiple opportunities for

our GaN compound semiconductor technology RFMDs

GaN is revolutionary new green technology that delivers

several benefits including very high power density

smaller size lower current consumption and greater

thermal conductivity
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Also in MPG our portfolio of high-performance WiFi front

ends is driving exceptional growth supported by the

rapid convergence of wireless and networking devices

We are also generating strong growth in Smart Energy

driven by our expanded collaboration with channel

partners and new program wins in support of leading

Smart Energy customers

PRODUCT AND TECHNOLOGY LEADERSHIP
These incremental growth drivers are ramping now

with long-term product lifecycles expected to extend

RFMDs commitment to product and well into future fiscal years As result we foresee

more diversified customer base and product mix

technology leadership has enabled us to thats more robust with greater representation of new

products in MPG and higher percentage of new 3G and

deliver innovative breakthrough products 4G products in CPG We believe this will enable broad

improvement in our financial results supporting revenue

that have reshaped their respective growth margin expansion operating leverage earnings

growth continued strong free cash flow and superior

product categories These have included return on invested capital

RFMDs PowerStar power amplifiers As RFMD celebrates our 2O anniversary we extend our

thanks to everyone who has contributed to our success

RFMDs silicon-based cellular switches not only in fiscal 2011 but since our founding in 1991

We are especially grateful for the people of RFMD whose

RFMDs PowerSmartJM power platforms outstanding talent and dedication made fiscal 2011

very successful year With their continued efforts and

and RFMDs high-power GaN technology the support of our investors customers suppliers and

Board of Directors we see tremendous opportunities for

In fiscal 2011 RFMD launched 324 new
growth and profitability ahead

and derivative productsa company We look forward to reporting our progress to you

throughout our fiscal 2012 and beyond

record This is the new RFMD
Sincerely

Bob Bruggeworth

President and Chief Executive Officer

June 22 2011
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Forward-Looking Information

This report includes forward-looking statements

within the meaning of the safe harbor provisions of

the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

including but not limited to certain disclosures con

tained in Item Managements Discussion and Anal

ysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

These forward-looking statements include but are not

limited to statements about our plans objectives rep

resentations and contentions and are not historical

facts and typically are identified by the use of terms

such as may will should could expect
plan anticipate believe estimate predict

potential continue and similar words although

some forward-looking statements are expressed differ

ently You should be aware that the forward-looking

statements included herein represent managements

current judgment and expectations but our actual

results events and performance could differ materially

from those expressed or implied by forward-looking

statements We do not intend to update any of these

forward-looking statements or publicly announce the

results of any revisions to these forward-looking state

ments other than as is required under the federal

securities laws

The following discussion should be read in conjunction

with and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our

audited consolidated financial statements including

the notes thereto

PART

We use 52- or 53-week fiscal year ending on the

Saturday closest to March 31 of each year Fiscal years

2011 and 2009 were 52-week years and fiscal year

2010 was 53-week year Our other fiscal quarters end

on the Saturday closest to June 30 September 30 and

December 31 of each year

Unless the context requires otherwise references in

this report to RFMD the Company we us and

our refer to RF Micro Devices Inc and its subsidiaries

on consolidated basis

ITEM BUSINESS

Introduction

RF Micro Devices Inc was incorporated under the laws

of the State of North Carolina in 1991 We are recog

nized global leader in the design and manufacture of

high-performance radio frequency RF components and

compound semiconductor technologies Our products

enable worldwide mobility provide enhanced connectiv

ity and support advanced functionality in the cellular

handset wireless infrastructure wireless local area

network WLAN or WiFi cable television CATV/broad

band Smart Energy/advanced metering infrastructure

AMI and aerospace and defense markets We are

recognized for our diverse portfolio of semiconductor

technologies and RF systems expertise and we are

preferred supplier to the worlds leading mobile device

RE Micro Devices Inc and subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011

customer premises and communications equipment

providers

Our design and manufacturing expertise encompasses

many semiconductor process technologies which we

access through both internal and external resources

We are leading manufacturer of gallium arsenide

GaAs-based and gallium nitride GaN compound semi

conductors for RF applications We access silicon-based

technologies and small percentage of GaAs through

external foundries Our broad design and manufacturing

resources enable us to deliver products optimized for

performance and cost in order to best meet our cus

tomers performance cost and time-to-market

requirements

In fiscal 2011 our Cellular Products Group CPG sup

plied cellular components to the majority of the handset

industrys original equipment manufacturers OEMs
and collaborated with the handset industrys leading

baseband manufacturers as the reference designs of

these baseband manufacturers are utilized by both

OEMs and original design manufacturers ODM5 CPG
is leading supplier of cellular components such as

power amplifier PA modules transmit modules and

cellular switches which perform various functions in

the cellular front end section located between the trans

ceiver and the antenna CPG is also growing supplier of

switch-based content in the cellular front end section

including antenna switch modules switch filter modules

and switch duplexer modules which are increasingly

required in next-generation 3G and 4G devices CPG

supplies its broad portfolio of cellular components into

handsets and other mobile data connected devices

such as USB modems netbooks notebooks and

tablets

Our Multi-Market Products Group MPG supplies

broad range of RF components for multiple applications

in the communications industrial and aerospace/

defense industries MPG also provides foundry services

for GaN and GaAs wafer production Major communica

tions applications include mobile wireless infrastructure

2G 3G and 4G point-to-point and microwave radios

WiFi worldwide interoperability microwave access

WiMAX CAN wireline infrastructure and optical

access for hybrid-fiber coaxial HFC networks Industrial

applications include Smart Energy/AMI private mobile

radio and test and measurement equipment Aerospace

and defense applications include military communica

tions radar and electronic warfare as well as commer

cial/military space communications MPG serves

diversified global customer base

During fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2009 we completed three

strategic acquisitions In fiscal 2008 we acquired

Sirenza Microdevices Inc Sirenza to significantly

expand our product portfolio diversify our customer

base enhance our profitability and increase our revenue

growth opportunities We aIsd acquired Filtronic Com

pound Semiconductors Limited Filtronic in fiscal 2008

to reduce our GaAs sourcing costs increase our GaAs
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capacity with the addition of high-volume state-of-the-

art GaAs wafer fabrication facility which we also refer to

as fab reduce our capital expenditures and expand

our product portfolio of multi-market products In fiscal

2009 we completed the acquisition of Universal Micro

wave Corporation UMC UMC designs and manufac

tures high-performance HF oscillators and synthesizers

primarily for point-to-point radios CAN head-end equip

ment and military communications radio markets The

acquisitions of Sirenza Filtronic and UMC have fur

thered our strategic efforts in support of diversification

and profitable growth

In fiscal 2009 we announced strategic restructuring

that leveraged our leadership in HF components and

compound semiconductor technologies As part of the

restructuring we reduced or eliminated our investments

in wireless systems including cellular transceivers and

global positioning systems GPS solutions We initiated

the restructuring in order to focus on our HF component

and compound semiconductor opportunities including

cellular front ends and other components in CPG and

our expanding portfolio of HF components in MPG We

are supporting cellular transceivers already in produc

tion although we expect cellular transceiver sales vol

umes and revenues will be significantly lower in fiscal

2012 as compared to fiscal 2011

Also in fiscal 2009 we initiated separate restructuring

to reduce manufacturing capacity and costs and oper

ating expenses due primarily to lower demand for our

products resulting from the global economic slowdown

As part of the restructuring we decreased our work-

force impaired certain property and equipment and

reduced our fixed manufacturing and operating

expenses The restructuring activities implemented in

fiscaF 2009 substantially enhanced our profitability in

fiscal years 2010 and 2011

Industry Overview

Our business is diversified across multiple industries

The cellular handset industry is our largest market and

is characterized by large unit volumes

The largest segment by volume is comprised of voice

phones and feature phones operating on 2G networks

and during fiscal 2011 the majority of our cellular sales

were into 2G devices In fiscal 2012 we expect our

sales into smartphones to grow significantly driven by

market share gains and growth in the underlying market

The smartphone segment is growing faster than the

overall cellular handset industry Rapidly increasing

demand for internet access email social media video

sharing and other mobile applications is prompting

feature phone and mid-tier smartphone users to migrate

increasingly to more complex high-end smartphones

Similarly in Asia and in other geographies the expand

ing availability of broadband cellular infrastructure is

prompting users of basic voice phones and feature

phones to migrate increasingly to more complex mid-

tier smartphones

Smartphones whether mid-tier or high-end typically

contain more HF content than basic or feature phones

Smartphones support 2G 3G and increasingly 4G air

interface standards require multiple frequency bands

for broad geographic coverage and target higher per

formance specifications With smartphones growing

faster than the overall handset market and containing

more HF content our addressable cellular market is

expected to grow faster than the overall handset

market

The HF content is also growing rapidly in notebook

computers tablets and machine-to-machine M2M
data devices In notebook computers the broad avail

ability of high speed 3G and 4G networks is increasing

the demand for cellular functionality Similarly the grow

ing popularity of tablets for mobile data communication

and content consumption is increasing the demand for

3G 4G and WiFi connectivity in this segment Finally

M2M devices are increasingly integrating cellular con

tent for growing number of applications including

automotive smart grid and electricity utilities water

utilities medical fleet management and point-of-sale

Beyond handsets HFMD serves additional growth mar

kets that are benefiting from the increasing demand for

high data rate applications In CAN infrastructure the

rapid growth in consumer data usage primarily through

high definition television FIDTV as well as Internet

protocol television IPTV voice over Internet protocol

V0IP and increases in Internet traffic is driving market

growth and placing increased emphasis on product per

formance integration and power consumption In cellu

lar infrastructure the expanding data traffic loads on

networks are increasing the requirements for more and

faster wireless backhaul systemssuch as remote radio

heads that connect cellular base stations to switching

centers Also in cellular infrastructure efforts to reduce

energy consumption and lower carriers operating bud

gets are placing greater value on higher efficiency RF

power amplifiers There is also strong growth in Smart

Energy/AMI systems which are increasingly imple

mented using the ZigbeeTM standard or other technolo

gies requiring integrated HF components

Across our customers diversified industries their end-

market products continue to increase in complexity and

HF content This is expanding our addressable market

and increasing our opportunities to deliver more highly

integrated higher value solutions At the same time we

are leveraging our core capabilities including scale

manufacturing advanced packaging capabilities and

deep systems-level integration expertise to target

greater number of applications and market

opportunities

Strategy

HFMD is leveraging our leadership in HF components

and compound semiconductor technologies across mul

tiple industries to capitalize on global macro trends

related to mobility broadband connectivity and energy

conservation

.._1
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We employ product leadership strategy and leverage

core capabilities in design expertise manufacturing

scale and process and packaging technology to meet

or exceed our customers highly complex requirements

related to amplification switching filtering and other HF

and non-HF functionality In many instances we enjoy

synergies across markets and applications that enable

us to leverage our scale advantage

We are sharply focused on profitable growth and diver

sification and we are developing and launching hun

dreds of innovative new and derivative products each

year to expand our presence in existing and new mar

kets and to diversify our revenue base

We believe our investments in industry-leading manu

facturing scale deep systems-level expertise and

broad technology and product portfolios position us to

be leading beneficiary of the increasing HF complexity

in the transmit and receive chains of wireless and wired

broadband applications

Markets

We design develop manufacture and market our prod

ucts to both domestic and international OEMs and

ODMs for the following commercial industrial military

aerospace and other markets in both wireless and wired

communications applications

Aerospace and Defense AD markets in which we

compete include high power high reliability and high

frequency devices that are used primarily in radar and

communications equipment

Broadband Components This market is comprised of

several segments that relate to cable and broadband

transmission and consumer electronics markets Major

products include CAN hybrid-based amplifiers which

boost voice and data signals over established cable

lines

Cellular Devices In cellular applications communica

tion is established through mobile devices by making

connection with base station via HF channels The

ability of the mobile device to maintain this connection

over long distance and for long periods of time is

significantly impacted by the performance of the RF

section of the device We provide the critical products

in the RF section of mobile devices including PA mod
ules transmit modules RF power management inte

grated circuits ICs and RF switches for various

applications in the handset

Wireless Infrastructure Base stations are installed

across geographic area to create wireless telecom

munications networks that enable mobile devices to

communicate with one another or with wired tele

phones Each base station is equipped to transmit

and receive RF signals through an antenna to and from

mobile devices The base station market is typified by

requirement for highly reliable products with superior

durability and performance Point-to-point microwave

radios are also included in the base station market

In point-to-point applications transmission and recep

tion between two fixed points occur wirelessly Common

applications include broadcasting backhaul the way

cellular base station connects to the rest of the tele

phone network and trunking for use in operating data

links within communications carriers and IT

infrastructure

Wireless Connectivity Wireless connectivity involves

the transmission and reception of data such as e-mail

faxes computer files Internet content and voice by

computers and mobile devices via HF signals rather than

wireline connections We compete in both the WiFi and

WiMAX wireless connectivity markets and in the Smart

Energy/AMI market The most basic AMI systems pro

vide way for
utility company to measure customer

usage remotely without touching or physically reading

meter More sophisticated AMI systems have data links

to major household appliances to enable measurement

and control WiFi is used primarily for short-range home

or office network applications in personal computers

gaming platforms tablets and smartphones WiFi is

also used in wireless access points such as those

used in wireless hotspots WiMAX is technology that

is complementary to WiFi and is intended for longer-

range applications providing fixed or mobile broad

band wireless link for homes mobile computers

phones or other broadband platforms

Other Markets Through our MPG we service over

20 end-markets In addition to the primary markets

above we supply components for automotive optical

access wireless media wireless consumer premise

equipment test and measurement medical and scien

tific gaming industrial radios security systems satel

lite radio microwave communications interactive toys

PC modem cards keyless entry handheld devices used

for point-of-sale and other applications In fiscal 2010
we announced the availability of our GaN foundry ser

vices and in fiscal 2011 we announced the expansion

of our foundry services to include molecular beam epi

taxy MBE products and services utilizing our Greens

boro facilities In fiscal 2011 we also announced the

expansion of our foundry services to include GaAs

pseudomorphic high electron mobility transistor

pHEMT technologies which will be manufactured in

our United Kingdom U.K fab

Manufacturing

We have global supply chain that routinely ships mil

lions of units per day Our products have varying degrees

of complexity and rely on semiconductors and other

components that are manufactured in-house or out

sourced The majority of our products are multi-chip

modules utilizing multiple semiconductor process tech

nologies We are leading supplier of HF components

and leading manufacturer of compound semiconduc

tors e.g GaAs HBT GaAs pHEMT GaN for HF

applications

Our GaAs products generally incorporate transistor

layer which is grown on the GaAs wafer using MBE or
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metal organic chemical vapor deposition MOCVD pro

cess Our GaN products generally incorporate transis

tor layer which is grown on the silicon carbide SIC
wafer using MOCVD process We operate an MBE

facility in North Carolina and we grow the majority of

our GaAs starting material in this facility All MOCVD
based starting material is outsourced Also certain

unique but low-volume GaAs technologies which sup
port our MPG business are outsourced

Once the GaAs or GaN starting material is produced or

purchased the wafers are sent to one of our fabs where

semiconductor devices are manufactured through

series of manufacturing steps We operate six-inch

wafer fab located in Greensboro North Carolina for

GaAs wafer production and production of three-inch GaN

wafers and we operate six-inch wafer fab located in

Newton Aycliffe U.K Once the semiconductor manufac

turing is complete the wafers are singulated or sepa

rated into individual units called die

We also use silicon-based process technologies in our

products We outsource all silicon manufacturing to

leading silicon foundries

The next step in the manufacturing process is assembly

During assembly the die and other necessary compo
nents are placed in microelectronic package to provide

connectivity between the die and the components Once

assembled the products are tested for RF performance

and prepared for shipment through tape and reel

process To assemble and test our products we prima

rily use internal assembly facilities in the United States

U.S China and Germany and we also utilize several

external suppliers

In fiscal 2010 we consolidated our Shanghai assembly

and test operations with our Being assembly and test

facility and achieved the expected reduction in manu

facturing costs by the end of December 2009 In fiscal

2011 we increased our module assembly and test

capacity in China to support increased demand

Our quality management system is registered to ISO

9001 standards and our environmental management

system is registered to ISO 140012004 This means

that third-party independent auditor has determined

that these systems meet the requirements developed

by the International Organization of Standardization

non-governmental network of the national standards

institutes of over 150 countries The ISO 9001 stan

dards provide models for quality assurance in design

development production installation and servicing The

ISO 140012004 standards provide structure within

which company can develop or strengthen its quality

system for managing its environmental affairs We

believe that all of our key vendors and suppliers are

compliant with applicable ISO 9000 or QS 9000 series

specifications which means that their operations have

in each case been determined by auditors to complywith

certain internationally developed quality control stan

dards We qualify and monitor assembly contractors

based on cost and quality

Products and Applications

We offer broad line of products that range from single-

function components to highly integrated circuits and

multi-chip modules MCM5 Our ICs include gain blocks

low noise amplifiers LNA5 PAs receivers transmit

ters transceivers modulators demodulators attenua

tors switches frequency synthesizers and voltage-

controlled oscillators VCO5 Our MCM products include

PA modules switch-filter modules active antenna prod

ucts VCOs phase-locked loops PLL5 coaxial resona

tor oscillators CROs active mixers variable gain

amplifiers hybrid amplifiers power doublers and optical

receivers Our passive components include splitters

couplers mixers and transformers as well as isolators

and circulators which are used primarily in wireless

infrastructure and CAN set-top box applications Our

products employ broad array of semiconductor pro

cess technologies including GaAs GaN silicon com

plementary metal oxide semiconductor CMOS and

silicon germanium S1Ge

Raw Materials

We purchase numerous raw materials and parts such

as passive components and substrates from external

suppliers We currently use independent foundries to

supply all of our silicon-based requirements The use of

external suppliers involves number of risks including

the possibility of material disruptions in the supply of

key components and the lack of control over delivery

schedules manufacturing yields quality and fabrication

costs In order to minimize our risk associated with

external suppliers we routinely qualify multiple sources

of supply and closely monitor suppliers key perfor

mance indicators

Customers

Sales to our largest customer Nokia represented

approximately 39% of our total revenue in fiscal 2011

as compared to 55% of our total revenue in fiscal 2010

We have continued to expand our customer base and

have reduced our dependence on any one customer

MPG sales grew approximately 30% in fiscal 2011 as

compared to fiscal 2010 and CPG sales excluding our

largest customer grew by approximately 50% during the

same period We expect to continue to focus on cus

tomer diversification in fiscal 2012 We expect Nokia to

continue to decline as percent of total annual revenue

driven by market share gains at cellular customers

throughout the world and growth in MPG

Information about revenue operating profit or loss and

total assets is presented in Part II Item Financial

Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products worldwide directly to customers as

well as through network of domestic and foreign sales

representative firms and distributors We select our

domestic and foreign sales representatives based on

technical skills and sales experience as well as the
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presence of complementary product lines and the cus

tomer base served We provide ongoing training to our

representatives and distributors to keep them informed

of and educated about our products We maintain an

internal sales and marketing organization that is respon

sible for key account management application engi

neering support to customers developing sales and

advertising literature and preparing technical presen

tations for industry conferences We have sales and

customer support centers located throughout the world

Our applications engineers interact with customers dur

ing all stages of design and production provide custom

ers with product application notes and engineering data

maintain regular contact with customer engineers and

assist in the resolution of technical problems We
believe that maintaining close relationship with cus

tomers and channel partners and providing them with

strong technical support enhances their level of satis

faction and enables us to anticipate their future product

needs

Research and Development

Our research and development activities provide us with

the necessary technologies and products to maintain

leadership in the wireless communications market and

to leverage and extend our capabilities into other mar
kets We conduct research and development activities

focused on enabling longer-term leading-edge products

for our core markets as well as activities associated with

developing new technologies for emerging high growth

markets

To extend our leadership position in compound semi

conductor technologies we have developed several

generations of GaAs HBT and pHEMT process technol

ogies for cellular and multi-market applications that we

can manufacture in our North Carolina and U.K fabri

cation facilities During fiscal 2011 we made significant

progress in the development of high-performance

power pHEMT technology that is expected to enable

state-of-the-art efficiencies for our future cellular power

amplifiers We also continued to develop next-gener

ation backend technology that will be applied to both

HBT and pHEMT processes to increase integration

reduce die size and improve performance

We continue to develop and release new GaN-based

products and invest in new GaN process technologies to

exploit GaNs performance advantages across existing

and new product categories The inherent wide band

gap high electron mobility and high breakdown voltage

characteristics of GaN semiconductor devices offer sig

nificant performance advantages versus competing

technologies Last year we qualified and production

released our second GaN semiconductor process which

has optimized linearity performance Current RF/micro

wave GaN process technology development is focused

on third generation technology that optimizes gain and

efficiency and incorporates our latest process improve

ments for improved repeatability and yield We are also

developing other advanced GaN process technologies

that target other applications where we anticipate GaN

devices will provide disruptive performance advantage

and deliver meaningful energy savings in end-market

products

We continue to develop and qualify technologies made

available to us from key suppliers where we can leverage

our proprietary design methods intellectual property

lP and unique expertise to improve performance

reduce size or reduce the cost of our products During

fiscal 2011 we increasingly used silicon-on-insulator

501 technology in our expanding portfolio of RF power

switch products Additionally we released several inno

vative 501-based RF attenuators that provide substan

tial reduction in complexity and improved performance

when compared to conventional discrete product

approaches

In the area of packagingtechnologies we are developing

and qualifying copper-based packaging technologies

that allow us to improve performance nd reduce or

replace gold in our products We also developed qual

ified and began production of our first products using

wafer level chip scale packaging WLCSP technology

WLCSP technology eliminates wire bonds reduces the

size and component height and represents lower cost

packaging alternative for many of our products

During fiscal 2011 we made progress in our concen

trated photovoltaic CPV solar cell development pro

gram Working with the U.S Department of Energys

National Renewable Energy Laboratory NREL we dem
onstrated world-class performance for dual-junction

solar cells manufactured in our high volume six inch

GaAs wafer production facility We have leveraged our

extensive knowledge in high volume test and semicon

ductor device reliability testing to develop CPV device

characterization and reliability test capabilities that are

unique within the PV industry We believe that our high-

volume semiconductor production facilities and manu

facturing experience will enable low-cost production of

high efficiency CPV cells to meet the expanding global

needs for clean renewable energy

In fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 we incurred

approximately $141.1 million $139.0 million and

$170.8 million respectively in research and develop

ment expenses Primarily as result of our strategic

decision to reduce or eliminate our investment in wire

less systems during fiscal 2009 research and devel

opment headcount and spending dollars decreased in

fiscal 2010 We are continuing to invest in new RF

component products and new process technologies in

support of our growth and diversification goals

Competition

We operate in very competitive industry characterized

by rapid advances in technology and new product intro

ductions Our competitiveness depends on our abilityto

improve our products and processes faster than our

competitors anticipate changing customer require

ments and successfully develop and launch new
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products while reducing our costs Our competitiveness

is also affected by the quality of our customer service

and technical support and our ability to design custom

ized products that address each customers particular

requirements within the customers cost limitations

Many of our current and potential competitors have

entrenched market positions and customer relation

ships established patents copyrights and other intel

lectual property rights and substantial technological

capabilities In some cases our competitors are also

our customers or suppliers Additionally many of our

competitors may have significantly greater financial

technical manufacturing and marketing resources than

we do which may allow them to implement new tech

nologies and develop new products more quickly than

we can

Intellectual Property

We value intellectual property and actively seek oppor

tunities to further protect and advance our business

interests by developing and using our proprietary IR

Such IP includes patents copyrights trademarks and

trade secrets We have also implemented processes

and policies designed to encourage IP development

while mitigating any IP misappropriation risks

Patent applications are filed within the U.S and in other

countries where we have market presence On occa

sion some applications do not mature into patents for

various reasons including but not limited to rejections

based on prior art We also continue to acquire patents

through acquisitions or direct prosecution efforts We

believe the scope of our patents is sufficient to protect

our business and our business is not dependent on

single patent or application

Our business including significant percentage of our

patents is focused on RFcommunication devices com

ponents sub-components systems software and pro

cesses The duration of our most relevant patents is

sufficient to support our business especially in view of

the limited market life of many of our products As we

improve upon existing products and invent new ones

patents are acquired to further enhance our return on

investment in products that utilize these inventions

In our continuing endeavor to create strong brands for

our products and services we federally register trade

marks service marks and trade names that distinguish

our products and services in the market We diligently

monitor these marks for their proper and intended use

We also protect our interest in proprietary information

including business strategies unpatented inventions

formulae processes and other business information

that provide competitive advantage Such information

is closely monitored and made available only to those

employees whose responsibilities require access to the

information

Seasonality

Sales of our products are often subject to seasonal

fluctuations This primarily reflects the seasonal

demand fluctuations for the end-products such as

mobile handsets that incorporate our components If

anticipated sales or shipments do not occur when

expected expenses and inventory levels in that quarter

can be disproportionately high and our results of oper

ations for that quarter and potentially for future quar

ters may be adversely affected

Backlog

Due to industry practice and our experience we do not

believe that backlog as of any particular date is indic

ative of future results Our sales are the result of con

sumption of standard and custom products from RFMD

owned finished goods inventory at certain customers

hub locations and from purchase orders for delivery of

standard and custom products The quantities projected

for consumption of hub inventory and quantities on

purchase orders as well as the shipment schedules

are frequently revised within agreed-upon lead times to

reflect changes in the specific customers needs As

industry practice allows customers to cancel orders with

limited advance notice prior to shipment and with little

or no penalty we believe that backlog as of any partic

ular date may not be reliable indicator of our future

revenue levels

Employees

On April 2011 we had 3726 employees We believe

that our future prospects will depend in part on our

ability to continue to attract and retain skilled technical

marketing and management personnel Competition for

such personnel is intense and the number of persons

with relevant experience particularly in RF engineering

product design and technical marketing is limited None

of our U.S employees are represented by labor union

number of our European-based employees less than

5% of our global workforce as of April 2011 are

subject to collective bargaining-type arrangements

and we have never experienced any work stoppage

We believe that our current employee relations are good

Geographic Financial Summary

summary of our operations by geographic area is as

follows in thousands

FIscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Sates

United States

International

Long-lived tangible

assets

United States

International

Sales for geographic disclosure purposes are based on

the bill to address of the customer The bill to

address is not always an accurate representation of

$156746 $151673 $159885

895010 826720 726621

$148745 $178012 $224461

60733 69073 90666
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the location of final consumption of our products Of our

total international revenue for fiscal 2011 approxi

mately 40% $418.2 million was attributable to cus

tomers in China 14% $144.9 million was attributable

to customers in Taiwan 14% $143.4 million was attrib

utable to customers in India and 7% $69.3 million was

attributable to customers in Korea

Long-lived tangible assets primarily include property and

equipment At April 2011 approximately $55.2 mil

lion or 26% of our total property and equipment was

located in China

For the risks associated with these foreign operations

see our risk factor entitled We are subject to risks from

international sales and operations contained below in

Item 1A Risk Factors

Environmental Matters

By virtue of operating our MBE and wafer fabrication

facilities we are subject to variety of extensive and

changing federal state and local governmental laws

regulations and ordinances related to the use storage

discharge and disposal of toxic volatile or otherwise

hazardous chemicals used in the manufacturing pro

cess Any failure to comply with such requirements

currently in effect or subsequently adopted could result

in the imposition of fines upon us the suspension of

production or cessation of operations the occurrence

of which could have an adverse impact upon our capital

expenditures earnings and competitive position In

addition such requirements could restrict our ability

to expand our facilities or require us to acquire costly

equipment or incur other significant expenses to comply

with environmental regulations We believe that costs

arising from existing environmental laws will not have

material adverse effect on our financial position or

results of operations We are an ISO 140012004 cer

tified manufacturer with comprehensive Environmen

tal Management System EMS in place in order to help

ensure control of the environmental aspects of the

manufacturing process Our EMS mandates compliance

and establishes appropriate checks and balances to

minimize the potential for non-compliance with environ

mental laws and regulations

We actively monitor the hazardous materials that are

used in the manufacture assembly and testing of our

products particularly materials that are retained in the

final product We have developed specific restrictions on

the content of certain hazardous materials in our prod

ucts as well as those of our suppliers and outsourced

manufacturers and subcontractors This helps to ensure

that our products are compliant with the requirements of

the markets into which the products will be sold

There can be no assurance that the environmental laws

will not become more stringent in the future or that we

will not incur significant costs in the future in order to

comply with these laws We do not currently anticipate

any material capital expenditures for environmental con

trol facilities for the remainder of fiscal 2012 or fiscal

2013

Access to Public Information

We make available free of charge through our website

http//www.rfmd.com our annual and quarterly

reports on Forms 10-K and 10-Q including related fil

ings in XBRL format and current reports on Form 8-K

and amendments to these reports filed or furnished

pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practica

ble after we electronically file these reports with or

furnish them to the Securities and Exchange Commis

sion SEC The public may also request copy of our

forms filed with the SEC without charge upon written

request directed to

Investor Relations Department

RF Micro Devices Inc

7628 Thorndike Road

Greensboro NC 27409-9421

The information contained on or that can be accessed

through our website is not incorporated by reference

into this Annual Report on Form 10-K We have included

our website address as factual reference and do not

intend it as an active link to our website

In addition the SEC maintains an Internet site thaf

contains reports proxy and information statements

and other information regarding issuers that file elec

tronically with the SEC at http//www.sec.gov You may

also read and copy any documents that we file with the

SEC at the SECs Public Reference Room located at

100 Street N.E Room 1580 Washington D.C

20549 Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for

information on the operation of the Public Reference

Room
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ITEM IA RISK FACTORS

Our operating results fluctuate

Our revenue earnings margins and other operating

results have fluctuated significantly in the past and

may fluctuate significantly in the future If demand for

our products fluctuates as result of economic condi

tions or for other reasons our revenue and profitability

could be impacted Our future operating results will

depend on many factors including but not limited to

the following

changes in business and economic conditions

including downturns in the semiconductor industry

and the overall economy

changes in consumer confidence caused by changes

in market conditions including changes in the credit

markets expectations for inflation unemployment

levels and energy or other commodity prices

our ability to accurately predict market requirements

and evolving industry standards in timely manner

our ability to accurately predict customer demand and

thereby avoid the possibility of obsolete inventory

which would reduce our profit margins

the abilityof third partyfoundries assembly test and

tape and reel partners to handle our products in

timely and cost-effective manner that meets our cus

tomers requirements

our customers and distributors abilityto manage the

inventory that they hold and to forecast their demand
our ability to achieve cost savings and improve yields

and margins on our new and existing products

our ability to respond to downward pressure on the

average selling prices of our products caused by our

customers or our competitors and

our ability to utilize our capacity efficiently or acquire

additional capacity in response to customer demand

It is likely that our future operating results could be

adversely affected by one or more of the factors set

forth above or other similar factors If our future oper

ating results are below the expectations of stock market

analysts or our investors our stock price may decline

Our operating results may be adversely impacted by

the inability of certain of our customers to access

their traditional sources of credit to finance the pur

chase of products from us which could lead them to

reduce their level of purchases or seek credit or other

accommodations from us

The inability of our customers to access capital effi

ciently could cause disruptions in their businesses

thereby negatively impacting ours For example if our

customers or channel partners do not have sufficient

liquidity they could reduce or limit new purchases which

could result in lower demand for our products or place us

at risk for any trade credit we have extended to them if

they are unable to repay us This risk may increase if

general economic downturn materially impacts our cus

tomers and they are not able to manage their business

risks adequately or do not properly disclose their finan

cial condition to us

Our industrys technology changes rapidly

We design and manufacture high-performance semicon

ductor components for wireless applications Our mar

kets are characterized by the frequent introduction of

new products and services in response to evolving

product and process technologies and consumer

demand for greater functionality lower costs smaller

products and better performance As result we have

experienced and will continue to experience some prod

uct design obsolescence We expect our customers

demands for improvements in product performance to

continue which means that we must continue to

improve our product designs and develop new products

that may use new technologies It is possible that com

peting technologies will emerge that permit the manu

facture of lCs that are superior to the products we make

under existing processes If that happens and we cannot

design products using that technology or develop com

petitive products our operating results will be adversely

affected

We depend on few large customers for substantial

portion of our revenue

substantial portion of our revenue comes from large

purchases by small number of customers Our future

operating results depend on both the success of our

largest customers and on our success in diversifying our

products and customer base We are focusing on

diversification strategy that includes growing our market

share outside of our largest cellular handset customer

During fiscal 2011 we expanded our customer base as

our largest customer Nokia represented approximately

39% of our total revenue in fiscal 2011 as compared to

55% of our total revenue in fiscal 2010

We typically manufacture custom products on an exclu

sive basis for individual customers for negotiated

period of time The concentration of our revenue with

relatively small number of customers makes us par

ticularly dependent on factors affecting those custom

ers For example if demand for their products

decreases they may stop purchasing our products

and our operating results would suffer Most of our

customers can cease incorporating our products into

their products with little notice to us and with little or no

penalty The loss of large customer and failure to add

new customers to replace lost revenue would have

material adverse effect on our business financial con

dition and results of operations

We operate in very competitive industry and must

continue to implement innovative technologies

We compete with several companies primarily engaged

in the business of designing manufacturing and selling

RF components as well as suppliers of discrete prod

ucts such as transistors capacitors and resistors Sev

eral of our competitors either have GaAs HBT process

technology or are developing GaAs HBT or new fabrica

tion processes Foundry services are readily available

for GaAs I-IBT processes which may enable new com

petitors without their own fabrication facilities

10



RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011

Customers could develop products that compete with or

replace our products decision by any of our large

customers to design and manufacture lCs internally

could have an adverse effect on our operating results

Increased competition could mean lower prices for our

products reduced demand for our products and cor

responding reduction in our ability to recover develop

ment engineering and manufacturing costs

Many of our existing and potential competitors have

entrenched market positions historical affiliations with

OEMs considerable internal manufacturing capacity

established IP rights and substantial technological

capabilities Many of our existing and potential compet

itors may have greater financial technical manufactur

ing or marketing resources than we do We cannot be

sure that we will be able to compete successfully with

our competitors

Our operating results are substantially dependent on

development of new products

Our future success will depend on our ability to develop

new product solutions for existing and new markets We

must introduce new products in timely and cost-effec

tive manner and secure production orders from our

customers The development of new products is highly

complex process and we have experienced delays in

completing the development and introduction of new

products at times in the past Our successful product

development depends on number of factors including

the following

the accuracy of our prediction of market requirements

and evolving standards

our ability to design products that meet our custom

ers cost size and performance requirements

acceptance of our new product designs

the availability of qualified product designers

our timely completion and execution of product

designs and ramp of new products according to our

customers needs with acceptable manufacturing

yields

acceptance of our customers products bythe market

and the variability of the life cycle of such

products and

our ability to successfully design develop manufac

ture and integrate new components

We may not be able to design and introduce new prod

ucts in timely or cost-efficient manner and our new

products may fail to meet the requirements of the mar
ket or our customers In that case we likely will not

reach the expected level of production orders which

could adversely affect our operating results Even when

design win is achieved our success is not assured

Design wins may require significant expenditures by us

and typically precede volume revenue by six to nine

months or more The actual value of design win to

us will ultimately depend on the commercial success of

our customers product

Decisions about the scope of operations of our busi

ness could affect our results of operations and finan

cial condition

Changes in the business environment could lead to

changes in our decisions about the scope of operations

of our business and these changes could result in

restructuring and asset impairment charges Factors

that could cause actual results to differ materially from

our expectations with regard to changing the scope of

our operations include

timing and execution of plans and programs that may

be subject to local labor law requirements including

consultation with appropriate work councils

changes in assumptions related to severance and

post-retirement costs

future divestitures

new business initiatives and changes in product road-

map development and manufacturing

changes in employment levels and turnover rates

changes in product demand and the business

environment and

changes in the fair value of certain long-lived assets

We face risks associated with the operation of our

manufacturing facilities

We operate an MBE facility and wafer fabrication

facility in Greensboro North Carolina as well as wafer

fabrication facility
in Newton Aycliffe U.K We currently

use several international and domestic assembly sup
pliers as well as internal assembly facilities in China

the U.S and Germany to assemble and test our prod

ucts We currently have our own test and tape and reel

facilities located in Greensboro North Carolina and

China and we also utilize contract suppliers and part

ners in Asia to test our products

number of factors will affect the future success of our

facilities including the following

demand for our products

our ability to adjust production capacity in timely

fashion in response to changes in demand for our

products

our ability to generate revenue in amounts that cover

the significant fixed costs of operating the facilities

our ability to qualify our facilities for new products in

timely manner

the availability of raw materials and the impact of the

volatility of commodity pricing on raw materials

including GaAs substrates gold and high purity

source materials such as gallium aluminum arsenic

indium silicon phosphorous and beryllium

our manufacturing cycle times

our manufacturing yields

the political and economic risks associated with the

increased reliance on our manufacturing operations

in China U.K and Germany

our heavy reliance on our internal facilities

our heavy reliance on our wafer fabrication facilities

located in the same geographic area

our ability to hire train and manage qualified produc

tion personnel

11
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our compliance with applicable environmental and

other laws and regulations

our ability to avoid prolonged periods of down-time in

our facilities for any reason and

the occurrence of natural disasters anywhere in the

world which could directly or indirectly affect our

supply chain such as the recent earthquake and

tsunami in Japan

The recent earthquake and tsunami in Japan and the

aftermath have created significant economic uncer

tainty in that country While we do not have manufac

turing operations in Japan we will continue to monitor

the rapidly developing situation in Japan and its poten

tial impact on our business

If we experience poor manufacturing yields our oper

ating results may suffer

Our products are very complex Each product has

unique design and is fabricated using semiconductor

process technologies that are highly complex In many

cases the products are assembled in customized pack

ages Our products many of which consist of multiple

components in single package feature enhanced

levels of integration and complexity Our customers

insist that our products be designed to meet their exact

specifications for quality performance and reliability

Our manufacturing yield is combination of yields

across the entire supply chain including wafer fabrica

tion assembly and test yields Due to the complexity of

our products we periodically experience difficulties in

achieving acceptable yields on certain new and existing

products

Our customers also test our components once they have

been assembled into their products The number of

usable products that result from our production process

can fluctuate as result of many factors including the

following

design errors

defects in photomasks which are used to print cir

cuits on wafer

minute impurities in materials used

contamination of the manufacturing environment

equipment failure or variations in the manufacturing

processes

losses from broken wafers or other human error and

defects in packaging

We constantly seek to improve our manufacturing yields

Typically for given level of sales when our yields

improve our gross margins improve and when our

yields decrease our unit costs are higher our margins

are lower and our operating results are adversely

affected

Industry overcapacity and current macroeconomic con
ditions could cause us to underutilize our manufactur

ing facilities and have material adverse effect on

our financial performance

It is difficult to predict future growth or decline in the

demand for our products which makes it very difficult to

estimate requirements for production capacity In recent

years we have added significant capacitythrough acqui

sitions as well as by expanding capacity at our existing

wafer fabrication facilities During the second half of

fiscal 2009 we initiated restructuring to reduce man

ufacturing capacity and costs and operating expenses

due primarily to lower demand for our products resulting

from the global economic slowdown

In the past capacity additions by us and our competitors

sometimes exceeded demand requirements leading to

oversupply situations Fluctuations in the growth rate of

industry capacity relative to the growth rate in demand

for our products contribute to cyclicality in the semicon

ductor market This is currently putting and may in the

future put pressure on our average selling prices and

have material adverse effect on us

As many of our manufacturing costs are fixed these

costs cannot be reduced in proportion to the reduced

revenues experienced during periods in which we under

utilize our manufacturing facilities as result of reduced

demand If the demand for our products is not consis

tent with our expectations underutilization of our man

ufacturing facilities may have material adverse effect

on our operating results

In the second half of fiscal 2009 due to the decrease in

orders from our customers resulting from the global

economic slowdown we reduced our manufacturing

output in order to reduce our inventory levels and

increase our cash flow This action resulted in the

underutilization of our manufacturing facilities which

in turn led to large unfavorable manufacturing variances

and negative impacts on our margins and results of

operations In fiscal years 2011 and 2010 our demand

increased and as result our factory utilization

improved

We are subject to increased inventory risks and costs

because we build our products based on forecasts

provided by customers before receiving purchase

orders for the products

In order to ensure availability of our products for some of

our largest customers we start the manufacturing of our

products in advance of receiving purchase orders based

on forecasts provided by these customers However

these forecasts do not represent binding purchase com
mitments and we do not recognize sales for these

products until they are shipped to or consumed by the

customer As result we incur inventory and manufac

turing costs in advance of anticipated sales Because

demand for our products may not materialize manufac

turing based on forecasts subjects us to increased risks

of high inventory carrying costs increased obsoles

cence and increased operating costs These inventory

risks are exacerbated when our customers purchase

indirectly through contract manufacturers or hold com

ponent inventory levels greater than their consumption

rate because this causes us to have less visibility

regarding the accumulated levels of inventory for such

customers If product demand decreases or we fail to
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forecast demand accurately we could be required to

write-off inventory which would have negative impact

on our gross margin

We depend heavily on third parties

We purchase numerous component parts substrates

and silicon-based products from external suppliers The

use of external suppliers involves number of risks

including the possibility of material disruptions in the

supply of key components and the lack of control over

delivery schedules capacity constraints manufacturing

yields quality and fabrication costs

We currently use several external manufacturing suppliers

to supplement our internal manufacturing capabilities We

believe all of our key vendors and suppliers are compliant

with applicable ISO 9000 or QS 9000 standards However

if these vendors processes vary in
reliability or quality they

could negatively affect our products and therefore our

results of operations

We are increasingly selling certain of our products

through channel partners and our inability to manage

channel partner or customer relationship may have

an adverse effect on our business financial condition

and results of operations

We are focused on developing relationships with chan

nel and alliance partners to help us sell our products

These channel and alliance partners typically are large

companies that provide system reference designs for

OEMs and ODMs that include their baseband and other

complementary products Channel and alliance part

ners look to us and our competitors to provide RF

products to their customers as part of the overall sys

tem design In these relationships we generally do not

control the customer relationship As result we are

dependent upon the channel partner as the prime con

tractor to appropriately manage the end customer The

failure of the channel partner to do so can lead to

situations where projects are delayed modified or ter

minated for reasons outside our control The channel

and alliance partners may be in different business or

we may be their customer or competitor therefore we

must balance our interest in obtaining new business

with competitive and other factors Our inability to man

age these relationships could have an adverse effect on

our business financial condition and results of

operations

We are subject to risks from international sales and

operations

We operate globally with sales offices and research and

development activities as well as manufacturing

assembly and testing facilities in multiple countries

As result we are subject to risks and factors associ

ated with doing business outside the U.S Global oper

ations involve inherent risks that include currency

controls and fluctuations as well as tariff import and

other related restrictions and regulations
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Sales to customers located outside the U.S accounted

for approximately 85% of our revenue in fiscal 2011 We

expect that revenue from international sales will con

tinue to be significant part of our total revenue

Because the majority of our foreign sales are denomi

nated in U.S dollars our products become less price-

competitive in countries with currencies that are low or

are declining in value against the U.S dollar Also we

cannot be sure that our international customers will

continue to accept orders denominated in U.S dollars

The majority of our assembly test and tape and reel

vendors are located in Asia This subjects us to regula

tory geopolitical and other risks of conducting business

outside the U.S We do the majority of our business with

our foreign assemblers in U.S dollars Our manufactur

ing costs could increase in countries with currencies

that are increasing in value against the U.S dollar Also

we cannot be sure that our international manufacturing

suppliers will continue to accept orders denominated in

U.S dollars

In addition if terrorist activity armed conflict civil or

military unrest or political instability occur in the U.S or

other locations such events may disrupt manufacturing

assembly logistics security and communications and

could also result in reduced demand for our products

Pandemics and similar major health concerns could also

adversely affect our business and our customer order

patterns We could also be affected if lahor issues

disrupt our tranportation or manufacturing arrange

ments or those of our customers or suppliers On

worldwide basis we regularly review our key infrastruc

ture systems services and suppliers both internally

and externally to seek to identify significant vulnerabil

ities as well as areas of potential business impact if

disruptive event were to occur Once identified we

assess the risks and as we consider it to be appropri

ate we initiate actions intended to minimize the risks

and their potential impact However there can be np

assurance that we have identified all significant risks or

that we can mitigate all identified risks with reasonable

effort

In order to compete we must attract retain and

motivate key employees and our failure to do so

could harm our results of operations

In order to compete we must

hire and retain qualified people with experience in RF

engineering IC design and technical marketing and

support

continue to develop leaders for key business units

and functions

expand our presence in international locations and

adapt to cultural norms in foreign locations and

train and motivate our employee base

Our future operating results and success may depend

on keeping key technical personnel and management

and expanding our sales and marketing research and

development and administrative support We do not

have employment agreements with the majority of our
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employees We must also continue to attract qualified

personnel The competition for qualified personnel is

intense and the number of people with experience

particularly in RF engineering IC design and technical

marketing and support is limited We cannot be sure

that we will be able to attract and retain other skilled

personnel in the future

We may engage in future acquisitions that dilute our

shareholders ownership and cause us to incur debt

and assume contingent liabilities

As part of our business strategy we expect to continue

to review potential acquisitions that could complement

our current product offerings augment our market cov

erage or enhance our technical capabilities or that may

otherwise offer growth or margin improvement oppor

tunities While we currently have no definitive agree

ments providing for any such acquisitions we may

acquire businesses products or technologies in the

future In the event of such future acquisitions we could

issue equity securities that would dilute our current

shareholders ownership incur substantial debt or other

financial obligations or assume contingent liabilities

Such actions by us could seriously harm our results

of operations or the price of our common stock Acqui

sitions also entail numerous other risks that could

adversely affect our business results of operations

and financial condition including

unanticipated costs capital expenditures or working

capital requirements associated with the acquisition

acquisition-related charges and amortization of

acquired technology and other intangibles that could

negatively affect our reported results of operations

diversion of managements attention from our

business

injury to existing business relationships with suppli

ers and customers

failure to successfully integrate acquired businesses

operations products technologies and personnel and

unrealized expected synergies

The price of our common stock has fluctuated widely

in the past and may fluctuate widely in the future

Our common stock which is traded on the NASDAQ
Global Select Market has experienced and may con

tinue to experience significant price and volume fluctu

ations that could adversely affect the market price of our

common stock without regard to our operating perfor

mance In addition we believe that factors such as

quarterly fluctuations in financial results financial per

formance below analysts estimates and activities or

developments affecting our customers and other pub

licly traded companies in the semiconductor industry

could cause the price of our common stock to fluctuate

substantially In addition in recent periods our common

stock the stock market in general and the market for

shares of semiconductor industry-related stocks in par

ticular have experienced extreme price fluctuations

which have often been unrelated to the operating per

formance of the affected companies Any similar

fluctuations in the future could adversely affect the

market price of our common stock If our stock price

declines in the future it may be more difficult to raise

capital or we may be unable to do so at all which could

have material adverse impact on our business and

results of operations

We rely on our intellectual property portfolio and may
face claims of infringement

Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain

patents trademarks and copyrights maintain trade

secret protection and operate our business without

infringing on the proprietary rights of other parties

Because of the volume of creative works rendered

throughout our offices some of these works may not

receive the benefit of federal registration In addition

the wireless and semiconductor industries are subject

to frequent litigation often regarding patent and other

intellectual property rights Leading companies and

organizations in these industries have numerous pat

ents that protect their intellectual property rights in

these areas Intellectual property rights litigation can

be expensive to defend and in the event of an adverse

result we could be required to expend significant

resources to pay damages for infringement to develop

non-infringing technology or to obtain licenses to the

technology covered by the litigation We cannot be sure

that we would be successful in such development or that

any such license would be available on commercially

reasonable terms if at all

In addition to patent and copyright protection we also

rely on trade secrets technical know-how and other

unpatented proprietary information relating to our prod

uct development and manufacturing activities We try to

protect this information by entering into confidentiality

agreements with our employees and other parties We

cannot be sure that these agreements will not be

breached that we would have adequate remedies foç

any breach or that our trade secrets and proprietary

know-how will become known or independently discov

ered by others

We may be subject to other lawsuits and claims relat

ing to our products

We cannot be sure that third parties will not assert

product liability or other claims against us our custom

ers or our licensors with respect to existing and future

products Any litigation could result in significant

expense and liability to us and divert the efforts of

our technical and management personnel whether or

not the litigation is determined in our favor or covered by

insurance

We are subject to stringent environmental regulations

We are subject to variety of federal state and local

requirements governing the protection of the environ

ment These environmental regulations include those

related to the use storage handling discharge and

disposal of toxic or otherwise hazardous materials used

in our manufacturing processes change in
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environmental laws or our failure to comply with envi

ronmental laws could subject us to substantial liability

or force us to significantly change our manufacturing

operations In addition under some of these laws and

regulations we could be held financially responsible for

remedial measures if our properties are contaminated

even if we did not cause the contamination In addition

growing concerns about climate change including the

impact of global warming may result in new regulations

with respect to greenhouse gas emissions Our compli

ance with this legislation may result in additional costs

Provisions in our governing documents could discour

age takeovers and prevent shareholders from realizing

an investment premium

Certain provisions of our articles of incorporation and

bylaws could have the effect of making it more difficult

for third party to acquire or discouraging third party

from attempting to acquire control of RFMD These

provisions include the ability of our Board of Directors

to designate the rights and preferences of preferred

stock and issue such shares without shareholder

approval and the requirement of supermajority share

holder approval of certain transactions with parties

affiliated with RFMD Such provisions could limit the

price that certain investors might be willing to pay in the

future for shares of our common stock

On August 10 2001 our Board of Directors adopted

shareholder rights plan pursuant to which uncertifi

cated stock purchase rights were distributed to our

shareholders at rate of one stock purchase right for

each share of common stock held of record as of

August 30 2001 The rights plan is designed to

enhance the Boards ability to prevent an acquirer from

depriving shareholders of the long-term value of their

investment and to protect shareholders against

attempts to acquire us by means of unfair or abusive

takeover tactics The rights become exercisable based

upon certain limited conditions related to acquisitions of

stock tender offers and certain business combination

transactions involving us The existence of the rights

plan may impede takeover of us not supported by the

Board including takeover that may be desired by

majority of our shareholders or involving premium over

the prevailing stock price

Our operating results could vary as result of the

methods estimates and judgments we use in apply

ing our accounting policies

The methods estimates and judgments we use in apply

ing our accounting policies have significant impact on

our results of operations see Critical Accounting Pol

icies and Estimates in Part Il Item of this Form 10-K
Such methods estimates and judgments are by their

nature subject to substantial risks uncertainties and

assumptions and factors may arise over time that lead

us to change our methods estimates and judgments

that could significantly affect our results of operations

Our convertible subordinated debt may have dilutive

effect on our existing shareholders and may have

other adverse effects on our results of operations

On April 2007 we issued $200.0 million aggregate

principal amount of 0.75% Convertible Subordinated

Notes due 2012 the 2012 Notes and $175.0 million

aggregate principal amount of 1.00% Convertible Sub

ordinated Notes due 2014 the 2014 Notes and

together with the 2012 Notes the Notes in private

placement to Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith

Incorporated for resale to qualified institutional buyers

The Notes are convertible into shares of our common
stock under certain circumstances Upon conversion in

lieu of shares of our common stock for each $1000

principal amount of Notes holder will receive an

amount in cash equal to the lesser of $1000 or

ii the conversion value as determined under the appli

cable indentures governing the Notes If the conversion

value exceeds $1000 we also will deliver at our elec

tion cash or common stock or combination of cash

and common stock equivalent to the amount of the

conversion value in excess of the $1000 This election

to deliver cash or common stock if the conversion value

exceeds the conversion price will require us to evaluate

the inclusion of shares in our dilutive earnings per share

calculation based on the treasury stock method in the

event our stock price exceeds $8.05 per share

In fiscal years 2011 and 2010 we purchased and

retired $137.8 million aggregate principal amount of

our 2012 Notes In fiscal years 2010 and 2009 we

purchased and retired $40.1 million aggregate principal

amount of our 2014 Notes

In the future we may issue additional equity debt or

convertible securities to raise capital If we do so the

percentage ownership of RFMD held by existing share

holders would be further reduced and existing share

holders may experience significant dilution In addition

new investors in RFMD may demand rights preferences

or privileges that differ from or are senior to those of

our existing shareholders The perceived risk of dilution

associated with the sale of large number of shares

could cause some of our shareholders to sell their

stock thus causing the price of our common stock to

decline Subsequent sales of our common stock in the

open market could also have an adverse effect on the

market price of our common stock

The degree to which we are leveraged could have impor

tant consequences including but not limited to the

following

our ability to obtain additional financing in the future

for working capital capital expenditures acquisi

tions general corporate or other purposes may be

limited

our shareholders interests could be diluted as

result of the shares of our common stock that would

be issued in the event of conversion of our convertible

subordinated notes

we may be more vulnerable to economic downturns

less able to withstand competitive pressures and
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less flexible in responding to changing business and

economic conditions

portion of our cash flow from operations will be

dedicated to the payment of the principal of and

interest on our indebtedness and

our ability to meet our debt payment obligations

particularly at maturity depends on our ability to

generate significant cash flow in the future and we

cannot assure holders that our business will generate

cash flow from operations or that future borrowings

will be available to us in an amount sufficient to

enable us to meet our payment obligations under

our debt and to fund our other liquidity needs

Changes in our effective tax rate may impact our

results of operations

number of factors may increase our future effective

tax rates including the following

the jurisdictions in which profits are determined to be

earned and taxed

the resolution of issues arising from tax audits with

various tax authorities

changes in the valuation of our net deferred tax

assets

adjustments to income taxes upon finalization of

various tax returns

increases in expenses not deductible for tax

purposes

changes in available tax credits

changes in tax laws or the interpretation of such tax

laws and changes in generally accepted accounting

principles and

future decision to repatriate non-U.S earnings for

which we have not previously provided for U.S taxes

Any significant increase in our future effective tax rates

could reduce net income for future periods

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is located in Greensboro

North Carolina where we have two office buildings

leased six-inch wafer production facility owned
an MBE facility leased and research and develop

ment packaging facility leased In Greensboro we also

have four-inch wafer production facility leased that is

idle due to prior restructuring however the offices in

the facility are occupied In addition we have partially

upfitted manufacturing facility leased that is unoccu

pied due to our prior restructuring

We have an assembly and test site located in Beijing

China owned where we assemble and test modules In

Broomfield Colorado leased and Brooksville Florida

owned we have assembly and test sites for highly

customized modules and products including modules

and products that support our aerospace and defense

business

We also have two manufacturing facilities located in

Europe We have wafer fabrication facility in Newton

Aycliffe U.K owned and we have facility capable of

supporting variety of packaging and test technologies

in Nuremberg Germany leased

We also lease space for our design centers in Chandler

Arizona Carlsbad San Jose and Torrance California

Broomfield Colorado Hiawatha Iowa Billerica Massa

chusetts Charlotte North Carolina Richardson Texas

Shanghai China and Norresundby Denmark In addi

tion we lease space for sales and customer support

centers in Beijing Shanghai and Shenzhen China

Reading England Toulouse France Bangalore India

Tokyo Japan Seoul South Korea and Taipei Taiwan

In the opinion of management our properties have been

well-maintained are in sound operating condition and

contain all equipment and facilities necessary to oper

ate at present levels We believe all of our facilities are

suitable and adequate for our present purposes and the

productive capacity in such facilities is either substan

tially being utilized or we expect to further utilize the

facilities as demand warrants

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various legal proceedings and related

actions that have arisen in the ordinary course of our

business that have not been fully adjudicated Our man

agement does not believe that these routine matters

when ultimately concluded and determined will have

material adverse effect on our financial condition liquid

ity or results of operations

ITEM REMOVED AND RESERVED
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PART II

Hifl Low

ITEM MARKfl FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON
Fiscal Year Ended April 2011

EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER MAilERS

AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
First Quarter $6.05 $3.83

SECURITIES Second Quarter 6.25 3.65

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Third Quarter 7.99 5.89

Select Market under the symbol RFMD The table
Fourth Quarter 8.48 6.01

below shows the high and low sales prices of our com
mon stock for the periods indicated as reported by The

Fiscal Year Ended April 2010

NASDAQ Stock Market LLC As of May 13 2011 there First Quarter $3.96 $1.24

were 2164 holders of record of our common stock
Second Quarter 5.85 3.18

Third Quarter 5.24 3.72

Fourth Quarter 5.27 3.76

We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our

common stock We currently intend to retain our earn

ings for use in our business and do not anticipate paying

any cash dividends in the foreseeable future
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

COMPARISON OF YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG RF MICRO DEVICES INC THE NASDAQ COMPOSITE INDEX

AND THE NASDAQ ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS INDEX

$100 invested on 4/1/06 in stock or 3/31/06 in index-including reinvestment of dividends

Notes
The lines represent monthly index levels derived from compounded daily returns assuming reinvestment of all dividends

The indexes are reweighted daily using the market capitalization on the previous trading day

If the monthly interval based on the fiscal year-end ix not trading day the preceding trading day-ia used

The index level for all series was set to $100.00 on April 2006

$120

$100

$80

$60

$40

$20

125.30

106.53

73.87

11doY do 2009 d162006

_____ RF MICRO DEVICES INC NASDAQ COMPOSITE

NASDAQ ELECTRONIC COMPONENTS

Fiscal Year End 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Total Return Index for

RF Micro Devices no 100.00 72.02 31.56 15.84 58.03 73.87

NASDAQ Composite 100.00 106.44 101.14 67.88 107.06 125.30

NASDAQ Electronic Components 100.00 90.78 89.71 59.15 94.48 106.53
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Purchases of Equity Securities

Total Number of

Shares Purchased as Approximate Dollar Value

Total Number Average Part of Publicly of Shares that may yet be

of Shares Price Paid Announced Pians or Purchased Under the

Period Purchased per Share Programs Plans or Programs

January 2011 to January 29 2011 $0.00 $200.0 million

January 30 2011 to February 26
2011 1571647 $7.44 1571647 $188.3 million

February 27 2011 to April 2011 125000 $7.50 125000 $187.4 million

Total 1696647 $7.44 1696647 $187.4 million

On January 25 2011 we announced that our Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to $200.0 million

of our outstanding common stock exclusive of related fees commissions or other expenses from time to time during

period commencing on January 28 2011 and expiring on January 27 2013 This share repurchase program authorizes

us to repurchase shares through solicited or unsolicited transactions in the open market or in privately negotiated

transactions During the fiscal year ended April 2011 we repurchased approximately 1.7 million shares at an

average price of $7.44 on the open market

19



RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011

ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below for the fiscal years indicated were derived from our audited consolidated

financial statements The information should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements

including the notes thereto and with Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations appearing elsewhere in this report

Fiscal Year End 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

In thousands except per share data

Revenue $1051756 978393 886506 956270 $1023615

Operating costs and expenses

Cost of goods sold 662085 623224 669163 681314 666755

Research and development 141097 138960 170778 207362 184979

Marketing and selling 59470 56592 64946 57330 53863

General and administrative 48003 48316 50352 42080 37301

Other operating expense income 1582 4895 8005631 19085 33834

Total operating costs and expenses 912237 871987 1755802 1O07171 909064

Income loss from operations 139519 106406 869296 50901 114551

Interest expense 17140 23997 25893 24533 4583
Interest income 787 1291 5337 29046 9305

Other income expense net 339 1134 98442 3906 32874

Income loss before income taxes

Income tax benefit expense

123505

1053
84834

13815

880008

7896
42482

39088
86399

2983

Net income loss 124558 71019 887904 3394 83416

Net income loss per share

Basic 0.46 0.27 3.38 0.01 0.43

Diluted 0.44 0.25 3.38 0.01 0.39

Shares used in per share calculation

Basic 272575 267349 262493 227270 192137

Diluted 280394 289429 262493 227270 226513

As of Fiscal Year End 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Cash and cash equivalents 131760 104778 172989 129750 228940

Short-term investments 159881 134882 93527 100841 89678

Working capital 465222 396091 418090 480556 467223

Total assets 1025393 1014008 10886421 2O11309 1089634

Long-term debt and capital lease

obligations less current portion 177557 289837 5051622 525082 245709

Shareholders equity 676355 530084 4319621 12961O1 719667

During fiscal 2009 we recorded an impairment charge of $6g6.s million to goodwill and intangibles and restructuring expenses of approximately

$67.1 million due to the adverse macroeconomic business environment We also recorded restructuring expenses of approximately $47.1 million as

result of the restructuring initiated in the first half of fiscal 2009 to reduce investments in wireless systems 5ee Nutes and 10 to the consolidated Rnancial

Statements

Other income expense for fiscal 2009 includes gain of approximately $14.4 million as result of our purchase and retirement of $55.3 million aggregate

principal amount of our convertible subordinated notes due 2010 and 2014 See Note to the consolidated Financial statements

Income tax expense for fiscal 2009 includes the effects of an increase of valuation reserve against foreign and domestic deferred tax assets see Note 11 to

the consolidated Financial statements

Rscal 2008 includes the effects of the acquisitions of Sirenza and Ritronic

Income tax benefit for fiscal 2011 see Note 11 to the consolidated Rnancial statements and fiscal 2008 includes the effects of reduction of valuation

reserve against deferred tax assets

During fiscal 2007 we recorded $33.9 million gain net of restructuring expenses for the sale of substantially all of our Bluefooth assets

During fiscal 2007 we recorded $33.9 million investment impairment charge associated with the announcement of merger of Jazz Semiconductor Inc

with wholly owned subsidiary of Acquicor Technology Inc and our intention to sell our equity interest in Jazz
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ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes forward-

looking statements within the meaning of the safe

harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1995 These forward-looking statements

include but are not limited to statements about our

plans objectives representations and contentions and

are not historical facts and typically are identified by use

of terms such as may will should could

expect plan anticipate believe estimate

predict potential continue and similar words

although some forward-looking statements are

expressed differently You should be aware that the

forward-looking statements included herein represent

managements current judgment and expectations but

our actual results events and performance could differ

materially from those expressed or implied by forward-

looking statements We do not intend to update any of

these forward-looking statements or publicly announce

the results of any revisions to these forward-looking

statements other than as is required under the federal

securities laws Our business is subject to numerous

risks and uncertainties including those relating to vari

ability in our operating results the inability of certain of

our customers or suppliers to access their traditional

sources of credit our industrys rapidly changing tech

nology our dependence on few large customers for

substantial portion of our revenue our ability to imple

ment innovative technologies our ability to bring new

products to market the efficient and successful oper

ation of our wafer fabrication facilities molecular beam

epitaxy facility assembly facilities and test and tape and

reel facilities our ability to adjust production capacity in

timely fashion in response to changes in demand for

our products variability in manufacturing yields indus

try overcapacity and current macroeconomic conditions

inaccurate product forecasts and corresponding inven

tory and manufacturing costs dependence on third

parties and our ability to manage channel partners

and customer relationships our dependence on inter

national sales and operations our ability to attract and

retain skilled personnel and develop leaders the pos

sibility that future acquisitions may dilute our sharehold

ers ownership and cause us to incur debt and assume

contingent liabilities fluctuations in the price of our

common stock claims of infringement on our intellec

tual property portfolio lawsuits and claims relating to

our products and the impact of stringent environmental

regulations These and other risks and uncertainties

which are described in more detail under Item íA Risk

Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and in other

reports and statements that we file with the SEC could

cause actual results and developments to be materiaily

different from those expressed or implied by any of

these forward-looking statements

The following discussion Should be read in conjunction

with and is qualified in its entirety by reference to our

audited consolidated financial statements including

the notes thereto

OVERVIEW

Company

We are recognized global leader in the design and

manufacture of high-performance radio frequency RF
components and compound semiconductor technolo

gies Our products enable worldwide mobility provide

enhanced connectivity and support advanced function

ality in the cellular handset wireless infrastructure

wireless local area network WLAN or WiFi cable tele

vision CATV/broadband Smart Energy/advanced

metering infrastructure AMI and aerospace and

defense markets We are recognized for our diverse

portfolio of semiconductor technologies and RF sys

tems expertise and we are preferred supplier to

the worlds leading mobile device customer premises

and communications equipment providers

Our design and manufacturing expertise encompasses

many semiconductor process technologies which we

access through both internal and external resources

We are leading manufacturer of gallium arsenide

GaAs-based and gallium nitride GaN compound semi

conductors for RF applications We access silicon-based

technologies and small percentage of GaAs through

external foundries Our broad design and manufacturing

resources enable us to deliver products optimized for

performance and cost in order to best meet our cus

tomers performance cost and time-to-market

requirements

Business Segments

We follow Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB

Accounting Standards Codification ASC Topic 280

Segment Reporting FASB ASC Topic 280 which

establishes standards for the way public companies

report information about operating segments in annual

financial statements and in interim reports to share

holders Under FASB ASC Topic 280 the method for

determining what information to report is based on the

way that management organizes the segments within

the company for the chief operating decision maker to

make operating decisions allocate resources and

assess financial performance Although we had two

business units as of April 2011 Cellular Products

Group CPG and Multi-Market Products Group MPG
we report financial information as one operating seg

ment pursuant to the aggregation criteria set forth in

FASB ASC Topic 280

Fiscal 2011 Management Summary
Our key financial highlights for the fiscal year ended

April 2011 are as follows

Our revenue increased 7.5% in fiscal 2011 to

$1051.8 million as compared to $978.4 million in

fiscal 2010 Sales of our cellular products increased

year-over-year driven primarily by customer diversifi

cation and increased demand for new and existing
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products In addition sales of our MPG-related prod

ucts increased primarily due to an increase in

demand for broad range of wireless and wired

applications

Our gross profit was 37.0% of revenue in fiscal 2011

as compared to 36.3% of revenue in fiscal 2010 The

improvement in gross margin reflected our improved

overall manufacturing yields improved factory utiliza

tion rates higher sales of new products with higher

gross margins and improved pricing on externally

sourced raw materials These improvements were

offset partially by increased demand of lower margin

transceivers and erosion in average selling prices

Operating income was $139.5 million in fiscal 2011

as compared to $106.4 million in fiscal 2010 Our

operating income increased primarily due to an

increase in revenue and an increase in gross profit

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FISCAL 2011 VERSUS FISCAL 2010

REVENUE

Our revenue increased in fiscal 2011 as compared to

fiscal 2010 due to an increase in sales of our cellular

products driven primarily by customer diversification and

increased demand for new and existing products In

addition sales of MPG-related products increased pri

marily due to an increase in demand for broad range of

wireless and wired applications Fiscal 2010 revenue

benefited from an additional week versus fiscal 2011

Sales to our largest customer were approximately 39%

of our fiscal 2011 revenue compared to 55% of our

fiscal 2010 revenue Our customer diversification strat

egy has successfully reduced our percentage of sales to

our largest customer and increased our market share

elsewhere particularly with customers throughout Asia

Our diversification strategy is primarily focused on grow

ing our MPG revenue expanding our content in the

cellular front end and increasing our market share at

key customers outside of our largest customer

International shipments amounted to $895.0 million in

fiscal 2011 approximately 85% of revenue compared

to $826.7 million in fiscal 2010 approximately 85% of

revenue Shipments to Asia totaled $807.2 million in

fiscal 2011 approximately 77% of revenue compared

Our net income per diluted share was $0.44 for fiscal

2011 compared to net income per diluted share of

$0.25 for fiscal 2010

We generated positive cash flow from operations of

$213.4 million for fiscal 2011 as compared to

$185.7 million for fiscal 2010 primarily attributable

to improved profitability

Capital expenditures totaled $25.7 million in fiscal

2011 as compared to $8.4 million in fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2011 we purchased and retired total

of $135.5 million aggregate principal amount of our

convertible subordinated notes due 2012 which

resulted in loss of approximately $2.4 million

During fiscal 2011 we repurchased approximately

1.7 million shares of common stockfor approximately

$12.6 million

to $699.0 million in fiscal 2010 approximately 71% of

revenue

OPERATING INCOME

Operating income for fiscal 2011 was approximately

$139.5 million compared to an operating income of

$106.4 million for fiscal 2010 Our operating income

increased primarily due to an increase in revenue and an

increase in gross profit Fiscal 2010 operating expenses

were negatively impacted due to the additional week

included in fiscal 2010 versus fiscal 2011

Cost of Goods Sold

Our cost of goods sold for fiscal 2011 decreased slightly

as percentage of revenue primarily due to improved

factory utilization rates improved pricing on externally

sourced materials and the transition to new products

with an improved cost structure

Research and Development

The increase in research and development expenses

was primarily due to increased headcount focused on

new product development for 3G/4G smartphone appli

cations In addition we resumed our contributions to the

401k plan in fiscal 2011 after suspending these

The following table presents summary of our results of operations for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 Our fiscal

2011 year consists of 52 weeks compared to our fiscal 2010 year which consisted of 53 weeks This additional week in

fiscal 2010 impacts the year-over-year analysis

In thousands except percentages 2011

%of

Revenue

of Increase Percentage

2010 Revenue Decrease Change

Revenue $1051756 100.0% $978393 100.0% $73363 7.5%

Cost of goods sold 662085 63.0 623224 63.7 38861 6.2

Research and development 141097 13.4 138960 14.2 2137 1.5

Marketing and selling 59470 5.7 56592 5.8 2878 5.1

General and administrative 48003 4.5 48316 4.9 313 0.6

Other operating expense 1582 0.1 4895 0.5 3313 67.7

Operating Wcorne 139519 13.3% $106406 10.9% 33113 31.1
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contributions for the majority of fiscal 2010 due to the

adverse macroeconomic business environment These

increases were partially offset by decreased deprecia

tion expense

Marketing and Selling

The increase in marketing and selling expenses was

primarily due to increased headcount expense and

related personnel expenses

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses remained rela

tively consistent for fiscal 2011 as compared to fiscal

2010

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FISCAL 2010 VERSUS FISCAL 2009

Other Operating Expense

Other operating expenses decreased primarily due to

lower restructuring charges In fiscal 2011 we recorded

restructuring charges of approximately $0.6 million

related to impaired assets and lease and other contract

termination costs We recorded restructuring charges of

approximately $3.8 million in fiscal 2010 related to one
time employee termination expenses impaired assets

and lease and other contract termination costs see
Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The following table presents summary of our results of operations for fiscal years 2010 and 2009

REVENUE

Our revenue increased in fiscal 2010 as compared to

fiscal 2009 due to an increase in sales of our cellular

products driven primarily by customer diversification and

increased demand for our new products In addition

fiscal 2010 was 53-week fiscal year in contrast to

fiscal 2009 which was 52-week fiscal year These

increases to revenue were partially offset by year-o

ver-year declines in demand for our CAN line amplifiers

driven primarily by the continued impact of the global

economic slowdown on this line of business during the

first half of fiscal 2010

Sales to our largest customer were approximately 55%

of our fiscal 2010 revenue compared to 52% of our

fiscal 2009 revenue Although our largest customers

percentage of sales increased year-over-year their per

centage of sales declined to approximately 50% of fiscal

2010 fourth quarter revenue Our customer diversifica

tion strategy reduced our percentage of sales to our

largest customer and increased our market share else

where particularly at customers throughout Asia

International shipments amounted to $826.7 million in

fiscal 2010 approximately 85% of revenue compared

to $726.6 million in fiscal 2009 approximately 82% of

revenue Shipments to Asia totaled $699.0 million in

fiscal 2010 approximately 71% of revenue compared

to $554.2 million in fiscal 2009 approximately 63% of

revenue

OPERATING INCOME LOSS

Operating income was approximately $106.4 million for

fiscal 2010 compared to an operating loss of

$869.3 million for fiscal 2009 Our operating income

increased due to an increase in revenue and an increase

in gross profit Additionally our fiscal 2010 operating

expenses were lower due to the fiscal 2009 strategic

restructurings see Note 10 to the Consolidated Finan

cial Statements

In fiscal 2009 we recorded an impairment charge of

$686.5 million to goodwill and other intangibles as

result of the deteriorating global macroeconomic condi

tions and we recorded restructuring expenses of approx

imately $114.2 million

Cost of Goods Sold

Our cost of goods sold for fiscal 2010 decreased as

percentage of revenue primarily due to cost savings

initiatives resulting from the fiscal 2009 restructuring

activities improved factory utilization rates resulting

from increased demand and improved pricing on exter

nally-sourced raw materials Our cost of goods sold for

fiscal 2009 was negatively impacted by an increase in

inventory reserves as well as the under-absorption of

fixed manufacturing costs which resulted from the lower

of of Increase Percentage

In thousands except percentages 2010 Revenue 2009 Revenue Decrease Change

Revenue $978393 100.0% 886506 100.0% 91887 10.4%

Cost of goods sold 623224 63.7 669163 75.5 45939 6.9

Research and development 138960 14.2 170778 19.3 31818 18.6

Marketing and selling 56592 5.8 64946 7.3 8354 12.9

General and administrative 48316 4.9 50352 5.7 2036 4.0

Goodwill impairment 619551 69.9 619551 100.0

Other operating expense 4895 0.5 181012 20.4 176117

975702

97.3

112.2Operating income loss $106406 10.9% $869296 98.1%
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demand for our products attributable primarily to the

overall global economic slowdown

Research and Development

The decrease in research and development expenses

was primarily due to the decrease in headcount and

related personnel expense associated with our strategic

decision to reduce or eliminate our investment in wire

less systems This decrease was partially offset by our

continued investments in RF components

Marketing and Selling

The decrease in marketing and selling expenses was

primarily due to the decrease in headcount and related

personnel expense as result of the fiscal 2009

restructuring activities In addition marketing and sell

ing expense decreased as result of lower intangible

amortization expense as compared to the correspond

ing period of fiscal 2009 due to the impairment of

certain customer relationship intangibles during fiscal

2009 see Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

General and AdministratIve

General and administrative expenses for fiscal 2010

decreased slightly when compared to fiscal 2009 pri

marily due to decrease in headcount and related

personnel expense and other administrative costs asso

ciated with the fiscal 2009 restructuring activities

Other Operating Expense

During fiscal 2009 we initiated restructuring to reduce

our manufacturing capacities and costs and operating

expenses due primarily to lower demand for our prod

ucts in the second half of fiscal 2009 resulting from the

global economic slowdown The restructuring decreased

our workforce and impaired certain property and equip

ment As result of these restructuring activities we

recorded $2.8 million and $67.1 million of expenses in

fiscal years 2010 and 2009 respectively The accrued

restructuring balance which primarily related to lease

and other contracts was $9.7 million and $12.8 million

as of April 2010 and March 28 2009 respectively As

of April 2010 the restructuring associated with the

adverse macroeconomic business environment was

substantially complete

In early fiscal 2009 we initiated restructuring to

reduce investments in wireless systems including cel

lular transceivers and GPS solutions in order to focus

on our RF component opportunities Additionally we

consolidated the majority of our production test facilities

in an effort to reduce cycle time better serve our cus

tomer base and improve our overall profitability As

result of these restructuring activities we recorded

$1.0 million and $47.1 million of expenses for fiscal

years 2010 and 2009 respectively The accrued

restructuring balance which primarily related to lease

and other contracts was $1.6 million and $3.2 million

as of April 2010 and March 28 2009 respectively As

of April 2010 the restructuring to reduce or eliminate

our investments in wireless systems was substantially

complete

At the end of fiscal 2009 we estimated annualized

manufacturing costs and operating expenses would

be reduced by approximately $140.0 million as result

of our restructuring activities The annualized expense

reductions were achieved as expected in fiscal 2010

OTHER EXPENSE INCOME AND INCOME TAXES

FOR FISCAL YEARS 2011 2010 AND 2009

Interest expense

Interest expense has decreased as result of lower

debt balances During fiscal 2011 we purchased and

retired $135.5 million aggregate principal amount of our

convertible subordinated notes due 2012 In addition

the remaining $10.0 million aggregate principal amount

of our 1.50% convertible subordinated notes due 2010

the 2010 Notes matured and was repaid during

fiscal 2011 In fiscal 2010 we purchased and retired

$207.1 million aggregate principal amount of our con

vertible subordinated notes due 2010 2012 and

2014 and in fiscal 2009 we purchased and retired

$55.3 million aggregate principal amount of our con

vertible subordinated notes due 2010 and 2014

Interest income

Interest income decreased during fiscal 2011 and fiscal

2010 primarily because of lower prevailing interest

rates which were approximately 0.3% for fiscal 2011
0.5% for fiscal 2010 and 1.9% for fiscal 2009

Loss gain on the retirement of convertible subordinated

notes

During fiscal 2011 we purchased and retired

$135.5 million aggregate principal amount of our con

vertible subordinated notes due 2012 which resulted in

loss of approximately $2.4 million In fiscal 2010 we

purchased and-retired $207.1 million aggregate princi

pal amount of our 2010 2012 and 2014 Notes which

resulted in net gain of approximately $1.5 million and

in fiscal 2009 we purchased and retired $55.3 million

aggregate principal amount of our 2010 and 2014

Notes which resulted in gain of $14.4 million

Other Income Expense
In fiscal 2011 we incurred foreign currency gain of

$2.1 million as compared to loss of $0.5 million in

fiscal 2010 and loss of $3.2 million in fiscal 2009 In

fiscal 2011 the $2.6 million favorable change year-o

ver-year was driven by the mix of our balance sheet

accounts denominated in the local foreign currencies as
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I. k.....frl 2011 2020

517140 $23997

787 1291

Interest espense

Interest income

Loss gain on retirement of

convertible subordinated

notes

Other income expense

2009

$25893

5337

242.2 1540 14382

2751 406 4538
Income tax benefit expense 1053 13815 7896
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the U.S dollar depreciated against the Renminbi Euro

and Pound Sterling

The decrease in other income in fiscal 2009 was pri

marily related to foreign currency exchange rate impact

on our denominated Euro and Pound Sterling accounts

as the rates weakened against the U.S dollar

Income taxes

Income tax benefit for fiscal 2011 was $1.1 million

which is comprised primarily of tax expense related to

domestic and international operations offset by tax

benefits related to the release of the remaining

$22.8 million valuation allowance against U.K deferred

tax assets other changes in the domestic and foreign

deferred tax asset valuation allowances and the expira

tion of the statute of limitations on uncertain tax posi

tions assumed in prior business combinations For

fiscal 2011 this resulted in an annual effective tax rate

of 0.9%

In comparison the income tax expense for fiscal 2010

was $13.8 million which is comprised primarily of tax

expense related to domestic and international opera

tions offset by tax benefits related to changes in the

domestic and foreign deferred tax asset valuation allow

ances tax expense related to finalizing the Advance

Pricing Agreement APA and related adjustments with

China tax authorities for calendar years 2006 through

2008 tax expense related to settlement of the North

Carolina audit of fiscal years 2006 through 2008 and

tax benefit from the carryback of fiscal 2009 federal

losses For fiscal 2010 this resulted in an annual

effective tax rate of 16.3%

For fiscal 2009 the income tax expense was $7.9 mil

lion which is primarily comprised of tax expense related

to international operations and an increase in the val

uation allowance against domestic and foreign deferred

tax assets For fiscal 2009 this resulted in an annual

effective tax rate of 0.9%

valuation allowance has been established against the

net deferred tax assets in the taxing jurisdictions where

based upon the positive and negative evidence avail

able it is more likely than not that the related net

deferred tax assets will not be realized Realization is

dependent upon generating future income in the taxing

jurisdictions in which the operating loss carryovers

credit carryovers depreciable tax basis and other tax

deferred assets exist We reevaluate the realizability of

these deferred tax assets on quarterly basis As of the

end of fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 the valuation

allowance against domestic and foreign deferred tax

assets was $92.3 million $132.1 million and

$138.4 million respectively

The fiscal 2009 valuation allowance arose mainly from

uncertainty related to the realizability of Shanghai

China deferred tax assets acquired in connection with

the Sirenza acquisition U.K deferred tax assets

acquired in connection with the Filtronic acquisition

and U.S deferred tax assets due to operating losses
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and impairment charges incurred in the third quarter of

fiscal -2009 that resulted in the U.S moving into

cumulative pre-tax loss for the most recent three-year

period During fiscal 2010 the $6.3 million decrease in

the overall valuation allowance was comprised of

decrease of $7.6 million related to the carryback of

the fiscal 2009 federal NOL and an increase of $1.3 mil

lion related to other changes in domestic and foreign

deferred tax assets during fiscal 2010 The $39.8 mil

lion decrease in the valuation allowance during fiscal

2011 was comprised of $22.8 million release of the

U.K valuation allowance related to the remaining net

deferred tax assets as of the end of fiscal 2011 and

$17.0 million for other decreases related to changes in

domestic and foreign net deferred tax assets during

fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011 all of the U.K valuation allowance

was released The positive evidence of income being

generated in the U.K in each of the last several quar

ters the scheduled completion during fiscal 2012 of the

implementation of production technology to allow the

U.K facility to produce power amplifiers in addition to

switches and future projections of continued profitabil

ity overcame any remaining negative evidence

As of the end of fiscal 2011 valuation allowance

remained against the net deferred tax assets in the

U.S and Shanghai China as the negative evidence of

cumulative pre-tax losses for the most recent three-year

period in those jurisdictions were not overcome by avail

able positive evidence However because of favorable

operating results over the last two years management

believes reasonable possibility exists that within the

next year sufficient positive evidence may become avail

able to reach conclusion that substantial portion of

the remaining valuation allowance related to the

U.S deferred tax assets could be released within the

next twelve months

On April 2011 we had outstanding net operating loss

NOL carryforwards for federal domestic tax purposes

of approximately $22.5 million which will begin to expire

in 2019 if unused and state losses of approximately

$99.8 million which will begin to expire in 2011 if

unused In addition federal credits of $43.2 million

and state credits of $27.3 million may expire in years

2011-2029 and .2011-2024 respectively if unused

Included in these amounts are certain NOLs and other

tax attribute assets acquired in conjunction with our

previous acquisitions The utilization of U.S.-acquired

NOLs and other deferred tax assets is subject to certain

annual limitations as required under Internal Revenue

Code Section 382 and similar state tax provisions In

addition as of the end of fiscal 2011 we had approx

imately $32.4 million of U.K tax losses which were

primarily acquired in connection with the Filtronic acqui

sition and which carry forward indefinitely In the opinion

of management there has not been material change in

the nature or conduct of the U.K business that would

subject these U.K.-acquired tax loss carryforwards to

limitation under the U.K anti-avoidance provisions
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Our gross unrecognized tax benefits totaled $29.5 mil

lion as of March 28 2009 $31.8 million as of April

2010 and $32.9 million as of April 2011 Of those

gross unrecognized tax benefits $18.9 million

$21.1 million and $24.4 million net of federal benefit

of state taxes represents the respective amount of

unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would

impact the effective tax rate Included in the balance

of gross unrecognized tax benefits at April 2011 is

$0.5 million to $1.0 million related to tax positions for

which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts

could significantly change in the next 12 months This

amount represents decrease in gross unrecognized

tax benefits related to reductions for tax positions in

prior years

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Under FASB ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock

Compensation FASB ASC Topic 718 share-based

compensation cost is measured at the grant date

based on the estimated fair value of the award using

an option pricing model Black-Scholes and is recog

nized as expense over the employees requisite service

period

As of April 2011 total remaining unearned compen
sation cost related to nonvested restricted stock units

and options was $291 million which will be amortized

over the weighted-average remaining service period of

approximately 1.1 years

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We have funded our operations to date through sales of

equity and debt securities bank borrowings capital

equipment leases and revenue from product sales

Beginning in fiscal 1998 we have raised approximately

$1053.3 million net of offering expenses from public

and Rule 144A securities offerings As of April 2011
we had working capital of approximately $465.2 million

including $131.8 million in cash and cash equivalents

compared to working capital at April 2010 of

$396.1 million including $104.8 million in cash and

cash equivalents

Share Repurchase

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 we announced that

our Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of

up to $200.0 million of our outstanding common stock

exclusive of related fees commissions or other

expenses from time to time during period commenc

ing on January 28 2011 and expiring on January 27
2013 This share repurchase program authorizes us to

repurchase shares through solicited or unsolicited

transactions in the open market or in privately negoti

ated transactions During the fiscal year ended April

2011 we repurchased 1.7 million shares at an average

price of $7.44 on the open market

Cash Rows from Operating Activities

Operating activities in fiscal 2011 provided cash of

$213.4 million compared to $185.7 million in fiscal

2010 This increase in cash flows from operations was

primarily attributable to improved profitability and an

improvement in the management of our value added

tax VAT recovery process with China This increase in

cash provided by operating activities was partially offset

by an increase in inventory levels in support of expected

customer demand

Cash Rows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities in fiscal 2011 was

$30.2 million compared to $46.2 million in fiscal 2010

During fiscal 2011 we had net purchases of securities

available-for-sale of $5.1 million compared to net pur

chases of securities available-for-sale of $41.1 million

in fiscal 2010 Our capital expenditures totaled approx

imately $25.7 million during fiscal 2011 primarily for

the purchase of additional test and assembly equip

ment compared to $8.4 million during fiscal 2010

Capital expenditures in fiscal 2012 are expected to

be between 3% and 5% of revenue which we expect

to fund with cash flows from operations The actual

amount of capital expenditures will be dependent on

our sourcing strategy for manufacturing capacity and the

rate and pace of new technology development

Cash Flows from Rnancing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities in fiscal 2011 was

$157.3 million compared to $207.2 million in fiscal

2010 This decrease in cash used in financing activities

was primarily due to decreased repayments of debt

During fiscal 2011 we purchased and retired

$135.5 million aggregate principal amount of the

2012 Notes for $134.6 million we repaid the $12.9 mil

lion balance of no net cost loan see Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements and we paid the

remaining $10.0 million balance of our 2010 Notes

when they matured on July 2011 During fiscal

2010 we purchased and retired $207.1 million aggre

gate principal amount of our convertible subordinated

notes due 2010 2012 and 2014 for approximately

$203.6 million In addition cash flows from financing

activities increased approximately $18.3 million in fiscal

2011 as compared to fiscal 2010 related to proceeds

from the exercise of stock options and employee stock

purchases These decreases in cash used in financing

activities were partially offset by the repurchase of

1.7 million shares of our common stockfor $12.6 million

in fiscal 2011

During the first quarter of fiscal 2012 the remaining

balance of our asset-based equipment term loan con
sisting of balloon payment of $3.0 million plus

$0.9 million of principal and interest payments is due

and is expected to be paid with cash on hand

Our future capital requirements may differ materially

from those currently anticipated and will depend on

many factors including but not limited to market
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acceptance of our products volume pricing conces

sions capital improvements demand for our products

technological advances and our relationships with sup

pliers and customers Based on current and projected

levels of cash flow from operations coupled with our

existing cash and cash equivalents we believe that we

have sufficient liquidity to meet both our short-term and

long-term cash requirements However if there is

significant decrease in demand for our products or in

the event that growth is faster than we had anticipated

operating cash flows may be insufficient to meet our

needs If existing resources and cash from operations

are not sufficient to meet our future requirements or if

we perceive conditions to be favorable we may seek

additional debt or equity financing additional credit

facilities enter into sale-leaseback transactions or

obtain asset-based financing We cannot be sure that

any additional equity or debt financing will not be dilutive

Capital Commitments

On April 2011 we had short-term capital commit

ments of approximately $11.6 million primarily for

increasing manufacturing capacity as well as for equip

ment replacements equipment for process improve

ments and general corporate requirements

Capital Leases

We lease certain equipment and computer hardware

and software under non-cancelable lease agreements

that are accounted for as capital leases Interest rates

on capital leases ranged from 6.0% to 6.4% as of April

2011 Equipment under capital lease arrangements is

included in property and equipment and has cost of

less than $0.5 million as of April 2011 and April

2010

Operating Leases

We lease the majority of our corporate wafer fabrication

and other facilities from several third party real estate

developers The remaining terms of these operating

leases range from approximately year to 12 years

Several have renewal options of up to two 10-year
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to holders of our common stock Further we cannot be

sure that additional equity or debt financing if required

will be available on favorable terms if at all

IMPACT OF INFLATION

We do not believe that the effects of inflation had

significant impact on our revenue or income from con

tinuing operations during fiscal years 2011 2010 and

2009 Ourfinancial results could be adversely affected

by wage and commodity price inflation including pre

cious metals in fiscal 2012

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
As of April 2011 we had no off-balance sheet

arrangements as defined in Item 303a4ii of SEC

Regulation S-K

periods and several also include standard inflation esca

lation terms Several also include rent escalation rent

holidays and leasehold improvement incentives which

are recognized to expense on straight-line basis The

amortization period of leasehold improvements made

either at the inception of the lease or during the lease

term is amortized over the lesser of the remaining life of

the lease term or the useful life of the asset We also

lease various machinery and equipment and office

equipment under non-cancelable operating leases

The remaining terms of these operating leases range

from less than one year to approximately three years As

of April 2011 the total future minimum lease pay

ments were approximately $36.1 million related to facil

ity operating leases and approximately $0.4 million

related to equipment operating leases

Convertible Debt

In April 2007 we issued $200 million aggregate princi

pal amount of 0.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes

due on April 15 2012 the 2012 Notes and $175 mil

lion aggregate principal amount of 1.00% Convertible

Subordinated Notes due on April 15 2014 the 2014

Payments Due By Period

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations and commitments in thousands as of April

2011 and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods

Total Lese than

Payments lyear

More than

years1-3 years 3-5 years

capital commitments 11570 $11570

Capital leases 309 73 146 90

Operating leases 36511 9570 14134 7057 5750

Convertible debt including interest 202571 1816 65179 135576

Other debt including interest 11410 4352 7058

Purchase obligations 57520 54891 2591 38

Total $319891 $82272 $89108 $142761 $5750

The 2012 and 2014 convertible subordinated notes have remaining principal balance of $62.2 million and $134.9 million

respectively as of April 2011 During the first quarter of fiscal 2012 through May 31 2011 we repurchased and retired

$22.0 million aggregate principal amount of our 2012 Notes which is not reflected in the above table See Note 17 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of the early retirement of portion of the 2012 Notes
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Notes and together with the 2012 Notes the Notes
in private placement to Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner

Smith Incorporated for resale to qualified institutional

buyers The net proceeds of the offering were approxi

mately $366.2 million after payment of the underwriting

discount and expenses of the offering totaling approx

imately $8.8 million Interest on the Notes is payable in

cash semiannually in arrears on April 15 and October15

of each year beginning October 15 2007 The Notes

are subordinated unsecured obligations and rank junior

in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior

debt The Notes effectively will be subordinated to the

indebtedness and other liabilities of our subsidiaries

Holders may convert their Notes based on conversion

rate of 124.2969 shares of our common stock per

$1000 principal amount of Notes which is equal to

an initial conversion price of approximately $8.05 per

share subject to adjustment only under the following

circumstances if the closing price of our common

stock reaches or the trading price of the Notes falls

below specified thresholds for specified number of

trading days ii if specified distributions to holders of

our common stock occur iii if fundamental change

occurs or iv during the last month prior to maturity of

the applicable Notes Upon conversion in lieu of shares

of our common stock for each $1000 principal amount

of Notes holder will receive an amount in cash equal

to the lesser of $1000 or ii the conversion value as

determined under the applicable indentures governing

the Notes If the conversion value exceeds $1000 we

also will deliver at our election cash or common stock

or combination of cash and common stock equivalent

to the amount of the conversion value in excess of

$1000 This election to deliver cash or common stock

if the conversion value exceeds the conversion price will

require us to evaluate the inclusion of shares in our

dilutive earnings per share calculation based on the

treasury stock method in the event our stock price

exceeds $8.05 per share

Holders of the Notes who convert their Notes in con

nection with fundamental change as defined in the

Indentures may be entitled to make whole premium in

the form of an increase in the conversion rate applicable

to their Notes In addition in the event of fundamental

change holders of the Notes may require usto purchase

for cash all or portion of their Notes subject to spec

ified exceptions at price equal to 100% of the principal

amount of the Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest if

any up to but not including the fundamental change

purchase date

During fiscal 2011 we purchased and retired

$135.5 million aggregate principal amount of our

2012 Notes for an average price of $99.32 which

resulted in loss of approximately $2.4 million During

fiscal 2010 we purchased and retired $2.3 million

aggregate principal amount of the 2012 Notes at an

average price of $78.56 which resulted in gain of

approximately $0.3 million During the first quarter of

fiscal 2012 the balance of our 2012 Notes will be

reclassified from long-term debt to current portion

of long-term debt on our consolidated balance sheet

In fiscal 2010 we purchased and retired $7.8 million

aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Notes at an

average price of $61.55 which resulted in gain of

approximately $1.6 million In fiscal 2009 we pur

chased and retired $32.3 million aggregate principal

amount of our 2014 Notes at an average price of

$41.47 which resulted in gain of approximately

$10.6 million

The 2012 Notes had fair value on the Private Offer

ings Resale and Trading through Automated Linkages

PORTAL Market of $66.1 million as of April 2011

excluding $137.8 million of the aggregate principal

amount of the 2012 Notes that were purchased and

retired as of April 2011 and $191.5 million as of

April 2010 excluding $2.3 million of the aggregate

principal amount of the 2012 Notes that were pur

chased and retired as of April 2010 The 2014 Notes

had fair value on the PORTAL Market of $145.0 million

as of April 2011 excluding $40.1 million of the

aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Notes that were

purchased and retired as of April 2011 and

$122.8 million as of April 2010 excluding $40.1 mil

lion of the aggregate principal amount of the 2014

Notes that were purchased and retired as of April

2010

The indentures governing our 2012 Notes and our 2014

Notes contain certain non-financial covenants and as of

April 2011 we were in compliance with these

covenants

During fiscal 2004 we completed the private placement

of $230.0 million aggregate principal amount of 1.50%

convertible subordinated notes due 2010 The net pro

ceeds of the offering were approximately $224.7 million

after payment of the underwriting discount and

expenses of the offering totaling $5.3 million In fiscal

2009 we purchased and retired $23.0 million aggre

gate principal amount of our 2010 Notes at an average

price of $82.83 which resulted in gain of approxi

mately $3.8 million In fiscal 2010 we purchased and

retired at 100% of the original principal amount

$197.0 million of the aggregate principal amount of

the 2010 Notes which resulted in loss of $0.4 million

due to the write-off of the unamortized discount and

debt issuance cost On July 2010 the remaining

$10.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2010

Notes matured and was repaid

Other Debt

During fiscal 2008 we entered into loan denominated

in Renminbi with bank in Beijing China which is payable

in April 2012 As of April 2011 the principal balance of

this loan was equivalent to approximately $7.0 million

with the amount fluctuating based on exchange rates

The proceeds were used for the expansion of our internal

assembly facility Interest is calculated at 95% of the

Peoples Bank of China benchmark interest rate at the
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end of each month and is payable on the twentieth day of

the last month of each quarter the Peoples Bank of

China benchmark interest rate for three- to five-year loan

was 6.45% effective as of February 2011 which is the

most recent published rate available as of April 2011
We received cash incentive from the Beijing Municipal

Bureau of Industrial Development in support of the expan

sion of our China facility which offset the amount of

monthly interest expense for the first two years of the

loan During the first quarter of fiscal 2012 the balance

of this loan is expected to be reclassified from long-term

debt to current portion of long-term debt on our con

solidated balance sheet

During fiscal 2007 we entered into $25.0 million

asset-based equipment term loan financing agreement

The net proceeds of approximately $24.8 million after

payment of administrative fees and issuance costs

totaling $0.2 million were used primarily for wafer fab

rication and assembly expansions The equipment term

loan is payable in equal monthly installments of principal

and interest of approximately $0.5 million which com
menced on August 2006 with final balloon payment

of approximately $3.0 million due on July 2011 The

interest rate on the equipment term loan is approxi

mately 7.87%

Pursuant to the equipment term loan we must maintain

on quarterly basis ratio of senior funded debt to

EBITDA of not greater than 3.5 to 1.0 and unencum

bered cash or cash-equivalent holdings of not less than

$50.0 million Senior funded debt is defined as current-

and long-term debt plus capital leases and EBITDA is

defined as operating income under GAAP plus

ii depreciation and amortization expense plus iii all

non-cash expenses and losses minus all non-cash

income and gains As of April 2011 we were in

compliance with these covenants

Purchase Obligations

As of April 2011 we had contractual obligations for

the purchase of goods or services totaling approxi

mately $57.5 million

Other Contractual Obligations

In addition to the amounts shown in the Contractual

Obligations table above $32.9 million of unrecognized

tax benefits have been recorded as liabilities and we are

uncertain as to if or when such amounts may be settled

As discussed in Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements we have an unfunded pension plan in Ger

manywith benefit obligation of approximately $3.3 mil

lion as of April 2011 Pension benefit payments are

not included in the schedule above as they are not

available for all periods presented Pension benefit pay

ments were less than $0.1 million for fiscal 2011 and

are expected to be less than $0.1 million for fiscal

2012

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements

requires management to use judgment and estimates

The level of uncertainty in estimates and assumptions

increases with the length of time until the underlying

transactions are completed Actual results could differ

from those estimates The accounting policies that are

most critical in the preparation of our consolidated

financial statements are those that are both important

to the presentation of our financial condition and results

of operations and require significant judgment and esti

mates on the part of management Our critical account

ing policies are reviewed periodically with the Audit

Committee of the Board of Directors We also have other

policies that we consider key accounting policies such

as policies for revenue recognition see Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements however these

policies typically do not require us to make estimates

or judgments that are difficult or subjective

Inventory Reserves The valuation of inventory

requires us to estimate obsolete or excess inventory

The determination of obsolete or excess inventory

requires us to estimate the future demand for our prod

ucts within specific time horizons generally six to

12 months The estimates of future demand that we

use in the valuation of inventory reserves are the same

as those used in our revenue forecasts and are also

consistent with the estimates used in our manufacturing

plans to enable consistency between inventory valua

tion and build decisions Product-specific facts and cir

cumstances reviewed in the inventory valuation process

include review of the customer base market condi

tions and customer acceptance of our products and

technologies as well as an assessment of the selling

price in relation to the product cost

Historically inventory reserves have fluctuated as new

technologies have been introduced and customers

demand has shifted Inventory reserves had less than

1% impact on margins in fiscal years 2011 and 2010

During fiscal 2009 we experienced significant nega

tive impact on margins as customer demand dramati

cally decreased as result of the economic downturn If

our demand forecast for specific products is greater

than actual demand and we fail to reduce manufacturing

output accordingly we could be required to increase our

reserves which would have negative impact on our

gross profit

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Goodwill is recorded

when the purchase price paid for business exceeds

the estimated fair value of the net identified tangible

and intangible assets acquired Intangibles are

recorded when such assets are acquired by purchase

or license The value of our intangibles including good

will could be impacted by future adverse changes such

as any future declines in our operating results ii

decline in the value of technology company stocks

including the value of our common stock iii pro

longed or more significant slowdown in the worldwide
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economy or the Semiconductor industry or iv any fail

ure to meet the performance projections included in our

forecasts of future operating results

Goodwill

We have determined that we have two reporting units as

of fiscal 2011 CPG and MPG for purposes of allocating

and testing goodwill In evaluating our reporting units we

first consider our operating segments and related com

ponents in accordance with FASB guidance Goodwill is

allocated to our reporting units that are anticipated to

benefit from the synergies of the business combinations

generating the underlying goodwill As of April 2011

our goodwill balance of $95.6 million is allocated solely

to our MPG reporting unit

We evaluate our goodwill for potential impairment on an

annual basis or whenever events or circumstances indi

cate that an impairment may have occurred We test for

impairment using two-step process The first step of

the goodwill impairment test is to identify potential

impairment by comparing the estimated fair value of

each reporting unit containing our goodwill with the

related carrying amount of the reporting unit

We have historically used both the income and market

approaches to estimate the fair value of our reporting

units The income approach involves discounting future

estimated cash flows The sum of the reporting unit cash

flow projections is compared to our market capitalization

in discounted cash flow framework to calculate an

overall implied internal rate of return or discount rate

for the Company Our market capitalization is adjusted to

control basis assuming reasonable control premium

which resulted in an implied discount rate This implied

discount rate serves as baseline for estimating the

specific discount rate for each reporting unit

The discount rate used is the value-weighted average of our

estimated cost of equity and debt cost of capital

derived using both known and estimated customary mar

ket metrics Our weighted average cost of capital is

adjusted for each reporting unit to reflect risk factor if

necessary for each reporting unit We perform sensitivity

tests with respect to growth rates and discount rates used

in the income approach We believe the income approach

is appropriate because it provides fair value estimate

based upon the respective reporting units expected long-

term operations and cash flow performance

In applying the market approach valuation multiples are

derived from historical and projected operating data of

selected guideline companies which are evaluated and

adjusted if necessary based on the strengths and

weaknesses of the reporting unit relative to the selected

guideline companies The valuation multiples are then

applied to the appropriate historical and/or projected

operating data of the reporting unit to arrive at an indi

cation of fair value We believe the market approach is

appropriate because it provides fair value using mul

tiples from companies with operations and economic

characteristics similar to our reporting units We

weighted the results of the income approach and the

results of the market approach at 60% and 40% respec

tively The income approach was given higher weight

because it has more direct correlation to the specific

economics of the reporting units than the market

approach which is based on multiples of companies

that although comparable may not have the exact

same mix of products and may not have the exact same

systemic or non-systemic risk factors as our reporting

units Our methodologies used for valuing goodwill dur

ing fiscal 2011 have not changed as compared to fiscal

years 2010 and 2009

If the fair value of the reporting unit is determined to be

less than the carrying value we perform step-two

analysis in order to determine the implied fair value

of each reporting units goodwill and determine the

amount of the impairment of goodwill Determining

the implied fair value of goodwill requires valuation of

reporting units tangible and intangible assets and

liabilities in manner similar to the allocation of pur

chase price in business combination For purposes of

determining the implied fair value of goodwill the

income tax bases of reporting units assets and lia

bilities implicit in the tax structure is assumed in the

estimation of fair value of the reporting unit in step-one

We conduct our annual goodwill impairment test onthe

first day of the fourth quarter in each fiscal year and did

so in fiscal years 2011 and 2010 without need to

expand the impairment test to step two However during

fiscal 2009 indicators of potential impairment caused

us to conduct an interim impairment test which was

performed as of November 22 2008 See Note to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional infor

mation regarding fiscal 2009 goodwill impairment

Inherent in such fair value determinations of our report

ing units are significant judgments and estimates

including assumptions about our future revenue prof

itability and cash flows our operational plans and Our

interpretation of current economic indicators and mar

ket valuations To the extent these assumptions are

incorrect or there are further declines in our business

outlook additional goodwill impairment charges may be

recorded in future periods

For fiscal years 2011 and 2010 the material assump
tions used for the income approach were 10 years of

projected net cash flows discount rate of 16.5%

2011 and 16.0% 2010 and long-term growth rate

of 4% for the MPG reporting unit We considered his

torical rates and current market conditions when deter

mining the discount and growth rates used in our

analysis The material assumptions used for the income

approach in fiscal years 2011 and 2010 were consis

tent as compared to fiscal 2009 except the discount

rate for the MPG reporting unit was 18% for fiscal 2009

as result of missed projections

one percentage point decrease in the discount rate

would have increased the fair value of the MPG reporting

unit by approximately $45.0 million while one
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percentage point increase in the discount rate would

have decreased the fair value of the MPG reporting unit

by approximately $38.0 million one percentage point

decrease in the long-term growth rate would have

decreased the fair value of the MPG reporting unit by

approximately $13.0 million while one percentage

point increase in the long-term growth rate would have

increased the fair value of the MPG reporting unit by

approximately $16.0 million

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of technology

licenses and assets resulting from business combina

tions Technology licenses are amortized on straight-

line basis over the lesser of the estimated useful life of

the technology or the term of the license agreement

ranging from approximately years to 15 years

Acquired product technology and customer relation

ships are also amortized on straight-line basis over

the estimated useful life ranging from years to

10 years

We regularly review identified intangible assets to deter

mine if facts and circumstances indicate that the useful

life is shorter than the Company originally estimated or

that the carrying amount of the assets may not be

recoverable If such facts and circumstances exist we

assess the recoverability of identified intangible assets

by comparing the projected undiscounted net cash flows

associated with the related asset or group of assets

over their remaining lives against their respective car

rying amounts Impairments if any are based on the

excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of

those assets and occur in the period in which the impair

ment determination was made See Note to the Con

solidated Financial Statements for additional

information regarding fiscal 2009 identified intangible

impairment

The value of acquired in-process research and develop

ment is determined by estimating the costs to develop

the purchased in-process research and development

into commercially viable product estimating the

resulting cash flows from the sale of the products

resulting from the completion of the in-process research

and development and discounting the net cash flows

using an appropriate discount rate net of returns on

contributory assets For acquisitions prior to fiscal

2010 acquired in-process research and development

with no future alternative use was expensed at the

acquisition date For subsequent acquisitions acquired

in-process research and development with no future

alternative use will be capitalized in accordance with

FASB ASC Topic 805 Business Combinations

The value of acquired developed technology is deter

mined by discounting forecasted cash flows directly

related to the existing product technology net of returns

on contributory assets

The value of acquired customer relationships is based on

the benefit derived from the incremental revenue and

related cash flows as direct result of the customer

relationship These forecasted cash flows are discounted

to present value using an appropriate discount rate

Impairment of Long-lived Assets We review the carrying

values of all long-lived assets whenever events or

changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying

values may not be recoverable Factors that we consider

in decidingwhen to perform an impairment review include

significant under-performance of business significant

negative industry or economic trends and significant

changes or planned changes in our use of assets

In making impairment determinations for long-lived

assets we utilize certain assumptions including but

not limited to estimations and quoted market prices

of the fair market value of the assets and ii estima

tions of future cash flows expected to be generated by

these assets which are based on additional assump
tions such as asset utilization length of service that the

asset will be used in our operations and estimated

salvage values

Share-Based Compensation FASB ASC Topic 718

requires all share-based payments including grants of

stock options and restricted stock units to be recog

nized in our financial statements based on their respec

tive grant date fair values Under this standard the fair

value of each employee stock option is estimated on the

date of grant using an option pricing model that meets

certain requirements We currently use the Black

Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value

of our share-based payments The Black-Scholes model

meets the requirements of FASB ASC Topic 718 but the

fair values generated by the model may not be indicative

of the actual fair values of our share-based awards as

this model does not consider certain factors important

to share-based awards such as continued employment

periodic vesting requirements and limited transferabil

ity The determination of the fair value of share-based

payment awards utilizing the Black-Scholes model is

affected by our stock price and number of assump

tions including expected volatility expected life risk-

free interest rate and expected dividends

Expected Volatility

We use implied volatility based on publicly traded

options as we believe implied volatility is more useful

than historical volatility in estimating expected volatility

because it is generally reflective of both historical vol

atility
and expectations of how future volatility will differ

from historical volatility In determining the appropriate

ness of implied volatility we considered the volume

of market activity of publicly traded options and deter

mined that there was sufficient market activity ii the

ability to reasonably match the input variables of options

publicly traded to those of options granted by us such

as the date of grant and the exercise price and deter

mined that the input assumptions were comparable

and iii the length of term of publicly traded options

used to derive implied volatility which is generally six
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months to two years and determined that the length of

term was sufficient

If we determined that another method of estimating

expected volatility was more reasonable than our cur

rent method or if another method for calculating

expected volatility was prescribed by authoritative guid

ance the fair value calculated for share-based awards

could change significantly Higher volatility results in an

increase to share-based compensation determined at

the date of grant

Expected Term

The expected life of employee stock options represents

the weighted-average period that the stock options are

expected to remain outstanding Our method of calcu

lating the expected term of an option is based on the

assumption that all outstanding options will be exer

cised at the midpoint of the current date and full con

tractual term combined with the average life of all

options that have been exercised or cancelled We

believe that method provides better estimate of the

future expected life based on analysis of historical exer

cise behavioral data

Risk-Free Interest Rate

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based on

observed interest rates appropriate for the expected

terms of our stock options

Expected Dividend Yield

The dividend yield assumption is based on our history

and expectation of dividend payouts

Forfeitures

The amount of share-based compensation expense in

fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 was reduced for

estimated forfeitures based on historical experience

Forfeitures are required to be estimated at the time of

grant and revised if necessary in subsequent periods if

actual forfeitures differ from those estimates We will

evaluate the assumptions used to value stock awards on

quarterly basis If factors change and we employ dif

ferent assumptions share-based compensation expense

may differ significantly from what we have recorded in the

past To the extent that we grant additional equity secu

rities to employees or we assume unvested securities in

connection with any acquisitions our share-based com
pensation expense will be increased by the additional

unearned compensation resulting from those additional

grants or acquisitions The fair value of our restricted

stock units is based on the fair market value of our

common stock on the date of grant Share-based com
pensation expense recognized in our financial state

ments in fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 is based

on awards that are ultimately expected to vest

Income Taxes In determining income for financial

statement purposes we must make certain estimates

and judgments in the calculation of tax expense the

resultant tax liabilities and in the recoverability of

deferred tax assets that arise from temporary differ

ences between the tax and financial statement recog

nition of revenue and expense

As part of our financial process we assess the likeli

hood that our deferred tax assets can be recovered If

recovery is not likely the provision for taxes must be

increased by recording reserve in the form of valu

ation allowance for the deferred tax assets that are

estimated not to be ultimately recoverable In this pro

cess certain relevant criteria are evaluated including

the amount of income or loss in prior years the exist

ence of deferred tax liabilities that can be used to

absorb deferred tax assets the taxable income in prior

carryback years that can be used to absorb net operat

ing losses and credit carrybacks future expected tax

able income in the various taxing jurisdictions in which

we have operations and prudent and feasible tax plan

ning strategies The valuation allowance against the

U.K deferred tax assets which existed as of the begin

ning of fiscal 2011 was fully released during the year As

of the beginning and end of fiscal 2011 valuation

allowances were provided that substantially offset our

domestic and other foreign deferred tax assets net of

liabilities Ourjudgment regarding realizability including

future taxable income may change due to future market

conditions changes in U.S or international tax laws and

other factors These changes if any may require mate

rial adjustments to these net deferred tax assets and an

accompanying reduction or increase in net income in the

period when such determinations are made

As part of our financial process we also assess the

likelihood that our tax reporting positions will ultimately

be sustained Our judgment regarding the sustainability

of our tax reporting positions may change in the future

due to changes in U.S or international tax laws and

other factors These changes if any may require mate

rial adjustments to the related net deferred tax assets or

accrued income tax liabilities and an accompanying

reduction or increase in net income in the period when

such determinations are made

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCMENTS

In January 2010 the FASB issued amended standards

that require additional fair value disclosures These

amended standards require disclosures about inputs

and valuation techniques used to measure fair value as

well as disclosures about significant transfers begin

ning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 Additionally

these amended standards require presentation of dis

aggregated activity within the reconciliation for fair value

measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Level beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2012

We believe that adoption of this new guidance will not

have material impact on our financial statements

In October 2009 the FASB issued new standards for

revenue recognition with multiple deliverables These

new standards impact the determination of when the

individual deliverables included in multiple-element
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arrangement may be treated as separate units of

accounting Additionally these new standards modify

the manner in which the transaction consideration is

allocated across the separately identified deliverables

by no longer permitting the residual method of allocating

arrangement consideration These new standards are

required to be adopted in the first quarter of fiscal

2012 We believe that adoption of this new guidance will

not have material impact on our financial statements

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE

DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

FInancial Risk Management

We are exposed to financial market risks including

changes in interest rates currency exchange rates and

certain commodity prices The overall objective of our

financial risk management program is to seek reduction

in the potential negative earnings effects from changes in

interest rates foreign exchange rates and commodity

prices arising from our business activities We manage

these financial exposures through operational means

and by using various financial instruments These prac

tices may change as economic conditions change

Interest Rates

We are exposed to interest rate risk primarily from our

investments in available-for-sale securities Our availa

ble-for sale securities are predominantly comprised of

U.S government/agency securities in accordance with

an investment policy approved by our Board of Directors

We continually monitor our exposure to changes in interest

rates and the credit ratings of issuers with respect to our

available-for-sale securities As result of this monitoring

and recent volatility of the financial markets the Board of

Directors adopted more conservative investment strat

egy and we are currently investing in lower risk and con

sequently lower interest-bearing investments Accordingly

we believe that the effects of changes in interest rates and

the credit ratings of these issuers are limited and would not

have material impact on our financial condition or results

of operations However it is possible that we would be at

risk if interest rates or the credit ratings of these issuers

were to change unfavorably

At April 2011 we held available-for-sale investments

with an estimated fair value of $193.8 millionWe do not

purchase financial instruments for trading or specula

tive purposes Our investments are classified as availa

ble-for-sale securities and are recorded on the balance

sheet at fair value with unrealized gains and losses

reported as separate component of accumulated

other comprehensive income Our investments earned

an average annual interest rate of approximately 0.3% in

fiscal 2011 or approximately $0.5 million in interest

income In fiscal 2010 our investments earned an

average annual interest rate of approximately 0.5% in

fiscal 2010 or approximately $0.9 million in interest

income We do not have any investments denominated

in foreign currencies and therefore are not subject to

foreign currency risk on such investments
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Debt and Capital Lease Obligations

Convertible Debt

In April 2007 we issued $200 million aggregate princi

pal amount of 0.75% convertible subordinated notes

due on April 15 2012 and $175 million aggregate

principal amount of 1.00% convertihle suhordinated

notes due on April 15 2014 The net proceeds from

the offering were approximately $366.2 million after

payment of the underwriting discount and expenses

of the offering totaling approximately $8.8 millionwhich

are being amortized as interest expense over the term

of the two series of notes based on the effective interest

method Interest on both series of the notes is payable

in cash semiannually in arrears on April 15 and October

15 of each year and we began paying interest on Octo

ber 15 2007

During fiscal 2011 we purchased and retired

$135.5 million aggregate principal amount of our

2012 Notes for an average price of $99.32 which

resulted in loss of approximately $2.4 million During

fiscal 2010 we purchased and retired $2.3 million

aggregate principal amount of the 2012 Notes at an

average price of $78.56 which resulted in gain of

approximately $0.3 million

In fiscal 2010 we purchased and retired $7.8 million

aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Notes at an

average price of $61.55 which resulted in gain of

approximately $1.6 million In fiscal 2009 we pur

chased and retired $32.3 million aggregate principal

amount of the 2014 Notes at an average price of

$41.47 which resulted in gain of approximately

$10.6 million

In fiscal 2009 we purchased and retired $23.0 million

aggregate principal amount of the 2010 Notes at an

average price of $82.83 which resulted in gain of

approximately $3.8 million In fiscal 2010 we pur

chased and retired at 100% of the original principal

amount $197.0 million aggregate principal amount of

the 2010 Notes which resulted in loss of $0.4 million

due to the write-off of the unamortized discount and

debt issuance cost On July 2010 the remaining

$10.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2010

Notes matured and was repaid

Because our convertible subordinated notes have fixed

interest rates we do not have significant interest rate

exposure on our long-term debt However the fair value

of the convertible subordinated notes is subject to sig

nificant fluctuations due to their convertibility into

shares of our common stock and other market condi

tions The fair value of these convertible subordinated

notes is also sensitive to fluctuations in the general

level of U.S interest rates As of April 22011 the 2012

Notes and the 2014 Notes had fair values of $66.1 mil

lion excluding $137.8 million of the aggregate principal

amount of the 2012 Notes that were purchased and

retired as of April 2011 and $145.0 million exclud

ing $40.1 million of the aggregate principal amount of
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the 2014 Notes that were purchased and retired as of

April 2011 respectively

Other Debt

During fiscal 2008 we entered into loan denominated

in Renminbi with bank in Beijing China which is

payable in April 2012 As of April 2011 the principal

balance of this loan was equivalent to approximately

$7.0 million with the amount fluctuating based on

exchange rates The proceeds were used for the expan

sion of the Companys internal assembly facility Inter

est is calculated at 95% of the Peoples Bank of China

benchmark interest rate at the end of each month and is

payable on the twentieth day of the last month of each

quarter the Peoples Bank of China benchmark interest

rate for three- to five-year loan was 6.45% effective as

of February 2011 which is the most recent published

rate available as of April 2011 We received cash

incentive from the Beijing Municipal Bureau of Industrial

Development in support of the expansion of our China

facility This incentive offset the amount of monthly

interest expense for the first two years of the loan

minimizing our interest rate exposure

During fiscal 2007 we entered into $25.0 million asset-

based financing agreement equipment term loan The

net proceeds from the equipment term loan were approx

imately $24.8 million after payment of administrative

fees and issuance costs totaling $0.2 million which

are being amortized as interest expense over the term

of the loan based on the effective interest method The

equipment term loan is payable in equal monthly install

ments of principal and interest of approximately $0.5 mil

lion commencing on August 2006 with final balloon

payment of approximately $3.0 million due on July

2011 The interest rate on the equipment term loan is

approximately 7.87%

We would be exposed to interest rate risk if we used

additional financing to fund operating and investing

activities The interest rate that we may be able to obtain

on future financings will depend on market conditions at

that time and may differ from the rates that we have

secured in the past

Capital Lease Obligations

We lease certain equipment and computer hardware

and software under non-cancelable lease agreements

that are accounted for as capital leases Equipment

under capital lease arrangements and interest expense

were immaterial as of April 2011 resulting in limited

interest rate exposure

Currency Exchange Rates

As global company our results are affected by move
ments in currency exchange rates Our exposure may
increase or decrease over time as our foreign business

levels fluctuate in the countries where we have opera

tions and these changes could have material impact

on our financial results Our functional currency is typ

ically
the U.S dollar We have foreign operations in

Europe and Asia and substantial portion of our reve

nue is derived from sales to customers outside the

United States Our international revenue is primarily

denominated in U.S dollars Operating expenses and

certain working capital items related to our foreign-

based operations are in some instances denominated

in the local foreign currencies and therefore are affected

by changes in the U.S dollar exchange rate in relation to

foreign currencies such as the Renminbi Euro and

Pound Sterling If the U.S dollar weakens compared

to the Renminbi Euro Pound Sterling and other curren

cies our operating expenses for foreign operations will

be higher when remeasured back into U.S dollars We

seek to manage our foreign exchange risk in part

through operational means

For fiscal 2011 we incurred foreign currency gain of

$2.1 million compared to foreign currency loss of

$0.5 million in fiscal 2010 which is recorded in other

expense income In fiscal 2011 the $2.6 million gain

year-over-year was driven by the mix of our balance sheet

accounts denominated in the local foreign currencies

and the depreciation of the U.S dollar against the

Renminbi Euro and Pound Sterling

Our financial instrument holdings including foreign

receivables cash payables and debt at April

2011 were analyzed to determine their sensitivity to

foreign exchange rate changes In this sensitivity anal

ysis we assumed that the change in one currencys rate

relative to the U.S dollar would not have an effect on

other currencies rates relative to the U.S dollar All

other factors were held constant If the U.S dollar

declined in value 10% in relation to the re-measured

foreign currency instruments our net income would

have increased by approximately $3.7 million If the

U.S dollar increased in value 10% in relation to the

re-measured foreign currency instruments our net

income would have decreased by approximately

$3.0 million

Commodity Prices

We routinely use precious metals in the manufacture of

our products Supplies for such commodities may from

time to time become restricted or general market fac

tors and conditions may affect the pricing of such com
modities In fiscal 2011 the price of gold continued to

increase sharply and certain of our supply chain part

ners assessed surcharges to compensate for the result

ant increase in manufacturing costs We are currently

developing technology that would replace gold with

lower-cost materials to reduce this exposure We also

have an active reclamation process to capture any

unused gold While we continue to attempt to mitigate

the risk of similar increases in commodities-related

costs there can be no assurance that we will be able

to successfully safeguard against potential short-term

and long-term commodity price fluctuations
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In thousands

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 131760 104778
Restricted cash and trading security investments Notes 422 17698
Short-term investments Notes 159881 134882
Accounts receivable less allowance of $800 and $802 as of April 2011 and April

2010 respectively 120375 108219
Inventories Notes 149813 122509
Prepaid expenses 6960 5415
Other receivables Note 10218 34854
Other current assets amount recorded at fair value is $2302 at April 2010

Notes 11 20730 20469

Total current assets 600159 548824
Property and equipment

Land 3706 3706
Building 91383 90767
Machinery and equipment 528334 518942
Leasehold improvements 78783 76174
Furniture and fixtures 11316 11441
Computer equipment and software 32836 33516

Less accumulated depreciation

746358
541318

734546
490098

Construction in progress

205040
4438

244448
2637

Total property and equipment net 209478 247085
Goodwill Notes 95628 95628
Intangible assets net Notes 83685 102169
Long-term investments Notes 2694 2175
Other non-current assets Notes Il 33749 18127

Total assets $1025393 $1014008

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 89490 82448
Accrued liabilities 41483 41805
Current portion of long term debt net of unamortized discount Note 3852 15053
No net cost credit line Note 12900
Other current liabilities Note 112 527

Total current liabilities 134937 152733
Long-term debt net of unamortized discount Note 177343 289837
Other long-term liabilities Notes 10 II 36758 41354

Total liabilities 349038 483924
Commitments and contingent liabilities Note
Shareholders equity

Preferred stock no par value 5000 shares authorized no shares issued and

outstanding

Common stock no par value 500000 shares authorized 275376 and

269106 shares issued and outstanding at April 2011 and April 2010
respectively 966764 961216

Additional paid-in capital 276964 261117
Accumulated other comprehensive income net of tax 393 75

Accumulated deficit 567766 692324

Total shareholders equity 676355 530084

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $1025393 $1014008

RF Micro Devices Inc and subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

April April

2011 2010

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
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FIscal Year 2011 2010 2009

In thousands except per share data

Revenue

Operating costs and expenses

Cost of goods sold

Research and development

Marketing and selling

General and administrative

Goodwill impairment Note

Other operating expense Notes and 10

$1051756

662085

141097

59470

48003

1582

$978393

623224

138960

56592

48316

4895

886506

669163

170778

64946

50352

619551

181012

Total operating costs and expenses 912237 871987 1755802

Income loss from operations

Interest expense

Interest income

Loss gain on retirement of convertible subordinated

Other income expense

notes Note

139519

17140
787

2412
2751

106406

23997

1291

1540

406

869296

25893

5337

14382

4538

Income loss before income taxes 123505 84834 880008

Income tax benefit expense Note 11 1053 13815 7896

Net income loss 124558 71019 887904

Net income loss per share Note 12
Basic 0.46 0.27 3.38

Diluted 0.44 0.25 3.38

Shares used in per share calculation Note 12
Basic 272575 267349 262493

Diluted 280394 289429 262493

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

In thoussnds

Balance March 29 2008

Comprehensive loss

Net loss

Unrealized loss on marketable securities net of tax

Reclassification adjustments on marketable securities

net of tax

Change in pansion liability net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Total comprehensive loss

Repurchase of convertible subordinated notes net of tax

Exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock

units

Issuance of common stock in connection with employee

stock purchase plan

Share-based compensation expense

Balance March 28 2009

Accumulated Retained

Common Stock
AddItional

Paid-in

Other

Comprehensive

Earnings

Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Total

260643 $955390 $215518 632 124561 $1296101

1983

2101
117

698

262

2392 1612

1000 1740
21138

264035 $958742 $236394 169

887904 887904
1983

2101
117

698

888367

262

1612

1740
21138

$763343 431962

Comprehensive income

Net income

Unrealized loss on marketable securities net of tax

Change in pension liability net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment

50
123

79

71019 71019

50
123

79

Total comprehensive income 70925

Repurchase of convertible subordinated notes net of tax

Exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock

units

Issuance of common stock in connection with employee

stock purchase plan

Share-based compensation expense

4132

939

161

2313

540

25263

540

161

2313
25263

Balance April 2010 269106 $961216 $261117 75 $692324 530084

Comprehensive income

Net income

Unrealized gain on marketable securities net of tax

Change in pension liability net of tax

Foreign currency translation adjustment

42

66

210

124558 124558
42

66

210

Total comprehensive income 124876

Repurchase of convertible subordinated notes net of tax

Exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock

units net of shares withheld for employee taxes

Issuance of common stock in connection with employee

stock purchase plan

Repurchase of common stock including transaction costs

Share-based compensation expense

7225

742

1697

14699

3501
12652

9579

25426

9579

14699

3501
12652
25426

Balance AprIl 2011 275376 $966764 $276964 393 $567766 676355

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009

In thousands

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income loss 124558 71019 $887904
Adjustments to reconcile net income loss to net cash provided by operating

activities

Depreciation 63093 72333 85900
Intangible amortization 18457 19020 26178
Non-cash interest expense and amortization of debt issuance costs 13875 17634 18064
Investment discount amortization net 272 271 505
Excess tax benefit from exercises of stock options 111
Deferred income taxes 21633 2426 2177
Foreign currency adjustments 1181 423 3653
Acquired in-process research and development cost 1400
Goodwill impairment 619551
Intangible impairment 281 66960
Asset impairments including restructuring impairments 139 1974 76005
Loss gain on retirement of convertible subordinated notes 2412 1540 14382
Income from equity investment 544
Loss on disposal of assets net 15 287 658

Share-based compensation expense 25353 25632 23712
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Accounts receivable net 12086 17905 26774
Inventories 27161 8574 75588
Prepaid expense and other current and non-current assets 23864 24714 17036
Accounts payable 6736 35257 32573
Accrued liabilities 947 1522 2913
Income tax payable/recoverable 118 5481 4125
Other liabilities 1062 6731 7011

Net cash provided by operating activities 213387 185658 112161

Investing activities

Purchase of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities of securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from sales of trading securities

Purchase of property and equipment

Purchase of businesses net of cash received and transaction costs

Final retainer received from sale of substantially all Bluetooth assets

Purchase of intangibles

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

287617
282523

25714

599

387895
346762

950

8445

279
2712

124501
136142

46467
19874

5850
400

2185

Net cash used in investing activities 30209 46195 47065

Financing activities

Payment of debt

Excess tax benefit from exercises of stock options

Payments proceeds from no net cost loan

Proceeds from the issuance of common stock

Repurchase of common stock including transaction costs

Tax withholding paid on behalf of employees for restricted stock units

Restricted cash associated with financing activities

Repayment of capital lease obligations

149669
111

12900
20728

12652
2528

341
97

208403

600
2474

517
155

36929

13500
3352

340

561

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

157348
25830

104778
1152

207201
67738

172989

473

20298
44798

129750

1559

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 131760 104778 172989

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid during the year for interest 3307 6886 7988

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 21427 20219 13433

Non-cash Investing activities

Transfer of auction rate securities from available-for-sale to trading securities

See accompanying notes

17143

39



RF Micro Devices Inc snd Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form ID-K 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

April 2011

THE COMPANY AND ITS SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

RE Micro Devices Inc the Company was incorporated

under the laws of the State of North Carolina in 1991

The Company is recognized global leader in the design

and manufacture of high-performance radio frequency

RF components and compound semiconductor tech

nologies The Companys products enable worldwide

mobility provide enhanced connectivity and support

advanced functionality in the cellular handset wireless

infrastructure wireless local area network WLAN or

WiFi cable television CATV/broadband Smart

Energy/advanced metering infrastructure AMI and

aerospace and defense markets The Company is rec

ognized for its diverse portfolio of semiconductor tech

nologies and RE systems expertise and is preferred

supplier to the worlds leading mobile device customer

premises and communications equipment providers

The Companys design and manufacturing expertise

encompasses all major applicable semiconductor pro

cess technologies which are accessed through both

internal and external resources The Company is lead

ing manufacturer of gallium arsenide GaAs-based and

gallium nitride GaN compound semiconductors for RE

applications The Company accesses silicon-based

technologies and small percentage of GaAs through

external foundries The Companys broad design and

manufacturing resources enable the Company to deliver

products optimized for performance and cost in order to

best meet customers performance cost and

time-to-market requirements

The Company follows Financial Accounting Standards

Board EASB Accounting Standards Codification ASC
280 Segment Reporting FA$B ASC Topic 280 FASB

ASC Topic 280 establishes standards for the way public

business enterprises report information about operat

ing segments in annual financial statements and in

interim reports to shareholders The method for deter

mining what information to report is based on the way

that management organizes the segments within the

Company for the chief operating decision maker to

make operating decisions allocate resources and

assess financial performance Although the Company

had two operating segments as of April 2011 Cellular

Products Group CPG and Multi-Market Products Group

MPG it reports financial information as one report

able segment pursuant to the aggregation criteria

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the

accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsid

iaries All significant intercompany accounts and trans

actions have been eliminated in consolidation

The Company acquired an immaterial investment in

privately-held company in fiscal 2008 and accounted for it

under the cost method During the third quarter of fiscal

2011 this company was recapitalized and restructured

which increased RFMDs ownership in this company to

approximately 20% As result RFMD adopted and

applied the equity method of accounting to this invest

ment retroactively pursuant to ASC 323 Investments-

Equity Method and Joint Ventures which resulted in an

increase in the Companys equity investment of approx

imately $0.5 million as of April 2011 and an increase

in net income of approximately $0.5 million for fiscal

2011 The investment is recorded in long-term invest

ments in the consolidated balance sheet as of April

2011

The Company completed the acquisition of Universal

Microwave Corporation UMC on April 26 2008 UMCs
results of operations are included in the Companys
fiscal 2009 statement of operations for the period of

April 26 2008 through March 28 2009 and for all of

fiscal years 2010 and 2011

Accounting Periods

The Company uses 52- or 53-week fiscal year ending

on the Saturday closest to March 31 of each year The

most recent three fiscal years ended on April 2011

April 2010 and March 28 2009 Fiscal 2010 was

53-week year and fiscal years 2011 and 2009 were

52-week years

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents shprt

term investments accounts receivable accounts pay

able and other accrued liabilities approximate fair val

ues as of April 2011 and April 2010 See Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion

of the fair value of our investments and other financial

instruments and see Note to the Consolidated Finan

cial Statements for discussion of the fair value of our

debt instruments

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in

conformity with accounting principles generally

accepted in the U.S requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts

reported in the consolidated financial statements and

accompanying notes The Company makes estimates

for the returns reserve allowance for doubtful

accounts inventory reserves warranty reserves

income tax valuation current and deferred income

taxes uncertain tax positions impairment of invest

ments goodwill long-lived assets and other financial

statement amounts on regular basis and makes
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adjustments based on historical experiences and

expected future conditions Accounting estimates

require difficult and subjective judgments and the actual

results may differ from the Companys estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposit

accounts money market funds and other temporary

highly liquid investments with original maturities of three

months or less when purchased

Investments

Available-for-Sale Investments and Trading Securities

Investments are accounted for in accordance with FASB

ASC Topic 320 Investments Debt and Equity Secu

rities Investments available-for-sale at April 2011
and April 2010 consisted of U.S government/

agency securities and auction rate securities ARS
Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value as

determined by quoted market prices with the unrealized

gains and losses net of tax reported as separate

component of shareholders equity The cost of securi

ties sold is based on the specific identification method

and any realized gain or loss is included in other

expense income The amortized cost of debt securi

ties is adjusted for amortization of premium and accre

tion of discounts and is included as portion of interest

As of April 2010 the Company held Level ARS

trading securities which were recorded as restricted

trading security investments on its consolidated bal

ance sheet These Level ARS were settled during fiscal

2011 see Note to the Consolidated Balance Sheet for

further details on the settlement Investments in secu

rities classified as trading securities are measured at

fair value each reporting period with the offset to other

expense income on the statement of operations

Because the unrealized holding losses are included in

earnings through fair value accounting it is not neces

sary to evaluate trading securities for possible impair

ment Cash flows from purchases sales and maturities

of trading securities are classified based on the nature

and purpose for which the securities were acquired and

therefore our cash flows from trading securities are

classified in the investing section of the consolidated

statements of cash flows

The Company assesses individual investments for

impairment quarterly Investments are impaired when

the fair value is less than the amortized cost If an

investment is impaired the Company evaluates whether

the impairment is other-than-temporary debt invest

ment impairment is considered other-than-temporary if

the Company intends to sell the security ii it is more

likely than not that the Company will be required to sell

the security before recovery of the entire amortized cost

basis or iii the Company does not expect to recover

the entire amortized cost basis of the security credit

loss Other-than-temporary declines in the Companys
debt securities are recognized as loss in the state

ment of operations if due to credit loss all other losses

on debt securities are recorded in other comprehensive

income The previous amortized cost basis less the

other-than-temporary impairment becomes the new cost

basis and is not adjusted for subsequent recoveries in

fair value

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market

determined using the average cost method The Com

panys business is subject to the risk of technological

and design changes The Company evaluates inventory

levels quarterly against sales forecasts on product

family basis to evaluate its overall inventory risk

Reserves are adjusted to reflect inventory values in

excess of forecasted sales as well as overall inventory

risk assessments by management In the event the

Company sells inventory that had been covered hy

specific inventoryreserve the sale is recorded at the

actual selling price and the related cost of goods sold is

recorded at the full inventory cost net of the reserve

Abnormally low production levels are charged to

expense in the period incurred rather than as portion

of inventory cost

Product Warranty

The Company generally sells products with limited

warranty on product quality The Company accrues fo
known warranty issues if loss is probable and can be

reasonably estimated and accrues for estimated

incurred but unidentified issues based on historical

activity The accrual and the related expense for known

issues were not significant during the periods pre

sented Due to product testing and the short time typ

ically between product shipment and the detection and

correction of product failures as well as consideringthe

historical rate of payments the accrual and related

expense for estimated incurred but unidentified issues

were not significant during the periods presented

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accu

mulated depreciation Depreciation of property and

equipment is computed using the straight-line method

over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging

from one year to 25 years The Companys assets

acquired under capital leases and leasehold improve

ments are amortized over the lesser of the asset life or

lease term and included in depreciation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The Company performs review if facts and circum

stances indicate that the carrying amount of assets may

not be recoverable or that the useful life is shorter than

had originally been estimated The Company assesses

the recoverability of the assets held for use by compar

ing the projected undiscounted net cash flows associ

ated with the related asset or group of assets over their

remaining estimated useful lives against their respec

tive carrying amounts Impairment if any is based on

the excess of the carrying amount over the fair value of

those assets If the Company determines that the useful

lives are shorter than the Company had originally esti

mated the net book value of the assets is depreciated

over the newly determined remaining useful lives The

Company identifies property and equipment as held for

sale based on the current expectation that more likely

than not an asset or asset group will be sold or other

wise disposed The held for sale assets cease depreci

ation once the assets are classified to the held for sale

category at their fair market value less costs to sell See

Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for

additional information regarding asset impairment

charges related to restructurings

The Company capitalizes the portion of the interest

expense related to certain assets that are not ready

for their intended use and this amount is depreciated

over the estimated useful lives of the qualified assets

The Company additionally records capital related gov

ernment grants earned as reduction to property and

equipment and is depreciated over the estimated useful

lives of the associated assets

Other Receivables

The Company records miscellaneous non-product

receivables that are collectible within 12 months in

other receivables The other receivables category

on the Companys consolidated balance sheets

includes value added tax receivables $8.5 million as

of April 2011 and $32.4 million as of April 2010
which are reported on net basis interest receivables

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paid for

business exceeds the estimated fair value of the net

identified tangible and intangible assets acquired Intan

gibles are recorded when such assets are acquired by

purchase or license The amounts and useful lives

assigned to intangible assets acquired other than

goodwill impact the amount and timing of amortization

For acquisitions prior to fiscal 2010 acquired in-pro

cess research and development with no future alterna

tive use was expensed at the acquisition date For

subsequent acquisitions acquired in-process research

and development with no future alternative use will be

capitalized in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 805
Business Combinations

Goodwill

The Company has determined that it has two reporting

units as of fiscal 2011 CPG and MPG for purposes of

allocating and testing goodwill In evaluating its report

ing units the Company first considers its operating

segments and related components in accordance with

FASB guidance Goodwill is allocated to the reporting

units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of

the business combinations generating the underlying

goodwill As of April 2011 the Companys goodwill

balance of $95.6 million is allocated to its MPG report

ing unit

The Company evaluates its goodwill for potential impair

ment on an annual basis or whenever events or circum

stances indicate that an impairment may have occurred

Goodwill is tested for impairment using two-step pro

cess The first step of the goodwill impairment test is to

identify potential impairment by comparing the esti

mated fair value of each reporting unit containing the

Companys goodwill with the related carrying amount of

the reporting unit

The Company has historically used both the income and

market approaches to estimate the fair value of its

reporting units The income approach involves discount

ing future estimated cash flows The sum of the report

ing unit cash flow projections was compared to the

Companys market capitalization in discounted cash

flow framework to calculate an overall implied internal

rate of return or discount rate for the Company The

Companys market capitalization was adjusted to con

trol basis assuming reasonable control premium

which resulted in an implied discount rate This implied

discount rate serves as baseline for estimating the

specific discount rate for each reporting unit

The discount rate used is the value-weighted average of

the Companys estimated cost of equity and debt cost
of capital derived using both known and estimated

customary market metrics The Companys weighted

average cost of capital is adjusted for each reporting

unit to reflect risk factor if necessary for each report

ing unit The Company performs sensitivity tests with

respect to growth rates and discount rates used in the

income approach The Company believes the income

approach is appropriate because it provides fair value

estimate based upon the respective reporting units

expected long-term operations and cash flow

performance

In applying the market approach valuation multiples are

derived from historical and projected operating data of

RF Micro Devices Inc and subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011
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selected guideline companies which are evaluated and

adjusted if necessary based on the strengths and

weaknesses of the reporting unit relative to the selected

guideline companies The valuation multiples are then

applied to the appropriate historical and/or projected

operating data of the reporting unit to arrive at an indi

cation of fair value The Company believes the market

approach is appropriate because it provides fair value

using multiples from companies with operations and

economic characteristics similar to its reporting units

The Company has weighted the results of the income

approach and the results of the market approach at 60%

and 40% respectively The income approach was given

higher weight because it has more direct correlation

to the specific economics of the reporting units than the

market approach which is based on multiples of com
panies that although comparable may not have the

exact same mix of products and may not have the exact

same systemic or non-systemic risk factors as the

Companys reporting units The Companys methodolo

gies used for valuing goodwill during fiscal 2011 have

not changed as compared to fiscal years 2010 and

2009

If the fair value of the reporting unit is determined to be

less than the carrying value the Company performs the

required step-two analysis in order to determine the

implied fair value of each reporting units goodwill

and determine the amount of the impairment of good

will Determining the implied fair value of goodwill

requires valuation of reporting units tangible and

intangible assets and liabilities in manner similar to

the allocation of purchase price in business combina

tion For purposes of determining the implied fair value

of goodwill the income tax bases of reporting units

assets and liabilities implicit in the tax structure is

assumed in the estimation of fair value of the reporting

unit in step-one

The Company conducts its annual goodwill impairment

test on the first day of the fourth quarter in each fiscal

year and did so in fiscal years 2011 and 2010 without

need to expand the impairment test to step-two How

ever during fiscal 2009 indicators of potential impair

ment caused the Company to conduct an interim

impairment test which was performed as of

November 22 2008 See Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for additional information regard

ing fiscal 2009 goodwill impairment

Inherent in such fair value determinations of the Com
panys reporting units are significant judgments and

estimates including assumptions about future revenue

profitability and cash flows operational plans and inter

pretation of current economic indicators and market

valuations To the extent these assumptions are

incorrect or there are further declines in the Companys
business outlook additional goodwill impairment

charges may be recorded in future periods

For fiscal years 2011 and 2010 the material assump
tions used for the income approach were 10 years of

projected net cash flows discount rate of 16.5%

2011 and 16.0% 2010 and long-term growth rate

of 4% for the MPG reporting unit The Company consid

ered historical rates and current market conditions

when determining the discount and growth rates used

in its analysis The material assumptions used for the

income approach were consistent in fiscal 2009 except

the discount rate for the MPG reporting unit was 18% for

fiscal 2009 as result of missed projections

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consist primarily of technology

licenses customer relationships and acquired product

technology resulting from business combinations Tech

nology licenses are amortized on straight-line basis

over the lesser of the estimated useful life of the tech

nology or the term of the license agreement ranging

from approximately years to 15 years Acquired prod

uct technology and customer relationships are also

amortized on straight-line basis over the estimated

useful life ranging from to 10 years

The Company regularly reviews identified intangible

assets to determine if facts and circumstances indicate

that the useful life is shorter than the Company origi

nally estimated or that the carrying amount of the

assets may not be recoverable If such facts and cir

cumstances exist the Company assesses the recover-

ability of identified intangible assets by comparing the

projected undiscounted net cash flows associated with

the related asset or group of assets over their remaining

lives against their respective carrying amounts Impair

ments if any are based on the excess of the carrying

amount over the fair value of those assets and occur in

the period in which the impairment determination was

made See Note to the Consolidated Financial State

ments for additional information regarding fiscal 2009

identified intangible impairment

The value of acquired in-process research and develop

ment is determined by estimating the costs to develop

the purchased in-process research and development

into commercially viable product estimating the

resulting cash flows from the sale of the products

resulting from the completion of the in-process research

and development and discounting the net cash flows

using an appropriate discount rate net of returns on

contributory assets For acquisitions prior to fiscal

2010 the acquired in-process research and develop

ment with no alternative future use was expensed at the
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acquisition date For subsequent acquisitions acquired

in-process research and development with no alterna

tive future use will be capitalized in accordance with

FASB ASC Topic 805

The value of acquired developed technology is deter

mined by discounting forecasted cash flow directly

related to the existing product technology net of returns

on contributory assets

The value of acquired customer relationships is based

on the benefit derived from the incremental revenue and

related cash flow as direct result of the customer

relationship These forecasted cash flows are dis

counted to present value using an appropriate discount

rate

Revenue Recognition

The Companys net revenue is generated principally

from sales of semiconductor products The Company

derives the remaining balance of its net revenue from

non-recurring engineering fees and cost-plus contracts

for research and development work royalty income and

license fees for its intellectual property and service

revenue which collectively is typically less than 3% of

consolidated revenue on an annual basis Sales of

products are generally made through either the Compa

nys sales force manufacturers representatives or

through distribution network The Company recognizes

revenue from product sales when the fundamental cri

teria.are met such as the time at which the title and risk

and rewards of product ownership are transferred to the

customer price and terms are fixed or determinable no

significant vendor obligation exists and collection of the

resulting receivable is reasonably assured Revenue

from the majority of the Companys semiconductor prod

ucts is recognized upon shipment of the product to the

customer from Company-owned or third-party loca

tion small percentage of revenue generated from the

sale of semiconductor products through distribution

relationship is partially deferred based on the terms

specified in the agreement with the distributor Revenue

from non-recurring engineering fees is recognized when

the service is completed or upon certain milestones as

provided for in the agreements Revenue from cost plus

contracts is recognized on the percentage of completion

method based on the costs incurred to date and the

total contract amount plus the contractual fee Royalty

income is recognized based on percentage of sales of

the relevant product reported by licensees during the

period The Company additionally licenses its rights to

use portions of its intellectual property portfolio which

includes certain patent rights useful in the manufacture

and sales of certain products License fee revenue

recognition is dependent on the terms of each license

agreement which typically include license fees in one or

more installments The Company will recognize license

fee revenue upon delivery of the intellectual property

and ii if the Company has no substantive future obli

gation to perform under the arrangement The Company

will defer recognition of licensing fees where future

performance obligations are required to earn the fee

or the fees are not guaranteed Revenue from services

related to manufacturing is recognized during the period

that the service is performed

In addition the Company has limited rebate programs

with certain customers as part of the sales agreements

The rebates represent less than 2% of sales in fiscal

2011 less than 1% of sales in fiscal 2010 and 0% of

sales in fiscal 2009 The sales rebates can be reason

ably estimated and are accrued against the revenue

during the period in which the revenue related to those

agreements is recognized

Accounts receivable are recorded for all revenue items

listed above The Company evaluates the collectability

of accounts receivable based on combination of fac

tors In cases where the Company is aware of circum

stances that may impair specific customers ability to

meet its financial obligations subsequent to the original

sale the Company will record an allowance against

amounts due and thereby reduce the receivable to

the amount the Company reasonably believes will be

collected For all other customers the Company recog

nizes allowances for doubtful accounts based on the

length of time the receivables are past due industry and

geographic concentrations the current business envi

ronment and the Companys historical experience

Based on these factors the Companys allowance ior

douhtful accounts has typically represented less than

1% of sales and accounts receivable write-offs to date

have been minimal

The Companys terms and conditions do not give its

customers the right of return associated with the original

sale of its product However the Company will authorize

sales returns under certain circumstances which

include perceived quality problems courtesy returns

and like-kind exchanges The Company evaluates its

estimate of returns by analyzing all types of returns

and the timing of such returns in relation to the original

sale The reserve is adjusted to reflect changes in the

estimated returns versus the original sale of product

Historically sales returns have not fluctuated signifi

cantly as percent of sales and remain at approximately

2%

Shipping and Handling Cost

The Company recognizes amounts billed to customer

in sale transaction related to shipping and handling as

RF Micro Devices Inc and subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011
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revenue The costs incurred by the Company for shipping

and handling are classified as cost of goods sold

Research and Development

The Company charges all research and development

costs to expense as incurred

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred

The Company recognized advertising expense of

$0.3 million for fiscal 2011 $0.4 million for fiscal

2010 and $0.6 million for fiscal 2009

Income Taxes

The Comany accounts for income taxes under the

liability method which requires recognition of deferred

tax assets and liabilities for the temporary differences

between the financial reporting and tax basis of assets

and liabilities and for tax carryforwards Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted

statutory tax rates in effect for the years in which the

differences are expected to reverse valuation allow

ance is provided against deferred tax assets to the

extent the Company determines it is more-likely-than-

not likelihood of more than 50 percent that some

portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be

realized

minimum recognition threshold is required to be met

before the Company recognizes the benefit of an income

tax position in the financial statements The Companys

policy is to recognize accrued interest and penalties if

incurred on any unrecognized tax benefits as compo
nent of income tax expense

It is the Companys policy to invest the earnings of

foreign subsidiaries indefinitely outside the U.S Accord

ingly the Company does not provide U.S income taxes

on unremitted foreign earnings

Share-Based Compensation

Under FASB ASC Topic 718 Compensation Stock

Compensation FASB ASC Topic 718 share-based

compensation cost is measured at the grant date

based on the estimated fair value of the award using

an option pricing model Black-Scholes and is recog

nized as expense over the employees requisite service

period

As of April 2011 total remaining unearned compen
sation cost related to nonvested restricted stock units

and options was $29.7 million which will be amortized

over the weighted-average remaining service period of

approximately 1.1 years

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries have

been translated into U.S dollars in accordance with

FASB ASC Topic 830 Foreign Currency Matters The

functional currency for most of the Companys interna

tional operations is the U.S dollar The functional cur

rency for the remainder of the Companys foreign

subsidiaries is the local currency Assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currencies are translated using

the exchange rates on the balance sheet dates Reve

nues and expenses are translated using the average

exchange rates throughout the year Translation adjust

ments are shown separately as component of accu

mulated other comprehensive loss income within

shareholders equity in the consolidated balance

sheets Foreign currency transactions gains or losses

transactions denominated in currency other than the

functional currency are reported in other expense
income in the consolidated statements of operations

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2010 the FASB issued amended standards

that require additional fair value disclosures These

amended standards require disclosures about inputs

and valuation techniques used to measure fair value as

well as disclosures about significant transfers begin

ning in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 Additionally

these amended standards require presentation of dis

aggregated activity within the reconciliation for fair value

measurements using significant unobservable inputs

Level beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2012

The Company believes that adoption of this new guid

ance will not have material impact on its financial

statements

In October 2009 the FASB issued new standards for

revenue recognition with multiple deliverables These

new standards impact the determination of when the

individual deliverables included in multiple-element

arrangement may be treated as separate units of

accounting Additionally these new standards modify

the manner in which the transaction consideration is

allocated across the separately identified deliverables

byno longer permittingthe residual method of allocating

arrangement consideration These new standards are

required to be adopted in the first quarter of fiscal

2012 The Company believes that adoption of this

new guidance will not have material impact on its

financial statements

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Companys principal financial instrument subject to

potential concentration of credit risk is accounts receiv

able which is unsecured The Company provides an

allowance for doubtful accounts equal to estimated

45



RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

losses expected to be incurred in the collection of

accounts receivable

Revenue from significant customers those represent

ing 10% or more of total sales for the respective periods

is summarized as follows

Customer had an accounts receivable balance repre

senting approximately 41% 48% and 58% of the Com

panys total accounts receivable balance as of April

2011 April 2010 and March 28 2009 respectively

INVESTMENTS AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

Investments

The following is summary of available-for-sale securi

ties as of April 2011 and April 2010 in thousands

Available-for-Sale Sectattles

Gross Grass Estimated

Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Coet GuIse Losses Value

April 2011

u.s government/sgency secarities

Aaction rate securities

Money market fands

$159837

2150

31748

$193735

$44

$44

$159881

2150

31748

$193779

April 2010

U.S government/agency securities

Aaction rate securities

Money market funds

$134897

2175

40593

$177665

$20

$20

$134882

2175

40593

$177650

The estimated fair value of available-for-sale securities

was based on the prevailing market values on April

2011 and April 2010 We determine the cost of an

investment sold based on the specific identification

method

In fiscal 2011 the gross realized gains and losses

recognized on available-for-sale securities were insignif

icant In fiscal 2010 the gross realized gains on availa

ble-for-sale securities were less than $0.1 million and

there were no gross realized losses

No available-for-sale investments were in continuous

unrealized loss position as of April 2011 The availa

ble-for-sale investments that were in continuous unre

alized loss position for less than 12 months as of April

2010 consisted of U.S government/agency securities

with gross unrealized losses of less than $0.1 million

and an aggregate fair value of approximately $83.9 mil

lion There were no available-for-sale investments in

continuous unrealized loss position for 12 months or

greater on April 2011 and April 2010

The amortized cost of investments in debt securities

with contractual maturities is as follows in thousands

Due in less than one year

Due after ten years

$191585 $191629 $175490 $175475

2150 2150 2175 2175

Total investments in debt

securities $193735 $193779 $177665 $177650

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures the fair value of its marketable

securities and trading securities which are comprised

of U.S government/agency securities ARS and money

market funds Marketable securities are reported in

cash and cash equivalents short-term investments

and long-term investments on the Companys consoli

dated balance sheet and are recorded at fair value and

the related unrealized gains and losses are included in

accumulated other comprehensive income loss

component of shareholders equity net of tax Trading

securities are included in restricted trading security

investments with the related unrealized gains and

losses recorded in earnings

FASB guidance specifies hierarchy of valuation tech

niques based on whether the inputs to those valuation

techniques are observable or unobservable Observ

able inputs reflect market data obtained from indepØn

dent sources while unobservable inputs reflect the

Companys market assumptions These two types of

inputs have created the following fair-value hierarchy

Level Quoted prices for identical instruments in

active markets

Level Quoted prices for similar instruments in

active markets quoted prices for identical or similar

instruments in markets that are not active and

model-derived valuations in which all significant

inputs and significant value drivers are observable

in active markets and

Level 3Valuations derived from valuation tech

niques in which one or more significant inputs or

significant value drivers are unobservable

This hierarchy requires the Company to minimize the use

of unobservable inputs and to use observable market

data if available when determining fair value

Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Customer 39% 55% 52%

AprIl 2011 AprIl 2010

Estimated Estimated

Cast FuIr Value Cast Fair Valae
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Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on

Recurring Basis

The fair value of the financial assets measured at fair

value on recurring basis was determined using the

following levels of inputs as of April 2011 in

thousands

Qeotet CU In

Meet Markets Eon Sigrdtoare teen egnitcant

Identical Assets Obsanable masts tnobaareatde Inputs

Total lLaetIll lLoeaI2l lLoYds

April 2021

U.S government/agency

securaies

Auction rate aecurtties

Money market fonda

$159881

2150

31748

$159881

31748

2150

$193779 $192829 $2150

April 2010

U.S government/agency

securities $134882 $134882

Auction rate securities 19423 2175 17248

Pot optinn 2302 2302

Money market fonda 40593 40593

$197200 $175475 $2175 $19550

ARS are debt instruments with interest rates that reset

through periodic short-term auctions The Companys
Level ARS are valued at par based on quoted prices for

identical or similar instruments in markets that are not

active

As of April 2010 the Companys Level ARS con

sisted of AAA rated securities issued primarily by stu

dent loan corporations which were municipalities of

various U.S state governments These Level ARS

were not liquid and the fair values of the student loan

ARS could not be estimated based on observable mar
ket prices The Company estimated the Level ARS fair

values with the assistance of third party investment

advisor using discounted cash flow model The

assumptions used in preparing the discounted cash

flow model included the expected timing of successful

auctions or refinancings in the future the composition

and quality of the underlying collateral and the credit

worthiness of the issuer and the probability of full

repayment considering the guarantees by Federal Family

Education Loan Program FFELP of the underlying stu

dent loans

In the third quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company

accepted settlement agreement with the securities

firm from which the Company purchased all of its Level

ARS The securities firm had reached settlement with

the SEC and various state regulatory agencies under

which the securities firm agreed to restore liquidity to

certain clients holding ARS In accordance with this

settlement the securities firm agreed for the Company

to have the right to sell its outstanding Level ARS to

the securities firm at par value i.e the face amount

plus accrued but unpaid dividends or interest at any

time during the period of June 30 2010 through July

2012 In addition the securities firm agreed to provide

the Company with no net cost credit line of up to 75%

of the market value of its outstanding Level ARS

pending the securities firms purchase of the Compa
nys ARS The settlement feature entered into under this

settlement agreement is separate freestanding instru

ment accounted for separately from the ARS is reg

istered nontransferable security and was accounted for

as put option The Company elected fair value account

ing in order to mitigate volatility in earnings caused by

accounting for the put option and underlying ARS under

different methods The Company determined the fair

value of the settlement option using probability-

weighted cash flow analysis with varying assumptions

for the amount and timing of potential cash flows

In the first quarter of fiscal 2011 the Company exe

cuted on its right to sell its outstanding Level ARS to

the securities firm at par value i.e the face amount

plus accrued but unpaid dividends or interest Prior to

the settlement the Companys Level ARS were clas

sified as restricted trading security investments on its

consolidated balance sheet as these ARS securities

were pledged as collateral for the no net cost credit

line The no net cost loan was repaid with portion of

the proceeds from the sale see Note to the Consol

idated Financial Statements Due to the sale of the

Level ARS the Companys put option was settled and

other current assets was reduced

During fiscal 2011 the changes in the fair value of the

assets measured on recurring basis using significant

unobservable inputs Level were comprised of the

following in thousands

Auction Rats

securities Put Option

Level balance at April 2010 17248 2302

Settlement of ARS first quarter of

fiscal 2011 17248 2302

Level balance at April 2011

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on

Nonrecurring Basis

The Companys non-financial assets such as goodwill

intangible assets and property and equipment are mea
sured at fair value when there is an indicator of impair

ment and recorded at fair value only when an

impairment charge is recognized The Company did

not have any non-financial assets or liabilities measured

at fair value during fiscal 2011 For fiscal 2010the

Company recorded an impairment of $0.8 million of

certain property and equipment The fair value of these

impaired assets was estimated to be $0.4 million using

significant Level unobservable input market
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valuation approach The market valuation approach

uses prices and other relevant information generated

primarily by recent market transactions involving similar

or comparable assets as well as the Companys his

torical experience

Financial Instruments Not Recorded at Fair Value

For financial instruments that are not recorded at fair

value such as the Companys convertible subordinated

notes the Company discloses the fair value in its Notes

to the Consolidated Financial Statements As of April

2011 the fair values of the Companys convertible

subordinated notes exceeded their carrying values

see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVENTORIES

The components of inventories are as follows in

thousands

Fiscal Year 2011 2010

Raw materials 35851 29321

Work in process 53219 46208

Finished goods 60743 46980

Total inventories 149813 122509

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for fiscal

years 2009 2010 and 2011 are as follows in

thousands

Balance as of March 29 2008

Rscal 2009 activity

Acquisitions and acquisition adjustments

Impairment losses

Tax adjustments

Balance as of March 28 2009 95628

Fiscal 2010 activity

Rscal 2011 activity

Balance as of April 2011 95628

The Company performs impairment tests of goodwill at

its reporting unit level CPG and MPG Goodwill is allo

cated to the Companys reporting units that are

expected to benefit from the synergies of the business

combinations generating the underlying goodwill As of

April 2011 and April 2010 the Companys goodwill

balance of $95.6 million was allocated to its MPG

reporting unit

The Company conducts its annual goodwill impairment

test on the first day of the fourth quarter in each fiscal

year Based on the Companys fiscal 2011 and fiscal

2010 annual impairment reviews of goodwill no impair

ment was indicated as the estimated fair value of MPG

exceeded its carrying value The Companys methodol

ogies used for valuing goodwill during fiscal 2011 have

not changed from fiscal 2010 or fiscal 2009

During fiscal 2009 indicators of potential impairment

caused the Company to conduct an interim impairment

test which was performed as of November 22 2008

Those indicators included significant decrease in mar
ket capitalization decline in recent operating results

and decline in the Companys business outlook pri

marily due to the macroeconomic environment The

Company completed step one of the impairment anal

ysis and estimated the fair value of its reporting units

using certain assumptions including two generally

accepted valuation methodologies the income

approach discounted cash flows and ii the market

approach enterprise value and guideline company

analysis The income approach involves discounting

future estimated cash flows The sum of the reporting

unit cash flow projections was compared to the Compa

nys market capitalization in discounted cash flow

framework to calculate an overall implied internal rate

of return or discount rate for the Company The Com

panys market capitalization was adjusted to control

basis assuming reasonable control premium which

resulted in an implied discount rate This implied dis

count rate serves as baseline for estimating the spe
cific discount rate for each reporting unit

The discount rate used was the value-weighted average

of the Companys estimated cost of equity and debt

cost of capital derived using both known and esti

mated customary market metrics The Companys

weighted average cost of capital was adjusted for each

reporting unit to reflect risk factor if necessary for

each reporting unit The Company performed sensitivity

tests with respect to growth rates and discount rates

used in the income approach The Company believes the

income approach is appropriate because it provides

fair value estimate based upon the respective reporting

units expected long-term operations and cash flow

performance

In applying the market approach valuation multiples are

derived from historical and projected operating data of

selected guideline companies which are evaluated and

adjusted if necessary based on the strengths and

weaknesses of the reporting unit relative to the selected

guideline companies The valuation multiples are then

applied to the appropriate historical and/or projected

operating data of the reporting unit to arrive at an indi

cation of fair value The Company believes the market

approach is appropriate because it provides fair value

using multiples from companies with operations and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

701317

15218

619551

1356
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economic characteristics similar to its reporting units

The Company weighted the results of the income

approach and the results of the market approach at

60% and 40% respectively The income approach was

given slightly higher weight because it has more

direct correlation to the specific economics of the

reporting units than the market approach which is

based on multiples of companies that although com

parable may not have the exact same mix of products

and may not have the exact same systemic or non-

systemic risk factors as the Companys reporting units

As the fair value of the reporting unit was determined to

be less than the carrying value the Company performed

step-two analysis in accordance with FASB guidance in

order to determine the implied fair value of each report

ing units goodwill and determine the amount of the

impairment of goodwill Determining the implied fair

value of goodwill requires valuation of reporting units

tangible and intangible assets and liabilities in manner

similar to the allocation of purchase price in business

combination

The Companys impairment review process compares

the fair value of the reporting unit in which goodwill

resides to its carrying value

As result of the impairment review the Company

subsequently concluded that as of November 22
2008 the fair value of both of its reporting units was

below their respective carrying values As such the

Company completed step-two analysis in order to

determine the implied fair value of each reporting units

goodwill and determine the amount of the impairment of

goodwill Determining the implied fair value of goodwill

requires valuation of reporting units tangible and

intangible assets and liabilities in manner similar to

the allocation of purchase price in business combina

tion Based on the work performed the Company

recorded goodwill impairment charge of $619.6 million

in other operating expense in the consolidated state

ment of operations for fiscal 2009 Of the total goodwill

impairment of $619.6 million $526.5 million related to

the MPG reporting unit and $93.1 million related to the

CPG reporting unit The remaining goodwill of $95.6 mil

lion was allocated to the MPG reporting unit

During fiscal 2009 goodwill increased by $12.8 million

as result of the acquisition of UMC on April 26 2008

see Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The remaining increase relates to the refining of the fair

values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in

the Sirenza acquisition as part of the allocation period

As of April 2011 approximately $5.2 million of net

goodwill related to the 2008 acquisition of Sirenza is

expected to be deductible for income tax purposes in

future periods

The following summarizes certain information regarding

gross carrying amounts and amortization of intangibles

in thousands

intangible Assets

Technology

licenses 10596 9067 10625 8467

Customer

relationships 43100 10287 43100 6007

Acquired product

technoiogy 85566 36223 85566 22648

Total $139262 $55577 $139291 $37122

During fiscal 2009 indicators were present that caused

the Company to conduct an interim assessment of the

recoverability of its intangible assets as of November22

2008 Those indicators included significant decrease

in market capitalization decline in recent operating

results and decline in the Companys business out

look primarily due to the macroeconomic environment

Therefore the Company performed an impairment anal

ysis of its finite-lived intangible assets based on

comparison of the undiscounted cash flows to the

recorded carrying value of the intangible assets and

it was determined that potential impairment was

present As result of this analysis the Company

was required to determine the fair value of its finite-

lived intangible assets and compare the fair value to the

carrying value The value of acquired developed tech

nology was determined by discounting forecasted cash

flow directly related to the developed technology net of

returns on contributory assets The value of acquired

customer relationships is based on the benefit derived

from the incremental revenue and related cash flow as

direct result of the customer relationship These fore

casted cash flows are discounted to present value using

an appropriate discount rate As result the carrying

value exceeded the fair value and the Company

recorded impairments of $33.7 million related to devel

oped technology and $33.3 million related to customer

relationships The impairment charges were recorded in

other operating expense in the statement of opera

tions for the fiscal year ended March 28 2009

Intangible asset amortization expense was $18.5 mil

lion $19.0 million and $26.2 million in fiscal years

2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The following table

provides the Companys estimated future amortization

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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April 2011 April 2010

Gross Gross

Carrying Accumniated Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
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expense based on current amortization periods for the

periods indicated in thousands

Estimated

Amortization

Fiscal Year Ending Expense

2012

2013

2014

2015 13286

2016

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Universal Microwave Corporation

On April 26 2008 the Company acquired UMC for

approximately $24.1 million in cash including transac

tion costs of $0.9 million UMC designs and manufac

tures high performance RF oscillators and synthesizers

primarily for point-to-point radios CAN head-end equip

ment and military communications radio markets The

acquisition of UMC furthered the Companys diversifi

cation strategy

The total purchase price of $24.1 million was allocated

to assets acquired of $16.7 million including identifi

able intangible assets of $10.4 million and liabilities

assumed of $5.3 million based on their fair values as

determined by the Company as of April 26 2008 and

resulted in goodwill of $12.8 million The identifiable

intangible assets included customer relationships of

$1.7 million acquired producttechnology of $7.3 million

and in-process research and development with no alter

native future use of $1.4 million The in-process

research and development with no alternative future

use was charged to other operating expense at the

acquisition date

UMCs results of operations are included in the Compa

nys statement of operations as of April 26 2008 The

results of UMC are not significant to the overall results

of the Company

Convertible subordinated

notes due 2010 net of

discount

Convertible subordinated

notes due 2012 net of

discount 58317 173747

Convertible subordinated

notes due 2014 net of

discount 111992 105499

Bank loan 7034

No net cost credit line 12900

Equipment term loan net

of discount 3852 8961

Subtotal 181195 317790

Less current portion 3852 27953

Total long-term debt $177343 $289837

Aggregate debt maturities as of April 2011 are as

follows in thousands

Fiscal Years

2012 3852

2013 65351

2014

2015 111992

2016 and thereafter

Total $181195

Convertible Debt

In April 2007 the Company issued $200 million aggre

gate principal amount of 0.75% Convertible Subordi

nated Notes due 2012 the 2012 Notes and

$175 million aggregate principal amount of 1.00% Con

vertible Subordinated Notes due 2014 the 2014

Notes and together with the 2012 Notes the

Notes The Notes were issued in private placement

to Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated for

resale to qualified institutional buyers Offering

expenses in connection with the issuance of the Notes

including discounts and commissions were approxi

mately $8.8 million which are being amortized as inter

est expense over the terms of the Notes based on the

effective interest method

Interest on both series of the Notes is payable in cash

semiannually in arrears on April 15 and October 15 of

each year beginning October 15 2007 The 2012

RF Micro Devices Inc and subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011
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DEBT

Debt at April 2011 and April 2010 is as follows in

thousands

AprIl 2011 AprIl 2010

$18394

18320

17992

4280

9944

6739
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Notes mature on April 15 2012 and the 2014 Notes

mature on April 15 2014 The Notes are subordinated

unsecured obligations of the Company and rank junior in

right of payment to all of the Companys existing and

future senior debt The Notes effectively are subordi

nated to the indebtedness and other liabilities of the

Companys subsidiaries

Holders may convert either series of the Notes based on

the applicable conversion rate which is currently

124.2969 shares of the Companys common stock

per $1000 principal amount of the notes which is

equal to an initial conversion price of approximately

$8.05 per share subject to adjustment only under

the following circumstances during any calendar

quarter after June 30 2007 if as of the last day of

the immediately preceding calendar quarter the closing

price of the Companys common stock for at least 20

trading days in the 30 consecutive trading day period

ending on the last trading day of such preceding calen

dar quarter is more than 120% of the applicable con

version rate per share ii if during any five business day

period after any five consecutive trading day period in

which the trading price per $1000 principal amount of

notes for each day of that period is less than 98% of the

product of the closing price of the Companys common
stock for each day in the period and the applicable

conversion rate per $1000 principal amount of notes

iii if certain specified distributions to all holders of the

Companys common stock occur iv if fundamental

change occurs or at any time during the 30-day

period immediately preceding the final maturity date

of the applicable notes Upon conversion in lieu of

shares of the Companys common stock for each

$1000 principal amount of notes holder will receive

an amount in cash equal to the lesser of $1000 or

ii the conversion value as determined under the appli

cable indentures governing the notes If the conversion

value exceeds $1000 the Company also will deliver at

its election cash or common stock or combination of

cash and common stock equivalent to the amount of the

conversion value in excess of $1000 The maximum
number of shares issuable upon conversion of the

Notes as of April 2011 is approximately 19.0 million

shares subsequent to the purchase and retirement by

the Company of $177.9 million principal amount of the

Notes which may be adjusted as result of stock

splits stock dividends and antidilution provisions

Holders of the Notes who convert their notes in connec

tion with fundamental change as defined in the inden

tures may be entitled to make whole premium in the

form of an increase in the conversion rate applicable to

their notes In addition in the event of fundamental

change holders of the notes may require the Company

to purchase for cash all or portion of their notes

subject to specified exceptions at price equal to 100%

of the principal amount of the notes plus accrued and

unpaid interest if any up to but not including the

fundamental change purchase date

During fiscal 2011 the Company purchased and retired

$135.5 million aggregate principal amount of its 2012

Notes for an average price of $99.32 which resulted in

loss of approximately $2.4 million During fiscal 2010
the Company purchased and retired $2.3 million aggre

gate principal amount of the 2012 Notes at an average

price of $78.56 which resulted in gain of approxi

mately $0.3 million

During fiscal 2010 the Company purchased and retired

$7.8 million aggregate principal amount of its 2014

Notes at an average price of $61.55 which resulted

in gain of approximately $1.6 million During fiscal

2009 the Company purchased and retired $32.3 million

aggregate principal amount of its 2014 Notes at an

average price of $41.47 which resulted in gain of

approximately $10.6 million

The 2012 Notes had fair value on the Private Offer

ings Resale and Trading through Automated Linkages

PORTAL Market of $66.1 million as of April 2011

excluding $137.8 million of the aggregate principal

amount of the 2012 Notes that were purchased and

retired as of April 2011 and $191.5 million as of

April 2010 excluding $2.3 million of the aggregate

principal amount of the 2012 Notes that were pur

chased and retired as of April 2010 The 2014 Notes

had fair value on the PORTAL Market of $145.0 million

as of April 2011 excluding $40.1 million of the

aggregate principal amount of the 2014 Notes that were

purchased and retired as of April 2011 and

$122.8 million as of April 2010 excluding $40.1 mil

lion of the aggregate principal amount of the 2014

Notes that were purchased and retired as of April

2010

The following tables provide additional information

about the Notes which are subject to FASB ASC Topic

470-20 Debt with Conversion and Other Options

FASB ASC Topic 470-20 in thousands

2012 Notes 2014 Notes

2011 2010 2011 2200

carrying amount of the equity

component additional paid-in

capital $21731 31310 34492 34492

Principal amount of the convertible

subordinated notes 62248 197748 134901 134901

Unamortized discount of the

liability component 3931 24001 22909 29402

Net carrying amount of liability

component $58317 $173747 $111992 $105499

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Effective interest rate

on liability

component 7.3% 7.3% 7.3% 7.2% 7.2% 7.2%

Cash interest espense

recognized 940 1507 1495 $1345 $1378 $1701

Non-cash interest

espense recognized $7282 $10901 $10055 $6493 $6184 $7063

As of April 22011 the remaining period over .which the

unamortized discount will be amortized for the 2012

Notes and 2014 Notes is 1.0 years and 3.0 years

respectively As of April 2011 the if-converted value

of the Notes did not exceed the principal amount of

either the 2012 Notes or the 2014 Notes

In accordance with FASB Topic ASC 470-20 the Com

pany records gains and losses on the early retirement of

its 2012 Notes and its 2014 Notes in the period of

derecognition depending on whether the fair market

value at the time of derecognition was greater than or

less than the carrying value of the debt

During fiscal 2004 the Company completed the private

placement of $230.0 million aggregate principal

amount of 1.50% convertible subordinated notes due

2010 the 2010 Notes The net proceeds of the

offering were approximately $224.7 million after pay

ment of the underwriting discount and expenses of the

offering totaling $5.3 million

During fiscal 2009 the Company purchased and retired

$23.0 million of the original principal amount of the

2010 Notes at an average price of $82.83 which

resulted in gain of approximately $3.8 million During

fiscal 2010 the Company purchased and retired at

100% of the original principal amount $197.0 million

of the 2010 Notes which resulted in loss of $0.4 mil

lion due to the write-off of the unamortized discount and

debt issuance cost On July 2010 the remaining

$10.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 2010

Notes matured and was repaid

No Net Cost Credit Line

In November 2008 the Company entered into an agree

ment with the securities firm that held the Companys
Level auction rate securities ARS under which the

securities firm gave the Company the right to sell its

outstanding Level ARS to the securities firm at par

value i.e the face amount plus accrued but unpaid

dividends or interest at any time during the period of

June 30 2010 through July 2012 As part of the

agreement the Company executed on no net cost

credit line option Credit Line Agreement which means

that the interest that the Company owed on the credit

line obligation would not exceed the interest that the

Company receives on its Level ARS which were

pledged as first priority collateral for this loan Pursuant

to the terms and conditions of the Credit Line Agree

ment the Company borrowed up to 75% of the market

value of its outstanding Level ARS In the first quarter

of fiscal 2011 the Company executed on its right to sell

its outstanding Level ARS to the securities firm at par

value i.e the face amount plus accrued but unpaid

dividends or interest The no net cost loan was repaid

with portion of the proceeds from the sale

Other Debt

During fiscal 2008 the Company entered into loan

denominated in Renminbi with bank in Being China

which is payable in April 2012 As of April 2011 this

loan was equivalent to approximately $7.0 million with

the amount fluctuating based on currency rates The

proceeds were used for the expansion of the Companys
internal assembly facility Interest is calculated at 95%

of the Peoples Bank of China benchmark interest rate at

the end of each month and is payable on the twentieth

day of the last month of each quarter the Peoples Bank

of China benchmark interest rate for three- to five-year

loan was 6.45% effective as of February 2011 which

is the most recent published rate available as of April

2011 The Company received cash incentive from the

Beuing Municipal Bureau of Industrial Development in

support of the expansion of its China facility which

offset the amount of monthly interest expense for the

first two years of the loan

Duringfiscal 2007 the Companyentered into $25.0 mil

lion asset-based financing agreement equipment term

loan The net proceeds from the equipment term loan

were approximately $24.8 million after payment of admiri

istrative fees and issuance costs totaling $0.2 million

which are being amortized as interest expense over the

term of the loan based on the effective interest method

The equipment term loan is payable in equal monthly

installments of principal and interest of approximately

$0.5 million commencing on August 2006 with final

balloon payment of approximately $3.0 million due on

July 2011 The interest rate on the equipment term

loan is approximately 7.87% The equipment term loan is

secured by first priority lien on certain of the Companys

manufacturing equipment Under the terms of the equip

ment term loan the Company must maintain on quar

terly basis ratio of senior funded debt to EBITDA of not

greater than 3.5 to 1.0 and unencumbered cash or cash-

equivalent holdings of not less than $50.0 million Senior

funded debt is defined as current- and long-term debt plus

capital leases and EBITDA is defined as operating

income under GAAP plus ii depreciation and amortiza

tion expense plus iii all non-cash expenses and losses

minus all non-cash income and gains As of April 2011

the Company was in compliance with these covenants
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Germany Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Company maintains qualified defined benefit pen
sion plan for its subsidiary located in Germany The plan

is unfunded with benefit obligation of approximately

$3.3 million and $3.0 million as of April 2011 and

April 2010 respectively which is included in accrued

liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the con

solidated balance sheet The assumptions used in cal

culating the benefit obligation for the plan are

dependent on the local economic conditions and were

measured as of April 22011 and April 32010 The net

periodic benefit costs were approximately $0.3 million

$0.2 million and $0.3 million for fiscal years 2011
2010 and 2009 respectively

U.S Defined Contribution Plan

Each U.S employee is eligible to participate in the

Companys fully qualified 401k plan immediately upon

hire An employee may invest pretax earnings in the

401k plan up to the maximum legal limits as defined

by Federal regulations

Employer contributions to the plan are made at the

discretion of the Companys Board of Directors An

employee is fully vested in the employer contribution

portion of the plan after completion of two continuous

years of service The Company contributed $3.8 million

$0.9 million and $2.7 million to the plan during fiscal

years 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively The Com

pany decreased contributions to the 401k plan in fiscal

years 2010 and 2009 due to the adverse macroeco

nomic business environment On January 2010 as

result of the Companys improved financial perfor

mance the Company resumed and increased its poten

tial maximum contributions to the 401k plan

European Defined Contribution Plans

Employees of the Companys subsidiaries located in

Denmark and U.K are eligible to participate in stake-

holder pension plan immediately upon hire or after three

months of service An employee may invest their earn

ings in their respective stakeholder pension plans and

receive tax benefit based upon the pension plan

Employer contributions to the plan are made at the

discretion of the Companys Board of Directors The

Company contributed $0.7 million $0.9 million and

$1.2 million to these defined contribution plans during

fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Asian Defined Contribution Plans

Employees of the Companys subsidiaries located in

Taiwan Korea Japan and India are eligible to participate

in national pension plan immediately upon hire An

employee may invest their earnings in their respective

national pension plans and receive tax benefit based

upon the national pension plan Employer contributions

to the plan are at the discretion of their local government

regulators The Company contributed $0.1 million to

these defined contribution plans for each of the last

three fiscal years

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company leases certain equipment and computer

hardware and software under non-cancelable lease

agreements that are accounted for as capital leases

Interest rates on capital leases ranged from 6.0% to

6.4% as of April 2011 Equipment under capital lease

arrangements is included in property and equipment

and has cost of less than $0.5 million as of April

2011 and April 2010

The Company leases the majority of its corporate wafer

fabrication and other facilities from several third-party

real estate developers The remaining terms of these

operating leases range from less than year to

12 years Several have renewal options of up to two

10-year periods and several also include standard infla

tion escalation terms Several also include rent escala

tion rent holidays and leasehold improvement

incentives which are recognized to expense on

straight-line basis The amortization period of leasehold

improvements made either at the inception of the lease

or during the lease term is amortized over the lesser of

the remaining life of the lease term or the useful life of

the asset The Company also leases various machinery

and equipment and office equipment under non-cancel

able operating leases The remaining terms of these

operating leases range from less than one year tp

approximately three years As of April 2011 the total

future minimum lease payments were approximately

$36.1 million related to facility operating leases and

approximately $0.4 million related to equipment oper

ating leases
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Minimum future lease payments under non-cancelable

capital and operating leases as of April 2011 are as

follows in thousands

Fiscal Years Capital Operating

2012 73 9570

2013 73 7957

2014 73 6177

2015 73 3820

2016 17 3237

Thereafter 5750

Total minimum payment $309 $36511

Less amounts representing

interest 37

Present value of minimum lease

payments 272

Less current portion 58

Obligations under capital leases

less current portion $214

Rent expense under operating leases including facili

ties and equipment was approximately $9.7 million

$8.7 million and $12.1 million with an additional

$15.6 million in lease termination costs included in

restructuring for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively

Legal Matters

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings

and claims that have arisen in the ordinary course of its

business that have not been fully adjudicated These

actions when finally concluded and determined will not

environment restructuring plan in thousands

in the opinion of management have material adverse

effect upon the Companys consolidated financial posi

tion or results of operations

10 RESTRUCTURING AND ASSET SALE

Restructuring resulting from adverse macroeconomic

business environment

During the second half of fiscal 2009 the Company

initiated restructuring to reduce manufacturing capac

ity and costs and operating expenses due primarily to

lower demand for its products resulting from the global

economic slowdown The restructuring decreased the

Companys workforce and resulted in the impairment of

certain property and equipment among other charges

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company ini

tiated additional reductions due to the adverse macro

economic business environment The Company decided

to outsource certain non-core manufacturing operations

and consolidate the Shanghai test and assembly oper

ations with its primary test and assembly facility in

Being China

The Company recorded restructuring charges in other

operating expense of approximately $0.7 million

$2.8 million and $67.1 million in fiscal years 2011
2010 and 2009 respectively related to one-time

employee termination benefits impaired assets and

lease and other contract termination costs Restructur

ing charges for impaired assets including property

plant and equipment totaled $0.1 million and $0.7 mil

lion for fiscal years 2011 and 2010 respectively The

fair value of the impaired assets was estimated based

on the discounted cash flow method
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The following table summarizes the restructuring activities associated with the adverse macroeconomic business

One-Time

Employee
Termination

Benefits

Lease and

Other

Asset Contract

Impairments Terminations Total

Accrued restructuring balance as of March 28 2009

Costs incurred and charged to expense

Adjustments to expense

Cash payments

Non-cash settlement

1907

1574

3457

847

148

699

$10906

498

1704

$12813

2919

148
5161

699

Accrued restructuring balance as of April

Costs incurred and charged to expense

Cash payments

Non-cash settlement

2010 24

24
96

96

9700
554

1760

9724
650

1784
96

Accrued restructuring balance as of April 2011 8494 8494

Adjustments related to finalizing the sale of certain assets
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The Company has incurred and expects to incur the

following restructuring charges associated with the

adverse macroeconomic business environment restruc

turing in thousands

Flscal 2009 Flecal 2010 FIscal 2011 Future Total

One-time employee

terminetion benefit coete

Aeeet impeirmente

Leeee end other contrect

terminetion costs

4390

51432

11292

$1574

699

498

96

554

5964

52227

3500 15844

Total restructuring cherges $67114 $2771 $650 $3500 $74035

As of Ariril 2011 the restructuring associated with

the adverse macroeconomic business environment is

substantially complete The Company expects to record

approximately $3.5 million of additional restructuring

charges primarily associated with ongoing expenses

related to exited leased facilities

Fiscal 2009 restructuring to reduce or eliminate

investments in wireless systems

In the first quarter of fiscal 2009 the Company initiated

restructuring to reduce or eliminate its investment in

wireless systems including cellular transceivers and

GPS solutions in order to focus on RF component

opportunities Additionally the Company consolidated

its production test facilities in an effort to reduce cycle

time better serve its customer base and improve its

overall profitability

As part of this restructuring the Company reduced its

global workforce by approximately 10 percent The Com

pany recorded restructuring charges in other operating

expense of less than $0.1 million $1.0 million and

$47.1 million in fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

respectively related to one-time employee termination

benefits impaired assets including property plant and

equipment and lease and other contract termination

costs The fair value of the impaired assets was esti

mated based on quoted market prices of similar assets
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The current and long-term restructuring obligations totaling $8.4 million and $9.7 million as of April 2011 and April

2010 respectively are included in accrued liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the consolidated balance

sheets

The following table summarizes restructuring activities associated with the fiscal 2009 restructuring to reduce or

eliminate the Companys investment in wireless systems in thousands

One-Time Lease and

Employee Other

Termination Asset Contract

Benefits Impairments Terminations Total

Accrued restructuring balance as of March

Costs incurred and charged to expense

Adjustments to expense

Cash payments

Non-cash settlement

28 2009 61

33
33

1276

1276

3160

433

695
1333

3221

1714

728
1366
1276

Accrued restructuring balance as of April 2010

Costs incurred and charged to expense

Adjustments to expense

Cash payments

Non-cash settlement

21

21

1565

51
381

1565

21

51
381
21

Accrued restructuring balance as of April 2011 1133 1133

Adjustments related to finalizing certain contracts
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The current and long-term restructuring obligations total

ing $1.1 million and $1.6 million as of April 2011 and

April 2010 respectively are included in accrued

liabilities and other long-term liabilities in the con

solidated balance sheets

The Company has incurred the following restructuring

charges associated with the fiscal 2009 restructuring to

reduce or eliminate the Companys investment in wire

less systems in thousands

Fiscai Fiscal Fiscai

2009 2010 2011 Total

Lease and other

contract

termination costs 13473 262 51 13160

One-time employee

termination

benefit costs

Asset impairments

Total restructuring

charges $47069 986 $30 $48025

As of April 2011 the restructuring to reduce or elim

inate the Companys investment in wireless systems is

substantially complete and the Company doesnt expect

to record additional restructuring charges

Bluetooth sale and related restructuring charges

In December 2006 the Company sold substantially all

of its Bluetooth assets to QUALCOMM for cash pur

chase price of $39.0 million and the assumption by

QUALCOMM of certain liabilities These assets related

to the Companys Bluetooth 2.0 Enhanced Data Rate

products with HCI Interface embodied in the Companys

next-generation RF4000 series products the next-gen

eration radio modem component SiW1722 as well as

associated fixed assets intellectual property inventory

and receivables The Company has retained and contin

ues to sell and support certain Bluetooth specification

Version 1.2 qualified products including its radio

modem products SiW1712 and SiW1721 and HCI inter

face products SiW3000 and SiW3500

On December 15 2006 the closing date of the trans

action with QUALCOMM the Company received cash of

approximately $32.6 million net of transaction costs

with the remaining $5.9 million of the cash purchase

price retained by QUALCOMM for period of 18 months

as security for the indemnification obligations of the

Company which included indemnification for losses

arising out of any breach by the Company of any repre

sentations warranties or covenants contained in the

Asset Purchase Agreement with QUALCOMM During

fiscal 2009 the Company received final cash payment

of approximately $5.9 million The Company incurred

restructuring expenses of less than $0.1 million for

fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 related to lease

costs and miscellaneous administrative expenses

which are included in other operating expense
income in the Companys consolidated financial

statements

11 INCOME TAXES

Income loss before income taxes consists of the fol

lowing components in thousands

Flscai Year 2011 2010 2009

United States 23955 $28572 $881833

Foreign 99550 56262 1825

Total $123505 $84834 $880008

FIscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Current expense

Federal

State

Foreign

1442 2125 19

568 676 28

21454 17690 10120

20580 16241 10073

Deferred benefit

Federal

State

Foreign

576
54

22263

21633

1344
72

3842

2426

4490

6600

8913

2177

Total 1053 513815 7896

9023 28 8995

24573 1276 21 25870

The components of the income tax benefit provision

are as follows in thousands
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reconciliation of the benefit from or provision for income taxes to income tax benefit or expense computed by

applying the statutory federal income tax rate to pre-tax income loss for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 is as

follows dollars in thousands

2011 2010 2009

FIscal Year Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

Income tax expense benefit at

statutory federal rate $43227 35.00%

Decrease increase resulting

from

Research and development

credits 1594 1.29

Effect of changes in income tax

rate applied to net deferred

tax assets 804 0.65

Change in valuation allowance

against net deferred tax

assets 39295 31.82

Repurchase of convertible

subordinated notes 3353 2.71

Write off stock compensation

deferred tax assets 3048 2.47

In-process research and

development 490 0.06

Goodwill impairment 210227 23.89

Settlement China APA and NC

Audit 3084 3.63

1909 2.25

1.82Other 3361 2.72 1541

1053 0.85% $13815 16.28% 7896 O.90%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of

temporary differences between the carrying amounts

of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes

and the basis used for income tax purposes The

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

State tax net of federal benefit 947 0.77

Foreign tax rate difference 8198 6.64

$29692 35.00% 308003 35.00%

1885 2.22 5507 0.62

5861 6.91 432 0.05

8492 10.01 2461 0.28

2355 2.78 106687 12.12

Carryback of NOL

1973 0.22

deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured

using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect

when the differences are expected to reverse
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Significant components of the Companys net deferred

income taxes are as follows in thousands

Fiscal Year

Deferred income tax assets

Inventory reserve

Basis in stock and other

investments

Equity compensation

Accumulated

depreciation/basis

difference

Net operating loss carry-

forwards

Research and other credits

Other deferred assets

Other comprehensive

income

Total deferred income tax

assets

Valuation allowance

Net deferred income tax asset

Deferred income tax liabilities

Amortization and purchase

accounting basis

difference 30300 37827
Convertible debt discount 9393 18600
Deferred gain 6341 5523
Other deferred liabilities 1354 176
Other comprehensive

income 173

Total deferred income tax

liabilities 47561 62126

Net deferred income tax asset 39748 17471

Amounts included in

consolidated balance

sheets

Current assets 19255 17295

Current liabilities

Non-current assets 31516 16093

Non-current liabilities 11023 15917

Net deferred income tax asset 39748 17471

At April 2011 the Company has recorded $92.3 mil

lion valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets

This consists of $90.5 million related to U.S net

deferred tax assets and $1.8 million related to Shang

hai China net deferred tax assets Each of these valu

ation allowances were established based upon

managements opinion that it is more likely than not

that the benefit of these deferred tax assets may not be

realized Realization is dependent upon generating

future income in the taxing jurisdictions in which the

operating loss carryovers credit carryovers deprecia

ble tax basis and other tax deferred assets exist It is

managements intent to evaluate the realizability of

these deferred tax assets on quarterly basis

As of the beginning of fiscal 2010 there was

$138.4 million valuation allowance which arose mainly

from uncertainty related to the realizability of Shanghai

China net deferred tax assets acquired in connection

with the Sirenza acquisition U.K net deferred tax

assets acquired in connection with the Filtronic acqui

sition and U.S net deferred tax assets due to operating

losses and impairment charges incurred in the third

quarter of fiscal 2009 that resulted in the U.S moving

into cumulative pre-tax loss for the most recent three-

year period During fiscal 2010 the $6.3 million

decrease in the overall valuation allowance was com
prised of decrease of $7.6 million related to the

carryback of the fiscal 2009 federal NOL and an

increase of $t.3 million related to other changes in

domestic and foreign deferred tax assets during fiscal

2010 The $39.8 million decrease in the valuation

allowance during fiscal 2011 was comprised of

$22.8 million release of the U.K valuation allowance

related to the remaining deferred tax assets as of the

end of fiscal 2011 and $17.0 million for other

decreases related to changes in domestic and foreign

deferred tax assets during fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011 all of the U.K valuation allowance

was released The positive evidence of income being

generated in the U.K in each of the last several quar

ters the scheduled completion duringfiscal 2012 of the

implementation of production technology to allow the

U.K facility to produce power amplifiers in addition to

switches and future projections of continued profitabil

ity overcame any remaining negative evidence

As of the end of fiscal 2011 valuation allowance

remained againstthe deferred tax assets in the U.S and

Shanghai China as the negative evidence of cumulative

pre-tax losses for the most recent three-year period in

those jurisdictions were not overcome by available pos

itive evidence However because of favorable operating

results over the last two years management believes

reasonable possibility exists that within the next year

sufficient positive evidence may become available to

reach conclusion that substantial portion of the

remaining valuation allowance related to the

U.S deferred tax assets could be released within the

next twelve months

2011 2010

7918 9993

6158 6375

19586 23204

38465 45680

46690

48204

12560

64285

47028

15153

179581

92272

87309

211723

132126

79597
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As of April 2011 the Company had federal loss

carryovers of approximately $22.5 million that expire

in years 2019-2028 if unused statelosses of approx

imately $99.8 million that expire in years 2011-2028 if

unused and U.K loss carryovers of approximately

$32.4 million that carry forward indefinitely Federal

credits of $43.2 million and state credits of $27.3 mil

lion may expire in years 2011-2029 and 2011-2024

respectively Federal alternative minimum tax credits of

$1.5 million will carry forward indefinitely Included in

the amounts above are certain net operating losses

NOLs and other tax attribute assets acquired in con

junction with the Filtronic Sirenza Resonext and Silicon

Wave acquisitions The utilization of acquired domestic

assets is subject to certain annual limitations as

required under Internal Revenue Code Section 382

and similar state income tax provisions The acquired

U.K loss carryovers are potentially subject to limitation

under the U.K anti-avoidance provisions if there is

major change in the nature or conduct of the trade or

business of Filtronic within three years of its change in

ownership In the opinion of management there has not

been major change in the nature or conduct of the

U.K business that would subject these U.K.-acquired

tax loss carryforwards to limitation under the U.K anti-

avoidance provisions

The Company has continued to expand its operations

and increase its investments in numerous international

jurisdictions These activities expose the Company to

taxation in multiple foreign jurisdictions It is manage
ments opinion that current and future undistributed

foreign earnings will be permanently reinvested Accord

ingly no provision for U.S federal and state income

taxes has been made thereon It is not practical to

estimate the additional tax that would be incurred if

any if the permanently reinvested earnings were

repatriated

subsidiary in foreign jurisdiction has been granted an

exemption from income taxes for two-year period fol

lowed by three-year period at one-half the normal tax

rate Income tax expense was reduced in fiscal 2011 by

$0.5 million less than $.002 per basic or diluted share

as result of this agreement This agreement will expire

in fiscal 2014

The Companys gross unrecognized tax benefits totaled

$32.9 million as of April 2011 $31.8 million as of

April 2010 and $29.5 million as of March 28 2009
Of these amounts $24.4 million net of federal benefit

of state taxes $21.1 million net of federal benefit of

state taxes and $18.9 million net of federal benefit of

state taxes respectively represent the amounts of

unrecognized tax benefits that if recognized would

impact the effective tax rate in each of the fiscal years

reconciliation of the fiscal 2009 through fiscal 2011

beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax

benefits is as follows in thousands

FIscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Beginning balance $31806 $29506 $20654

Additions based on positions

related to current year 3258 4028 4181

Additions for tax positions in

prior years 1544 3096

Additions for tax positions

assumed in business

combinations 3706

Reductions for tax positions in

prior years 1534 1890 1335

Expiration of Statute of

Limitations 589 785 796

Settlements 597

Ending Balance $32941 $31806 $29506

It is the Companys policy to recognize interest and

penalties related to uncertain tax positions as com

ponent of income tax expense During fiscal years 2011
2010 and 2009 the Company recognized $0.2 million

$0.4 million and $0.1 million respectively of interest

and penalties related to uncertain tax positions

Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized

tax benefits totaled less than $0.1 million $0.3 million

and $0.7 million as of April 2011 April 2010 and

March 28 2009 respectively

Within the next 12 months the Company believes it is

reasonably possible that $0.5 million to $1.0 million of

gross unrecognized tax benefits may be reduced as

result of reductions for temporary tax positions taken in

prior years

Returns for fiscal years 2005 through 2009 have been

examined by the U.S federal taxing authorities and

subsequent tax years remain open for examination

North Carolina returns for fiscal years 2006 through

2008 have been examined by the tax authorities and

subsequent taryears remain open for examination

Returns for calendar years 2005 through 2007 have

been examined by the German taxing authorities and

subsequent tax years remain open for examination

Other material jurisdictions that are subject to exami

nation by tax authorities are California fiscal 2006

through present the U.K fiscal 2002 through

present and China calendar year 2000 through

present Tax attributes including net operating loss

and credit carryovers arising in earlier fiscal years

remain open to adjustment

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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12 NET INCOME LOSS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of basic

and diluted net income loss per share in thousands

except per share data

For Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Numerator

Numerator for basic and

diluted net income loss

per share net income

loss available to common

shareholders $124558 71019 $887904
Effect of dilutive securities

Income impact of assumed

conversions for interest

on 2010 Notes 27 1524

Numerator for diluted net

income loss per share

net income loss plus

assumed conversion of

2010 Notes $124585 72543 $887904

Denominator

Denominator for basic net

income loss per

share weighted

average shares 272575 267349 262493

Effect of dilutive securities

Employee stock options 7504 4834

Assumed conversion of

2010 Notes 315 17246

Denominator for diluted net

income loss per share

adjusted weighted average

shares and assumed

conversions 280394 289429 262493

Basic net income loss per

share 0.46 0.27 3.38

Diluted net income loss per

share 0.44 0.25 3.38

In the computation of diluted net income per share for

fiscal years 2011 and 2010 9.0 million shares and

17.9 million shares respectively were excluded

because the exercise price of the options was greater

than the average market price of the underlying common

stock and the effect of their inclusion would have been

anti-dilutive

In the computation of diluted net loss per share for fiscal

2009 all outstanding stock options were excluded

because the effect of their inclusion would have been

anti-dilutive

On July 2010 the Company repaid the $10.0 million

outstanding principal balance plus accrued interest on

the Companys 2010 Notes and the conversion option

of these notes expired unexercised As result the

computation of diluted net income per share for fiscal

2011 includes the effect of the shares that could have

been issued upon conversion of the remaining

$10.0 million balance of the Companys 2010 Notes

prior to their maturity on July 2010 total of approx

imately 0.3 million shares

The computation of diluted net income per share for

fiscal 2010 assumed the conversion of the Companys
2010 Notes The computation of diluted net loss per

share for fiscal 2009 did not assume the conversion of

the Companys 2010 Notes because the inclusion

would have been anti-dilutive

The computation of diluted net income per share does

not assume the conversion of the Companys 2012

Notes or the Companys 2014 Notes Upon conversion

of each $1000 principal amount of these two series of

notes holder will receive in lieu of common stock an

amount in cash equal to the lesser of $1000 or

ii the conversion value If the conversion value exceeds

$1000 on the conversion date the Company at its

election will settle the value in excess of $1000 in cash

or common stock The Company will use the treasury

stock method to account for the conversion value in

excess of the $1000 principal amount as the conver

sion becomes applicable Pursuant to the applicable

indentures governing the two series of notes the con

version value generally is determined as set forth above

in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements The

two series of notes generally would become dilutive to

earnings if the average market price of the Companys

common stock exceeds approximately $8.05 per share

The maximum number of shares issuable upon conver

sion of the 2012 Notes and 2014 Notes as of April

2011 is approximately 19.0 million shares excluding

$177.9 million of the aggregate principal amount of the

Notes which were previously purchased and retired by

the Company which may be adjusted as result of

stock splits stock dividends and antidilution provisions

13 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Summary of Stock Option Plans

1997 Key Employees Stock Option Plan

In April 1997 the Company and its shareholders

adopted the 1997 Key Employees Stock Option Plan

the 1997 Option Plan which provides for the granting

of options to purchase common stock to key employees

and independent contractors in the service of the Com

pany The 1997 Option Plan permits the granting of both

incentive options and nonqualified options The aggre

gate number of shares of common stock that may be

issued pursuant to options granted under the 1997

Option Plan may not exceed 10.4 million shares subject

to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events

RF Micro Devices Inc and subsidiaries Annual Report on Form 10-K 2011
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affecting the Companys capitalization No further

awards are granted under this plan

Directors Option Plan

In April 1997 the Company and its shareholders

adopted the Non-employee Directors Stock Option Plan

Under the terms of this plan directors who are not

employees of the Company are entitled to receive

options to acquire shares of common stock An aggre

gate of 1.6 million shares of common stock have been

reserved for issuance under this plan subject to adjust

ment for certain events affecting the Companys capi

talization No further awards are granted under this

plan

1999 Stock Incentive Plan

The 1999 Stock Incentive Plan the 1999 Stock Plan

which the Companys shareholders approved at the

1999 annual meeting of shareholders provides for

the issuance of maximum of 16.0 million shares of

common stock pursuant to awards granted thereunder

The maximum number of shares of common stock that

may be issued under the plan pursuant to grant of

restricted awards shall not exceed 2.0 million shares

The number of shares reserved for issuance under the

1999 Stock Plan and the terms of awards may be

adjusted upon certain events affecting the Companys

capitalization No further awards are granted under this

plan

RF Nitro Communications Inc 2001 Stock Incentive

Plan

In connection with its merger with RF Nitro the Company

assumed the RF Nitro Communications Inc 2001 Stock

Incentive Plan This plan provides for the grant of awards

to acquire common stock to key employees non-

employee directors and consultants in the service of

the Company This plan permits the grant of incentive

and nonqualified options and restricted stock awards

The aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance

under the plan is 52123 The terms of awards may be

adjusted upon certain events affecting the Companys

capitalization No further awards are granted under this

plan

Resonext Communications Inc 1999 Stock Option

Plan

In connection with its merger with Resonext Communi

cations Inc Resonext the Company assumed the

Resonext 1999 Stock Option Plan This plan provides

for the grant of options to purchase common stock to

key employees non-employee directors and consultants

in the service of the Company This plan permits the

grant of incentive and nonqualified options but does not

allow for restricted grants Stock purchase rights may

also be granted under the plan The aggregate number

of shares reserved for issuance under the plan is

1.4 million shares The terms of awards may be

adjusted upon certain events affecting the Companys

capitalization No further awards are granted under this

plan

Sirenza Microdevices Inc Amended and Restated

1998 Stock Plan

In connection with the merger of wholly owned sub

sidiary of the Company with and into Sirenza and the

subsequent merger of Sirenza with and into the Com

pany the Company assumed the Sirenza Amended and

Restated 1998 Stock Plan This plan provides for the

grant of awards to acquire common stock to employees

non-employee directors and consultants This plan per

mits the grant of incentive and nonqualified options

restricted awards and performance share awards No

further awards are granted under this plan

2003 Stock Incentive Plan

The Company currently grants stock options and

restricted stock units to employees and restricted stock

units to directors under the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan

the 2003 Plan The Companys shareholders

approved the 2003 Stock Plan on July 22 2003 and

effective upon that approval new stock option and other

share-based awards for employees may be granted only

under the 2003 Plan The Company is also permitted to

grant other types of equity incentive awards such as

stock appreciation rights restricted stock awards per

formance shares and performance units under the

2003 Plan On May 2010 the Company granted

performance-based restricted stock units that were

awarded on May 2011 after it was determined that

certain performance objectives had been met The

aggregate number of shares subject to performance-

based restricted stock units awarded for fiscal 2011

under the 2003 plan was 1.7 million shares On May

2009 the Company granted performance-based

restricted stock units that were awarded on May

2010 after it was determined that certain performance

objectives had been met The aggregate number of

shares subject to performance-based restricted stock

units awarded for fiscal 2010 under the 2003 plan was

2.5 million shares On May 21 2008 and July 2008

the Company granted performance-based restricted

stock units that were awarded on May 2009 after

it was determined that certain performance objectives

had been met The aggregate number of shares subject

to performance-based restricted stock units awarded

for fiscal 2009 under the 2003 Plan was 2.5 million

shares In the past the Company had various employee

stock and incentive plans under which stock options and

other share-based awards were granted Stock options
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and other share-based awards that were granted under

prior plans and were outstanding on July 22 2003
continued in accordance with the terms of the respec

tive plans

The maximum number of shares issuable under the

2003 Plan may not exceed the sum of 30.3 million

shares plus any shares of common stock remain

ing available for issuance as of the effective date of the

2003 Plan under the Companys prior plans and ii sub

ject to an award granted under prior plan which awards

are forfeited canceled terminated expire or lapse for

any reason As of April 2011 9.8 million shares were

available for issuance under the 2003 Plan

2006 Directors Stock Option Plan

At the Companys 2006 Annual Meeting of Sharehold

ers shareholders of the Company adopted the

2006 Directors Stock Option Plan which replaced

the Non-Employee Directors Stock Option Plan and

reserved an additional 1.0 million shares of common

stock for issuance to non-employee directors Under the

terms of this plan directors who are not employees of

the Company are entitled to receive options to acquire

shares of common stock An aggregate of 1.4 million

shares of common stock has been reserved for issu

ance under this plan including shares remaining avail

able for issuance under the prior Non-employee

Directors Stock Option Plan As of April 2011 0.6 mil

lion shares were available for issuance under the

2006 Directors Stock Option Plan No awards may be

granted under the Directors Stock Option Plan after

July 30 2016

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In April 1997 the Company adopted its Employee Stock

Purchase Plan ESPP which is intended to qualify as an

employee stock purchase plan under Section 423 of

the Internal Revenue Code All regular full-time employ

ees of the Company including officers and all other

employees who meet the eligibility requirements of the

plan may participate in the ESPP The ESPP provides

eligible employees an opportunity to acquire the Com

panys common stock at 85% of the lower of the closing

price per share of the Companys common stock on the

first or last day of each six-month purchase period At

April 2011 3.6 million shares were available for

future issuance under this plan subject to anti-dilution

adjustments in the event of certain changes in the

capital structure of the Company The Company makes

no cash contributions to the ESPP but bears the

expenses of its administration The Company issued

0.7 million shares under this plan in fiscal 2011

For fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 the primary

share-based awards and their general terms and

conditions are as follows

Stock options are granted to employees with an exercise

price equal to the market price of the Companys stock

at the date of grant generally vest over four-year period

from the grant date and expire 10 years from the grant

date Restricted stock units granted by the Company in

fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 generally vest over

four-year period from the grant date Under the

2006 Directors Stock Option Plan stock options

granted to non-employee directors other than initial

options as described below in fiscal years 2011

2010 and 2009 had an exercise price equal to the

market price of the Companys stock at the date of

grant vested immediately upon grant and expire

10 years from the grant date Each non-employee direc

tor who is first elected or appointed to the Board of

Directors will receive an initial option at an exercise price

equal to the market price of the Companys stock at the

date of grant which vests over two-year period from

the grant date and expires 10 years from the grant date

At the directors option he may instead elect to receive

all or part of the initial grant in restricted stock units

Thereafter each non-employee director is eligible to

receive an annual option or if he so chooses an annual

grant of restricted stock units

The options and time-vested restricted units granted to

certain officers of the Company generally will in the

event of the officers termination other than for cause

continue to vest pursuant to the same vesting schedule

as if the officer had remained an employee of the

Company unless the administrator of the 2003 Plan

determines otherwise and as result these options

are expensed at grant date In fiscal 2011 share-based

compensation of $3.6 million was recognized upon the

grant of 0.8 million options and restricted units to cer

tain officers of the Company

Share-Based Compensation

Under FASB ASC Topic 718 share-based compensation

cost is measured at the grant date based on the esti

mated fair value of the award using an option pricing

model and is recognized as expense over the employ

ees requisite service period FASB ASC Topic 718 cov

ers wide range of share-based compensation

arrangements including stock options restricted share

plans performance-based awards share appreciation

rights and employee stock purchase plans

Total pro-tax share-based compensation expense recog

nized in the consolidated statements of operations was

$25.4 million for fiscal 2011 net of expense capitalized

into inventory For fiscal years 2010 and 2009 the total
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pre-tax share-based compensation expense recognized

was $25.6 million and $233 million respectively For

fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009 $0.1 million

$0.3 million and $0.0 million of share-based compen
sation expense was capitalized into inventory

respectively

During the second quarter of fiscal 2010 at the Com

panys annual meeting the Companys shareholders

approved stock option exchange program for eligible

Company employees excluding the Companys chief

executive officer chief financial officer and the three

next most highly compensated officers members of its

Board of Directors consultants and former and retired

employees Under the exchange program eligible

employees were given the opportunity to exchange cer

tain of their outstanding stock options previously

granted to them that had an option price not less than

the greater of $5.00 or the 52-week closing stock price

high of the Companys common stock as of July 10
2009 for new options to be granted promptly after

termination of the exchange program The ratio of

exchanged eligible options to new options was

two-to-one meaning that one new option share was

issued in exchange for every two canceled option

shares As result of the exchange program approxi

mately 1.8 million shares subject to old options were

canceled with exercise prices ranging from $5.19 to

$63.63 on August 2009 and approximately 0.9 mil

lion shares subject to new options were granted under

the Companys 2003 Plan on August 2009 with the

new options having an exercise price of $4.86 the

closing price of the Companys common stock as

reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market on the

trading date immediately preceding the date the new

options were granted The new options will vest and

become exercisable over two-year period with 25% of

each new option generally becoming exercisable after

each six-month period of continued service followingthe

grant date As result of the exchange program the

Company will be required to recognize $0.6 million of

incremental compensation cost over the two-year vest

ing period

summary of activity of the Companys director and

employee stock option plans follows

Shares

in thousands

Outstanding sa of

April 2cic 18c63 6.79

Granted 116 4.41

Exercised 3106 5.55

canceled 929 $16.40

Forfeited 42 5.17

Outstanding as of

Apdl 2011 14102 6.40 3.82 $9338

Vested and expected

to eeat as of

April 2011

Options exercisable

as of April 2011

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above repre

sents the total pro-tax intrinsic value based upon the

Companys closing stock price of $6.39 as of April

2011 that would have been received by the option

holders had all oiition holders with in-the-money options

exercised their options as of that date

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the

date of grant using Black-Scholes option-pricing model

based on the assumptions noted in the followingtables

Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Expected volatility

Expected dividend yield

Expected term in years

Risk-free interest rate

Weighted-average grant-date fair

value of options granted during

the period

48.3% 64.1% 77.6%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

5.4 2.9 5.2

1.8% 1.7% 3.1%

The total intrinsic value of options exercised during

fiscal 2011 was $5.6 million For fiscal years 2010

and 2009 the total intrinsic value of options exercised

was $1.5 million and $3.0 million respectively

Cash received from the exercise of stock options and

from participation in the employee stock purchase plan

was $20.7 million for fiscal 2011 and is reflected in

cash flows from financing activities in the consolidated

statements of cash flows The Company settles

employee stock options with newly issued shares of

the Companys common stock

The Company used the implied volatility of market-

traded options on the Companys common stock for

the expected volatility assumption input to the Black

Scholes option-pricing model consistent with the guid

ance in FASB ASC Topic 718 The selection of implied

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Weighted-

Weighted- Average

Average Remaining

Exercise centractuai

Price Term

in yeam

Aggregate

Intrinsic

Vaiue

in thousands

14098 6.40 3.82

13309 6.44 3.73

$9334

$8809

$1.87 $1.98 $2.20
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volatility data to estimate expected volatility was based

upon the availability of actively-traded options on the

Companys common stock and the Companys assess

ment that implied volatility is more representative of

future common stock price trends than historical

volatility

The dividend yield assumption is based on the Compa

nys history and expectation of future dividend payouts

and may be subject to change in the future The Com

pany has never paid dividend

The expected life of employee stock options represents

the weighted-average period that the stock options are

expected to remain outstanding The Companys
method of calculating the expected term of an option

is based on the assumption that all outstanding options

will be exercised at the midpoint of the current date and

full contractual term combined with the average life of

all options that have been exercised or canceled The

Company believes that this method provides better

estimate of the future expected life based on analysis of

historical exercise behavioral data

The risk-free interest rate assumption is based upon

observed interest rates appropriate for the terms of the

Companys employee stock options

FASB ASC Topic 718 requires forfeitures to be esti

mated at the time of grant and revised if necessary

in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from

those estimates Based upon historical pre-vesting for

feiture experience the Company assumed an annual

ized forfeiture rate of 1.59% for both stock options and

restricted stock units

The following activity has occurred under the Companys

existing restricted share plans

Shares

In thousands

Balance at April

2010 10275 $4.30

Granted

Vested

5879

4699

3.50

3.82

Forfeited 205 4.25

Balance at April

2011 11250 $4.09

As of April 2011 total remaining unearned compen
sation cost related to nonvested restricted stock units

was $29.2 million which will be amortized over the

weighted-average remaining service period of approxi

mately 1.2 years

The total fair value of restricted stock units that vested

during fiscal 2011 was $22.1 million based upon the

fair market value of the Companys common stock on

the vesting date For fiscal years 2010 and 2009 the

total fair value of restricted stock units that vested was

$13.4 million and $4.4 million respectively

14 SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Share Repurchase

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011 the Company

announced that its Board of Directors authorized the

repurchase of up to $200.0 million of its outstanding

common stock exclusive of related fees commissions

or other expenses from time to time during period

commencing on January 28 2011 and expiring on

January 27 2013 This share repurchase program

authorizes the Company to repurchase shares through

solicited or unsolicited transactions in the open market

or in privately negotiated transactions During the fiscal

year ended April 2011 the Company repurchased

1.7 million shares at an average price of $7.44 on the

open market

Common Stock Reserved For Future Issuance

At April 2011 the Company had reserved total of

approximately 58.6 million of its authorized 500.0 mil

lion shares of common stock for future issuance as

follows in thousands

Outstanding stock options under formal

directors and employees stock option

plans 14102

Possible future issuance under Company

stock option plans 10584

Employee stock purchase plan 3618

Restricted share-based units granted 11250

Possible future issuance pursuant to

convertible subordinated notes 19025

Total shares reserved 58579

Shareholder Rights Plan

On August 10 2001 the Companys Board of Directors

adopted shareholder rights plan pursuant to which un

certificated stock purchase rights were distributed to

shareholders at rate of one right for each share of

common stock held of record as of August 30 2001

The rights plan is designed to enhance the Boards

ability to prevent an acquirer from depriving sharehold

ers of the long-term value of their investment and to

protect shareholders against attempts to acquire the

Company by means of unfair or abusive takeover tac

tics The rights become exercisable based upon certain

limited conditions related to acquisitions of stock
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tender offers and certain business combination trans

actions involving the Company Pursuant to the July

2003 amendment to the shareholder rights plan an

independent committee of the Companys Board of

Directors is required to evaluate the shareholder rights

plan at least once every three years in order to deter

mine whether the plan continues to be in the best

interests of the Company and its shareholders

15 OPERATING SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC

INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements include sales to

customers by geographic region that are summarized as

follows in thousands

FIscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Sales

United States $156746 $151673 $159885

International 895010 826720 726621

FIscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Sales

United States

Asia

Europe

Central and South America

Canada

Other

The Company classifies its revenue based upon the end

application of the products in which the Companys
products are used Net sales by end application are

regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker

and are as follows in thousands

Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Net Revenue

Cellular Products Group

Multi-Market Products

Group

819230

232526

$800535

177858

$659824

226682

Total $1051756 $978393 $886506

The consolidated financial statements include the fol

lowing long-lived asset amounts related to operations of

the Company by geographic region in thousands

Fiscal Year 2011 2010 2009

Long-lived tangible assets

United States

International

$148745 $178012 $224461

60733 69073 90666

15% 16% 18%

77 71 63

Sales for geographic disclosure purposes are based

on the bill to address of the customer The bill to

address is not always an accurate representation of the

location of final consumption of the Companys compo
nents Of the Companys total international revenue for

11 16 fiscal 2011 approximately 40% $418.2 million was

from customers in China 14% $144.9 million from

customers in Taiwan 14% $143.4 million from cus

tomers in India and 7% $69.3 million from customers

in Korea Long-lived tangible assets primarily include

property and equipment and at April 2011 approx

imately $55.2 million or 26% of the Companys total

property and equipment was located in China
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16 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL SUMMARY UNAUDITED

FIscal 2011 Quarter First Second Third Fourth

In thousands except per share data

Revenue $273842 $285794 $278794 $213326

Gross

profit 102407 108655 103089 75520

Net income 283411 353961 36686 241352

Net income per share

Basic 0.10 0.13 0.13 0.09

Diluted 0.10 0.13 0.13 0.08

Fiscal 2010 Quarter First Second Third Fourth

In thousands except per share data

Revenue $212540 $254757 $250271 $260825

Gross profit 74001 91549 91190 98429

Net income 4784 14579 24928 26728

Net income per share

Basic 0.02 0.05 0.09 0.10

Diluted 0.02 0.05 0.09 0.10

The Company uses 52- or 53-week fiscal year ending on the Saturday closest to March 31 of each year The first fiscal

quarter of each year ends on the Saturday closest to June 30 the second fiscal quarter of each year ends on the

Saturday closest to September 30 and the third fiscal quarter of each year ends on the Saturday closest to

December 31 Fiscal year 2010 was 53-week fiscal year with the second quarter of fiscal 2010 having an extra

week 14 weeks Each quarter of fiscal 2011 contained comparable number of weeks 13 weeks

In the first and second quarters of fiscal 2011 net income was $0.2 million and $0.3 million higher respectively than previously reported due to the

companys increased ownership percentage in an equity investment see Note to the consolidated Financial statements

Net income includes an income tax benefit related to the effects of reduction of valuation reserve against deferred tax assets

17 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

During the first quarter of fiscal 2012 through May 31 2011 the Company repurchased and retired $22.0 million

aggregate principal amount of its 2012 Notes equal to approximately 35% of the outstanding balance of its 201.2

Notes The Company paid $1.05 per $1.00 of par value for the 2012 Notes The primary impact of this transaction to

the Companys financial statements in the first quarter of fiscal 2012 is expected to be reduction of debt of

approximately $20.0 million net of discount and reduction in cash of approximately $23.0 million

Also during the first quarter of fiscal 2012 through May 31 2011 the Company repurchased 0.9 million shares of

common stock at an average price of $5.93 on the open market
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

RF Micro Devices and Subsidiaries

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation integrity accuracy and fair presentation of the

Consolidated Financial Statements appearing in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April

2011 The financial statements were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United

States GAAP and include amounts based on judgments and estimates by management

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15f under the Exchange Act The Companys internal control over

financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with GAAR Our internal control over financial

reporting

is supported by internal audits appropriate reviews by management policies and guidelines careful

selection and training of qualified personnel and codes of ethics adopted by our Companys Board of Directors that

are applicable to all directors officers and employees of our Company

Because of its inherent limitations no matter how well designed internal control over financial reporting may not

prevent or detect all misstatements Internal controls can only provide reasonable assurance with respect to financial

statement preparation and presentation Further the evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over financial

reporting was made as of specific date and continued effectiveness in future periods is subject to the risks that the

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies

and procedures may decline

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting with the partic

ipation of the Companys Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as of April 2011 In conducting this

assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission COSO in Internal Control Integrated Framework Based on our assessment management believes

that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of April 2011

The Companys auditors Ernst Young LLP an independent registered public accounting firm are appointed by the

Audit Committee of the Companys Board of Directors Ernst Young LLP has audited and reported on the Consolidated

Financial Statements of RF Micro Devices Inc and subsidiaries and has issued an attestation report on the Companys
internal control over financial reporting The reports of the independent registered public accounting firm are contained

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries

We have audited RE Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of April 2011
based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Eramework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria RE Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries management

is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Report of Management on

lnteral Control Over Einancial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control

over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining

an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and

performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit

provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies

and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are

recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of

management and directors of the company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on

the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements

Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become

inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion RE Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries maintained in all material respects effective internal control

over financial reporting as of April 2011 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States the consolidated balance sheets of RE Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries as of April 2011 and April

2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended April 2011 of RE Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries and our report dated June

2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

It

Greensboro North Carolina

June 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries as of

April 2011 and April 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations shareholders equity and cash

flows for each of the three years in the period ended April 2011 Our audits also included the financial statement

schedule listed in the index at Item 15a2 These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule

based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

-- -.- States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether

the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting

principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement

presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated

financial position of RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries at April 2011 and April 2010 and the consolidated

results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended April 2011 in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related financial statement

schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material

respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States RF Micro Devices Inc and Subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of April 2011 based on

criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of

the Treadway Commission and our report dated June 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Ot7LLP

Greensboro North Carolina

June 2011
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH

ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

Not applicable

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report the

Companys management with the participation of the

Companys Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finan

cial Officer evaluated the effectiveness of the Compa

nys disclosure controls and procedures in accordance

with Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act Based on

their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by

this report the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief

Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclo

sure controls and procedures were effective as of such

date to enable the Company to record process sum
marize and report in timely manner the information

that the Company is required to disclose in its Exchange

Act reports The Companys Chief Executive Officer and

Chief Financial Officer also concluded that the Compa

nys disclosure controls and procedures were effective

as of the end of the period covered by this report in

ensuring that information required to be disclosed by the

Company in the reports that it files or submits under the

Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to the

Companys management including the Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to

allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Internal control over financial reporting

Our Report of Management on Internal Control Over

Financial Reporting is included with the financial state

ments in Part II Item of this Annual Report on

Form 10-K and is incorporated herein by reference

The Report of Independent Registered Public Account

ing Firm on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting is

included with the financial statements in Part II Item

of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated

herein by reference

Changes in internal control over financial reporting

There were no changes in the Companys internal con

trol over financial reporting that occurred during the

quarter ended April 2011 that have materially

affected or are reasonably likely to materially affect

the Companys internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information required by this Item may be found in our

definitive proxy statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting

of Shareholders under the captions Corporate

Governance Executive Officers Proposal Elec

tion of Directors and Section 16a Beneficial Owner

ship Reporting Compliance and the information

therein is incorporated herein by reference

The Company has adopted its Code of Ethics for Senior

Financial Officers and copy is posted on the Compa

nys website at www.rfmd.com In the event that we

amend any of the provisions of the Code of Ethics for

Senior Financial Officers that requires disclosure under

applicable law SEC rules or NASDAQ listing standards

we intend to disclose such amendment on our website

Any waiver of the Code of Ethics for Senior Financial

Officers for any executive officer or director must be

approved by the Board and will be promptly disclosed

along with the reasons for the waiver as required by

applicable law or NASDAQ rules

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by this Item may be found in our

definitive proxy statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting

of Shareholders under the captions Executive Compen
sation and Compensation Committee Interlocks and

Insider Participation and the information therein is

incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN

BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MAilERS

Information required by this Item may be found in our

definitive proxy statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting

of Shareholders under the captions Security Ownership

of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and

Equity Compensation Plan Information and the infor

mation therein is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED

TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

Information required by this Item may be found in our

definitive proxy statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting

of Shareholders under the captions Related Person

Transactions and Corporate Governance and the

information therein is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND

SERVICES

Information required by this Item may be found in our

definitive proxy statement for our 2011 Annual Meeting

of Shareholders under the captions Proposal Rat

ification of Appointment of Independent Registered Pub

lic Accounting Firm and Corporate Governance and

the information therein is incorporated herein by

reference
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

The following documents are filed as part of this report

Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 2011 and April 2010

ii Consolidated Statements of Operations for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

iii Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

iv Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for fiscal years 2011 2010 and 2009

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts appears below

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are not required

under the related instructions are included within the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K or are inapplicable and therefore have been omitted

Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

Fiscal Years Ended 2011 2010 and 2009

Balance at Additions Additions for

Beginning of Charged to Costs Amounts Acquired Deductions Balance at End

Period and Expenses through Acquisition from Reserve of Period

In thousands

Year ended April 2011

Allowance for doubtful

accounts 802 2i 800

Inventory reserve 25597 2046 756111 20082

Year ended April 2010

Allowance for doubtful

accounts 886 293 377i 802

Inventory reserve 39544 2480 1642711 25597

Year ended March 28
2009

Allowance for doubtful

accounts 796 1183 1093i 886

Inventory reserve 30328 21022 103 1190911 39544

ii The companywrote-off fully reaerved balance againatthe related receivable write-offa totaled leasthan $0.1 million for both fiacal 2011 and flacal 2010 and

$0.8 million for fiacal 2009

It The company aold exceaa inventory or wrote-off acrap related to quality and obsoleacence against fully reaerved balance and reduced reserves baaed on the

companya reaerve policy

The exhibits listed in the accompanying Exhibit Index are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Exhibits

See the Exhibit Index

Separate Financial Statements and Schedules

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

RF Micro Devices Inc

By /s/ ROBERT BRUGGEw0RTH

POWER OFA1TORNEY

Robert Bruggeworth

President and Chief Executive Officer

KNOWALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints

Robert Bruggeworth and William Priddy Jr and each of them as true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents with

full power of substitution and resubstitution for him and in his name place and stead in any and all capacities to sign

any and all amendments to this report and to file the same with all exhibits thereto and other documents in

connection therewith with the Securities and Exchange Commission granting unto said attorneys-in-fact and agents

and each of them full power and authorityto do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessaryto be

done iii and about the premises as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person hereby ratifying

and confirming all which said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them or their or his substitute or substitutes may

lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated on June 2011

Name Tifie

/5/ RcBERT BRUGGEWORTH

Robert Bruggeworth

/5/ WILLIAM PRIDDY JR

William Priddy Jr

/5/ BARRY CHURCH

Barry Church

/5/ WALTER WILKINSON JR

Walter Wilkinson Jr

/5/ DANIEL DILEO

Daniel DiLeo

/5/ JEFFERY GARDNER

Jeffery Gardner

/s JOHN HARDING

John Harding

/s/ MASOOD JABBAR

Masood Jabbar

/5/ CASIMIR SKRZYPCZAK

Casimir Skrzypozak

/s/ ERIK VAN DER KAAY

Erik van der Kaay

President Chief Executive Officer and Director

principal executive officer

Chief Financial Officer Corporate Vice President of

Administration and Secretary principal financial officer

Vice President and Corporate Controller

principal accounting officer

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Date June 2011

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

No Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger among RF Micro Devices Inc Deere Merger Corp and Silicon Wave Inc

dated as of April 21 20041
2.2 Asset Purchase Agreement by and among QUALCOMM Incorporated RF Micro Devices Inc and RFMD

WPAN Inc dated as of December 20062
2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization dated as of August 12 2007 by and among RF Micro

Devices Inc lceman Acquisition Sub Inc and Sirenza Microdevices Inc 24
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of RF Micro Devices Inc dated July 27 19993
3.2 Articles of Amendment of RF Micro Devices Inc to Articles of Incorporation dated July 26 20004
3.3 Articles of Amendment of RF Micro Devices Inc to Articles of Incorporation dated August 10 20015
3.4 Bylaws of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended and restated through November 2007 26
4.1 Specimen Certificate of Common Stock6

4.2a Rights Agreement by and between RF Micro Devices Inc and First Union National Bank as Rights Agent
dated as of August 10 20017

4.2b First Amendment to Rights Agreement dated as of July 22 2003 between RF Micro Devices Inc and

Wachovia Bank National Association formerly First Union National Bank as Rights Agent8

4.3 Indenture dated as of July 2003 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Wachovia Bank National

Association as Trustee9

4.4 Form of Note for 1.50% Convertible Subordinated Notes due July 2010 filed as Exhibit to Indenture

dated as of July 2003 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Wachovia Bank National Association as

Trustee9

4.5 Registration Rights Agreement by and among RF Micro Devices Inc and the Initial Purchasers named

therein dated as of July 20039

4.6 Indenture dated as of April 2007 between RFMicro Devices Inc and U.S Bank National Association as

Trustee relating to the 0.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes due April 15 2012 10
4.7 Form of Note for 0.75% Convertible Subordinated Notes due April 15 2012 filed as Exhibit to Indenture

dated as of April 2007 between RF Micro Devices Inc and U.S Bank National Association as Trustee

10
4.8 Indenture dated as of April 42007 between RFMicro Devices Inc and U.S Bank National Association as

Trustee relating to the 1.00% Convertible Subordinated Notes due April 15 2014 10
4.9 Form of Note for 1.00% Convertible Subordinated Notes due April 15 2014 filed as Exhibit to Indenture

dated as of April 2007 between RF Micro Devices Inc and U.S Bank National Association as Trustee

10
4.10 Registration Rights Agreement between RF Micro Devices Inc and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith

Incorporated dated as of April 2007 10
The registrant hereby undertakes to furnish to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon its request

copy of any instrument defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the registrant not filed here with

pursuant to Item 601b4iii of Regulation S-K

10.1 1997 Key Employees Stock Option Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended 11
10.2 Form of Stock Option Agreement 1997 Key Employees Stock Option Plan6
10.3 Stock Option Agreement dated as of October 27 1998 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Walter

Wilkinson Jr as amended 11
10.4 Stock Option Agreement dated as of October 27 1998 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Albert

Paladino as amended 11
10.5 Stock Option Agreement dated as of October 27 1998 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Erik van der

Kaay as amended 11
10.6 1999 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended 11

--
10.7 RF Nitro Communications Inc 2001 Stock Incentive Plan as amended and restated effective October 23

2001 12
10.8 Resonext Communications Inc 1999 Stock Plan as amended and restated effective December 19 2002

13
10.9 License and Technical Assistance Agreement by and between the Electronic Systems Technology Division

of the Space and Electronics Group of TRW Inc and RF Micro Devices Inc dated June 19966

10.10 Lease Agreement dated October 31 1995 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Piedmont Land Company
as amended 14

10.11 Lease Agreement dated October 1996 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Highwoods/Forsyth Limited

Partnership as amended 14
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Exhibit

No Description

10.12 Lease Agreement dated February 12 1999 between Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership and RF Micro

Devices Inc 15
10.13 Lease Agreement dated May 25 1999 by and between CK Deep River LLC and RF Micro Devices Inc 16
10.14 Lease Agreement dated November 1999 between Highwoods Realty Limited Partnership and RF Micro

Devices Inc 11
10.15 Change in Control Agreement effective as of March 2001 between RF Micro Devices Inc and William

Pratt 17
10.16 Change in Control Agreement effective as of February 2005 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Gregory

Thompson 18
10.17 Form of Amendment No to Change in Control Agreements effective as of June 2005 19
10.18 Amended and Restated Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated October 15 2002 by and between

Jazz Semiconductor Inc and RF Micro Devices Inc 20
10.19 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended through June 11 2010 34
10.20 Form of Stock Option Agreement Senior Officers pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro

Devices Inc as amended effective June 2006 21
10.21 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement Service-Based Award for Senior Officers pursuant to the 2003

Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended effective June 2006 21
10.22 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Employees pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro

Devices Inc 19
10.23 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement Service-Based Award for Employees pursuant to the 2003

Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc 19
10.24 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Nonemployee Directors pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF

Micro Devices Inc 22
10.25 RF Micro Devices Inc 2006 Directors Stock Option Plan as amended and restated effective May 2009

32
10.26 Form of Stock Option Agreement Initial Option for Nonemployee Directors pursuant to the RF Micro

Devices Inc 2006 Directors Stock Option Plan effective July 31 2006 21
10.27 Form of Stock Option AgreementAnnual Option for Nonemptoyee Directors pursuant to the RF Micro

Devices Inc 2006 Directors Stock Option Plan effective July 31 2006 21
10.28 RF Micro Devices Inc Cash Bonus Plan effective June 2006 21
10.29 Nonemployee Directors Stock Option Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended and restated through

June 13 2003 23
10.30 Offer letter between RF Micro Devices Inc and Robert Van Buskirk dated August 13 2007 25
10.31 Noncompetition Agreement dated August 13 2007 executed by Robert Van Buskirk in favor of RF Micro

Devices Inc Sirenza Microdevices Inc and other beneficiaries 25
10.32 RFMD NC Inventions Confidentiality and Non-Solicitation Agreement dated August 13 2007 by and

between Robert Van Buskirk and RF Micro Devices Inc 25
10.33 Sirenza Microdevices Inc Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Plan as Assumed by RF Micro Devices Inc

and Amended and Restated Effective November 13 2007 26
10.34 Change in Control Agreement between RF Micro Devices Inc and Robert Van Buskirk effective as of

November 14 2007 27
10.35 Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement Performance-Based and Service-Based Award for Senior

Officers pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc 28
10.36 Retirement and Transition Agreement dated as of March 31 2008 between William Pratt and RF Micro

Devices Inc 29
10.37 Employment Agreement dated as of November 12 2008 between RF Micro Devices Inc and Robert

Bruggeworth 30
-- 10.38 Second Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and

between RF Micro Devices Inc and Robert Bruggeworth 31
10.39 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and between

RF Micro Devices Inc and Barry Church 31
10.40 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and between

RF Micro Devices Inc and Steven Creviston 31
10.41 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and between

RF Micro Devices Inc and Jerry Neal 31
10.42 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and between

RF Micro Devices Inc and William Priddy Jr 31
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Exhibit

No Description

10.43 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and between

RF Micro Devices Inc and Suzanne Rudy 31
10.44 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and between

RF Micro Devices Inc and James Stilson 31
10.45 Amended and Restated Change in Control Agreement effective as of December 31 2008 by and between

RF Micro Devices Inc and Robert Van Buskirk 31
10.46 Equity Award Election Form pursuant to the RF Micro Devices Inc 2006 Directors Stock Option Plan as

amended and restated effective May 2009 32
10.47 Form of Stock Option Agreement Annual/Supplemental Option for Nonemployee Directors pursuant to

the RF Micro Devices Inc 2006 Directors Stock Option Plan as amended and restated effective May
2009 32

10.48 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Initial RSU for Nonemployee Directors pursuant to the 2003

Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended 32
10.49 Form of Restricted Stock Unit AgreementAnnual/Supplemental RSU for Nonemployee Directors

pursuant to the 2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended 32
10.50 RF Micro Devices Inc Director Compensation Plan effective May 2009 32
10.51 2009 Declaration of Amendment effective July 30 2009 to the Nonemployee Directors Stock Option Plan

of RF Micro Devices Inc as amended and restated through June 13 2003 32
10.52 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement Performance-Based and Service-Based Award pursuant to the

2003 Stock Incentive Plan of RF Micro Devices lnc 33
21 Subsidiaries of RF Micro Devices Inc

23 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

31.1 Certification of Periodic Report by Robert Bruggeworth as Chief Executive Officer pursuant to

Rule 13a-14a or 15d-14a of the Exchange Act as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of Periodic Report by William Priddy Jr as Chief Financial Officer pursuant to

Rule 13a-14a or 15d-14a of the Exchange Act as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes

Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of Periodic Report by Robert Bruggeworth as Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 S.C

Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Certification of Periodic Report by William Priddy Jr as Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C

Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

101 The following materials from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 2011 formatted in

XBRL eXtensible Business Reporting Languagei the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 2011

and April 2010 ii the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended April 2011 April

2010 and March 28 2009 iii the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended

April 2011 April 2010 and March 28 2009 iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the

years ended April 2011 April 2010 and March 28 2009 andv the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements tagged as blocks of text

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 2004

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 2006

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 26 1999

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended July 2000

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10 for the quarterly period ended September 29 2001

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with Amendment No to our Regixtration Statement on Form 5-1 filed April 1997 RIe No 333-22625

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed August 14 2001

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form 8-A/A filed August 2003

Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement filed on Form S-3 filed August 22 2003 RIe No 333-108141

10 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 10 2007

11 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 25 1999

-- 12 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form 5-8 filed November 30 2001 HIe No 333 74230

13 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed December 20 2002 RIe No 333-102048

14 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form 5-1 filed February 28 1997 RIe No 333-22625

15 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended March 27 1999

16 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 26 1999

17 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10K for the fiscal year ended March 31 2001

18 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 2005

19 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 2005

20 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 28 2002

21 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2006

22 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10.Q for the quarterly period ended December 31 2005
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23 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 84K filed May 2006

24 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed witl our Current Report on Form 84K filed Auguat 16 2007

25 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Regiatration Statement on Form S-4 filed September 13 2007 File No 333-146027

26 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed November 15 2007 File No 333-147432

27 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 19 2007

28 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 29 2008

29 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 2008

30 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 14 2008

31 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended December 27 2008

32 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 27 2009

33 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 2010 filed June 2010

34 Incorporated by reference to the exhibit filed with our Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 2010

Executive compensation plan or agreement

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T the Interactive Data Files on Exhibit 101 hereto are deemed not filed or part of registration statement or

prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities

and Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and otherwise are not subject to liability under those sections

Our SEC file number for documents filed with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange ACt of 1934 as amended is

000-22511
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OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS CORPORATE INFORMATION

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Robert Bruggeworth 7628 Thorndike Road

President and Chief Executive Officer Greensboro NC 27409 9421

Barry Church Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

Vice President and Corporate Controller American Stock Transfer Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane
Steven Creviston

Corporate Vice President and President of Cellular Products Group
New York NY 10038

www.amstock.com

Jerry Neal phone 718 921 8124
Executive Vice President of Marketing and Strategic Development toll free 800 937-5449

William Priddy Jr Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Chief Financial Officer Corporate Vice President of Administration Ernst Young LLP

and Secretary 3200 Beechleaf Court Suite 700

Suzanne Rudy
Raleigh NC 27604

Vice President Corporate Treasurer Compliance Officer and

Assistant Secretary ANNUAL MEETING

James Stilson The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Wednesday

Corporate Vice President of Operations August 2011 at 800 a.m local time at the office of Womble Carlyle

Sandridge Rice PLLC One Wells Fargo Center Suite 3500 301
Robert Van Buskirk

South College Street Charlotte North Carolina notice of the meeting
Corporate Vice President and President of Multi-Market Products Group

proxy and proxy statement will be sent or made available on or about

June 22 2011 at which time proxies will be solicited on behalf of the

CORPORATE OFFICERS Board of Directors

Gary Grant

Corporate Vice President of Quality Assurance SEC ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10K

Forrest Moore Additional copies of our fiscal 2011 Annual Report on Form 10-K as

Chief Information Officer and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission including the

Corporate Vice President of Information Technology
financial statements and the financial statement schedules but not

including the exhibits contained therein are available without charge

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
upon written request directed to

Douglas DeLieto
Walter Wilkinson Jr.l3td

Vice President Investor Relations

Chairman of the Board
Investor Relations Department

Founder and General Partner Kitty Hawk Capital
RF Micro Devices Inc

Robert Bruggeworth 7628 Thorndike Road

President and Chief Executive Officer RF Micro Devices Inc Greensboro NC 27409-9421

www.rfmd.com
Daniel DiLeo13

Former Executive Vice President Agere Systems Inc We will furnish any exhibit to our fiscal 2011 Annual Report on

Form 10-K upon receipt of payment for our reasonable expenses in

Jeffery Gardner2 4t

furnishing such exhibit
President and Chief Executive Officer Windstream Corporation

John Hardingito PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK
Co founder Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

eSilicon Corporation
Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under

the symbol RFMD The table below sets torth the high and low sales

Masood Jabbar2t
prices of our common stock for the quarterly periods during the fiscal

Former Executive Vice President Sun Microsystems Inc
years ended

April 2010 and
April 2011 as reported by the

Casimir Skrzypczak2 NASDAQ Stock Market LLC

Former Senior Vice President Cisco Systems Fiscal 2011 High Low

Erik van der Kaay2t3d First Quarter 6.05 3.83

Retired Chairman of the Board Symmetricom Inc Second Quarter 6.25 3.65

Compensation Committee kadrt Committee Govenatce and Nominating Cemmrmen
Third Quarter 7.99 5.89

Finance Committee bttategic Development Committee Commimee Chairman Fourth Quarter 8.48 6.01

Fiscal 2010 High Low

First Quarter 3.96 1.24

Second Quarter 5.85 3.18

Third

Quarter 5.24 3.72

Fourth Quarter 5.27 3.76

me have nevet declared paid cash dioidecds on Os common stock We caently intend to retain our earnings to asn in ear Nosiness and an not anticipatn paying any sash dividnnds in thn feresenable feturn
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